Public Document Pack

-
ﬂ%zg Agenda

Coventry City Council
Planning Committee

Time and Date
2.00 pm on Thursday, 5th March, 2026

Place
Committee Room 3 - Council House

1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest
3. Members Declarations of Contact on Planning Applications

Members are reminded that contacts about any planning applications on this
agenda must, unless reported to this meeting by the Strategic Lead for
Planning, be declared before the application is considered.

4. Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 December 2025 (Pages 3 - 6)

5. Late Representations

To be circulated at the meeting.

6. Application PL/2024/0002270/FULM - Allesley Hotel, Birmingham Road
(Pages 7 - 100)

Report of the Strategic Lead for Planning

7. Application PL/2025/0000037/FULM - 46 Algate Close (Pages 101 - 130)
Report of the Strategic Lead for Planning

8. Application PL/2025/0001987/0OUT - 260a Hawkes Mill Lane (Pages 131 -
152)

Report of the Strategic Lead for Planning

9. Outstanding Issues

There are no outstanding issues.

10.  Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved

Julie Newman, Director of Law, Governance and Safer Communities, Council House,

Page 1



Coventry
Wednesday, 25 February 2026
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is

Carolyn Sinclair / Tom Robinson carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk /
tom.robinson@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillors P Akhtar, R Bailey, L Harvard (Chair), T Jandu, R Lakha,
G Lloyd, K Maton (Deputy Chair), J McNicholas and M Mutton

By invitation: Councillor N Akhtar

Carolyn Sinclair / Tom Robinson
carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk / tom.robinson@coventry.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda Item 4

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Planning Committee held at 2.00 pm on Thursday, 18
December 2025

Present:
Members: Councillor L Harvard (Chair)

Councillor P Akhtar
Councillor R Bailey
Councillor R Lakha
Councillor G Lloyd
Councillor K Maton
Councillor J McNicholas
Councillor M Mutton

Other Members: Councillor N Akhtar (Cabinet Member for Housing and
Communities)

Employees (by Service Area):

Highways and Transport N Benison, L Forward, A Le Marinel, B Malin
Innovation C Knight (Director)
Law and Governance O Aremu, T Robinson, C Sinclair

Planning and Regulation L D’Onofrio, G Goodman, A Lynch, E Spandley, O Williams

Apologies: Councillor T Jandu

Public Business
44, Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
45, Members Declarations of Contact on Planning Applications

The Members named declared contacts on the following application as indicated:

Application No. Councillor | From
Application All Applicants and local
PL/2025/0001922/FULM - Land Members residents

Southeast of Shilton Lane, South
and Southeast of Lentons Lane

Application Councillor | Objectors
PL/2025/0001852/PAEC — 1 — 65 L Harvard
Ferrers Close

46. Minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2025

—1-

Page 3



47.

48.

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2025 were agreed and signed as a
true record.

Late Representations

The Committee noted a tabled report which summarised late representations and
responses on the following:

Application Site Minute
PL/2025/0001922/FULM | Land South East of Shilton Lane and 48

South and South East of Lentons Lane
PL/2025/0001978/FUL | 118 Alpine Rise 49
PL/2025/0001852/PAEC | 1-65 Ferrers Close 51

PL/2025/0001922/FULM - Land South East of Shilton Lane, South And South

East of Lentons Lane

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Lead for Planning for a solar
farm development including solar arrays, control buildings and associated
infrastructure, internal access roads, landscaping and associated development.
The application was recommended for approval.

The Late Representation report included updates to consultee and neighbourhood
responses, clarifications to the application proposal section of the report, and an
additional two conditions: one from the Canal and River Trust relating to the
landscape planting scheme and another to the transformer station relating to its
location. Lastly, the recommendation was amended to include granting delegated
authority to the Strategic Lead for Planning in consultation with the Chair of the
Planning Committee.

Nine registered speakers, including Councillor E Ruane, a Henley Ward Councillor
who sent in a statement, Councillor J Gardiner, and Councillor M Lapsa spoke in
respect of their objections. The agent attended the meeting and spoke in support
of the application.

RESOLVED:

1) That planning permission be granted in respect of Application
PL/2025/0001922/FULM for the part of the scheme within Coventry’s
administrative boundary, subject to conditions; including the
amended conditions (relating to the Canal and River Trust and the
Transformer Station) as set out in the Late Representations; and
delegates authority to the Strategic Lead for Planning, following
consultation with the Chair of Planning Committee, to approve any
additional conditions or any amendments to these conditions, which
are considered necessary.

2) That, following consultation with the Chair of Planning Committee, the
following additional conditions be included:

e The community benefit fund has a managed delivery.

—2_

Page 4



49.

50.

51.

e Site security measures be regularly reviewed.
PL/2025/0001978/FUL - 118 Alpine Rise

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Lead for Planning for the
conversion of residential property (Use Class C3a) to children's residential care
home (Use Class C2) for up to three children. The application was recommended
for approval.

The Late Representation report included an update to Children’s Services
consultee response to the application stating they had no objection. Secondly, it
highlighted the raising of a petition expressing residents’ concerns.

The Committee considered the petition objecting to the application bearing 64
signatures sponsored by Councillor J Blundell, a Wainbody Ward Councillor.
Councillor Blundell spoke in respect of the petition and his own objections
alongside Councillor M Heaven, a Wainbody Ward Councillor, and 1 other
registered speaker. The applicant had been invited to the meeting but was not in
attendance.

Following discussion, Members agreed that, in light of a Member's question about
the operation of the site, the application be deferred to a later meeting.

RESOLVED that planning permission for Application PL/2025/0001978/FUL
be deferred for the reason stated.

PL/2024/0000976/FUL - Loop Line Humber Avenue

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Lead for Planning for the
erection of 4 dwellings within the former railway land/disused Coventry Loop Line
to the south of Humber Avenue including associated access and landscaping
works. The application was recommended for approval.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted in respect of Application
PL/2024/0000976/FUL subject to conditions.

PL/2025/0001852/PAEC -1 - 65 Ferrers Close

The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Lead for Planning for a prior
approval application for proposed installation of telecommunications base station
comprising 20m monopole supporting 9no. antennas and 2no. dishes with wrap-
around cabinet at the base, together with 6no. equipment cabinets and ancillary
development hereto. The application was recommended for approval.

The Late Representation report included an amendment to condition 2 to include
anti-graffiti paint.

Three registered speakers, including Councillor G Ridley, a Westwood Ward

Councillor, spoke in respect of their objections. The agent sent in a statement in
support of the application.

Page 5



Following consideration of the report, the Late Representations report and matters
raised at the meeting, Members considered that the application site was
unsuitable and the streetscene would be negatively impacted.

RESOLVED that planning permission be refused in respect of Application
PL/2025/0001852/PAEC for the reasons stated.

52. Outstanding Issues
There were no outstanding issues.

53. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved

(Meeting closed at 6.25 pm)

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 6

Planning Committee Report

Planning Ref: PL/2024/0002270/FULM

Site: Allesley Hotel Birmingham Road, Allesley, CV5 9GT

Ward: Bablake

Proposal: Demolition of the former Allesley Hotel and the construction of

55 residential dwellings, with access sought from Birmingham
Road; and the erection of a double garage to the rear of No.
85 Birmingham Road; and associated works.

Case Officer: Ayesha Saleem

INTRODUCTION

This application proposes the demolition of the existing Allesley Hotel and erection of 55 new
residential dwellings with access from Birmingham Road and the erection of a double garage
to the rear of No. 85 Birmingham Road. This is an allocated housing site in the emerging
Local Plan and the proposals are considered to be acceptable in principle.

The site extends to approximately 1.9ha and currently comprises a vacant hotel building, a
disusedcar park and existing vegetation. The site lies within the Allesley Village Conservation
Area.

The application has been referred to planning committee as more than 5 letters of objections
have been received.

RECOMMENDATION

Planning Committee are recommended to delegate the grant of planning permission to the
Strategic Lead for Planning subject to conditions and the completion of a S106 Legal
Agreement to secure the contributions summarised in this report and for the Strategic Lead
for Planningtoagree anynecessaryamendments to the S106 Legal Agreementand Planning
Conditions in consultation with the Chair.

REASON FOR DECISION

The proposed developmentis considered to be acceptable in principle for 55 open market
dwellings on a brownfield site and will not result in any significant impact upon the
Conservation Area, listed heritage assets, neighbour amenity, highway safety, ecology, or
infrastructure, subject to relevant conditions and contributions. The reason for Coventry City
Council granting planning permission is because the development is in accordance with:
Policies DS1,DS3, H1, H3, H4, H9, GE1, GE3, GE4, DE1,HE2, AC1, AC2, AC3,AC4, EM1,
EM2, EM3, EM4, EM5 and EM7 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, together with the aims of
the NPPF.

SITE DESCRIPTION
The site was formerly the Allesley Hotel, a 90-bed hotel and conferencing facility with
extensive grounds and car parking.

The application site is located in Allesley Village, northwest of Coventry City Centre. The site
itself measures 1.9ha and currently comprises a now disused hotel with associated parking
and gardens. The topography of the site slopes from northeast to southwest.

Page 7



To the north of the site is Birmingham Road being the main thoroughfare through the village,
which accommodates predominantly residential properties mixed with business outlets. South
of the site is the A4114 Pickford Way connecting the west of Coventry to the A45. Just south
of the A4114 is Allesley Park and play area with a bridged pedestrian access over the A4114
accessible just east of the site entrance. The east and west are both bound by existing
residential properties.

The application site contains a number of TPO trees and is located within Allesley Village
Conservation Area. Birmingham Road is north of the site has a number of Listed buildings.

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

The proposed layoutcomprises of 55 dwellingsin the form of one 3 storey apartment block
and 2/ 2.5 storey dwellings. The mix for the site is as follows:

e 1 bed- 9 dwellings

e 2 beds- 20 dwellings

e 3 beds- 19 dwellings
o
[ J

4 beds- 6 dwellings

5 beds- 1 dwelling
The layoutprovides a three-storey apartment block fronting Birmingham Road. The dwellings
vary in width andare configuredin a range of typologies. These vary from detached and semi-
detached houses to short terrace runs.

Car and cycle parking and bin storage areas have been proposed for each of the units.

A double garage is proposed to the rear of No 85 Birmingham Road measuring circa 6.07
metres by 6.08 metres and a height of 5.09 metres designed in a gable roof.

A new vehicular and pedestrian access will be provided off Birmingham Road. To the
southern boundary fronting Pickford Way is to be a proposed 2.4-metre-high acoustic barrier.

The remainder of the site will be in the form of green infrastructure comprising a mixture of
existinggrassland, tree belts and hedgerows, butalsonow incorporating drainage attenuation
basin and local area of play. There will be a loss of protected trees on the site to facilitate the
development, which will be discussed in further detail below.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

There is extensive planning history relatingthe former hotel use,which isnotrelevantto these
proposals.

With regards to planning enforcementhistory the Council served a stop notice on the use of
the hotel as a hostel.

POLICY

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2024. The NPPF sets out the
Government’splanningpoliciesfor England and how these are expected to be applied. It sets
outthe Government’'s requirementsfor the planning systemonly to the extent that is relevant,
proportionate and necessary to do so. The NPPF increases the focus on achieving high

Page 8



quality design and states that it is “fundamental to what the planning and development
process should achieve”.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) adds further context to the NPPF andit is
intended that the two documents are read together.

Local Policy Guidance

The currentlocal policy is provided within the Coventry Local Plan 2017, which was adopted
by Coventry City Council on 61" December 2017. Relevantpolicy relating to this application
is:

Policy DS1: Overall Development Needs

Policy DS3: Sustainable Development Policy

Policy DS4: (Part A) — General Masterplan Principles

Policy H1: Housing Land Requirements

Policy H3: Provision of New Housing

Policy H4: Securing a Mix of Housing

Policy H6: Affordable Housing

Policy H9: Residential Density

Policy GE1 Green Infrastructure

Policy GE3: Biodiversity, Geological, Landscape and Archaeological Conservation

Policy GE4: Tree Protection

Policy DE1 Ensuring High Quality Design

Policy HE1 Conservation Areas

Policy HE2:
Policy AC1:
Policy AC2:
Policy AC3:
Policy AC4:
Policy AC5:

Policy EM1

Policy EM5

Conservation and Heritage Assets
Accessible Transport Network
Road Network

Demand Management

Walking and Cycling

Bus and Rapid Transit

: Planning for Climate Change Adaptation
Policy EM2:
Policy EM3:
Policy EM4:

Building Standards Policy
Renewable Energy Generation Policy
Flood Risk Management Policy

: Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
Policy EM6:
Policy EM7:

Redevelopment of Previously Developed Land
Air Quality

Policy IM1: Developer Contributions for Infrastructure

Emerging Local Policy Guidance - Local Plan Review submitted to Planning
Inspectorate for examination on 9th September 2025.

The Local Plan review is currently at Examination. Relevantemerging policy relating to this
application is:

Policy DS3: Sustainable Development Policy

Policy DS4: (Part A) — General Masterplan Principles

Policy H1: Housing Land Requirements

Policy H2: Housing Allocations (H2:33)

Policy H3: Provision of New Housing

Policy H4: Securing a Mix of Housing

Page 9



Policy H6: Affordable Housing
Policy H9: Residential Density
Policy GE1 Green Infrastructure

Policy GE3:
Policy GE4:
Policy DE1:
Policy DE2:

Biodiversity, Geological and Landscape Conservation
Tree Protection

Ensuring High Quality Design

Delivering High Quality Places

Policy HE1 Conservation Areas

Policy HE2:
Policy HEA4:
Policy AC1:
Policy AC2:
Policy AC3:
Policy AC4:
Policy AC5:
Policy EM1:
Policy EM2:
Policy EM4:
Policy EM5:
Policy EM6:
Policy EM7:

Conservation and Heritage Assets

Archaeology

Accessible Transport Network

Road Network

Demand Management

Active Transport Provision including Walking, Cycling and Micro Mobility
Bus, Demand Response Transit and Rapid Transit
Planning for Climate Change Adaptation

Building Standards

Flood Risk Management

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
Redevelopment of Previously Developed Land

Air Quality

Policy EM11: Energy Infrastructure

Policy EM13: Overheating in new buildings

Policy EM15: Noise

Policy IM1: Developer Contributions for Infrastructure

Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD):
SPD Design Guidelines for New Residential Development
SPD Delivering a More Sustainable City

SPD Coventry Connected

SPD Air Quality

SPD Energy

SPD Trees and Development Guidance

CONSULTATION

Obijections received from:

Trees

Urban Design
Conservation
Highways

No objections subject to conditions and informatives received from: -
o Affordable Housing

Ecology

Page 10

Archaeology

Environmental Protection
The Local Lead Flood Authority



e NHSICB

e NHS Trust

e Education

e Streetscene & Greenspace

e Sport

e Economic Development Services
West Midlands Fire Service
West Midlands Police

Neighbour consultation
Notification letters were initially sent out to neighbouring houses, and two site notices were
displayed on the 11th of December 2025, and a press notice was posted.

In total we have received 8 comments of which 6 are objections, 1 letter of support and 1
comment.

The six letters of objection have been received, raising the following material planning
considerations:
a) Plots 1-9, will significantly impact on privacy & harmful overlooking
b) The access via Pickford way previously refused should be reviewed- This would
drastically reduce the impact of additional traffic on the neighbourhood
c) Concerns regarding the design of the dwellings within the Conservation Area
d) 25% affordable should be provided on site
e) The buildings to front of Birmingham Road should be retained.
f) Impact upon traffic and congestion
g) Insufficient parking provided
h) Highways safety concerns
i) Traffic pollution will be detrimental to the health of residents.
j) Existing infrastructure not able to cope with more housing
k) Measures to ensure that the existing Swift nests on site remain available to these
threatened birds

The non-material planning consideration raised is as follows, these cannot be given due
consideration in the planning process:
[) Thisis an ideal site for a new medical centre

One letter of support was received regarding the redevelopment of the Allesley hotel site.

Following amendments that were submitted residents were consulted a further 14 days, 4
objections were received, raising the following material planning considerations:
m) Direct overlooking and loss of privacy from top floor flats on Birmingham Road
n) The noise impact assessment does not adequately consider the nature of the
surrounding properties, which are listed and more fragile than normal properties
o) Concern regarding the design of the frontage of the building facing onto the
Birmingham Road
p) Loss of Trees
g) Housing mix not acceptable
r) Not a suitable residential environment for future occupiers

Page 11



s) Highway safety concerns

One letter of support has been received by the Allesley and Coundon Wedge Conservation
Society regarding the redevelopment of the Allesley hotel site and bringing it back into
meaningful use, removing an eyesore and a health and safety hazard, is more favourable
than the preservation of Allesley House.

A further 45 letters of support have been received raising the following:
t) Existing buildings are getting vandalised/ fires
u) Redevelopmentis needed
v) The proposals are in keeping with Conservation Area

With regards to these support representations, 14 of these representations were received
from addresses within 1.8 miles of the application site.

APPRAISAL

The main issuesin determiningthisapplication are principle of development, housing mixand
density, affordable housing, the impact upon the character of the area and heritage assets,
archaeology, the impact upon neighbouring amenity, highway considerations, ecology and
biodiversity, trees, drainage andfloodrisk, air quality, noise,contaminatedland, infrastructure
requirements and developer contributions, viability and equality implications.

Principle of development

Based on the provisions of the December 2024 NPPF the Councilis able to demonstrate a
5.91 year housing land supply as of 31st March 2025. Whilst the Council is able to
demonstrate a healthy supply of homes, the overarching aims to of the NPPF and indeed the
adopted Local Plan is to deliver additional dwellings, indeed windfall sites within the housing
trajectory are key to maintaining an adequate supply of homes.

Within the currentLocal Plan the application site is notallocated, howeverunderthe emerging
Local Plan Policy H2:33, this site is an allocated housing site for 48 dwellings. Policy H2:33,
states that any application should take into accountretention and enhancement of adjacent
listed buildings and heritage assets and the Allesley Village Conservation Area that the site
is within. Consideration is needed of the Allesley Bypass dual carriageway that runs along
the south of the site. The fact the site is due to be allocated soon can be afforded weight.

As the site is not currently allocated for housing, Policy H3 of the adopted Local Plan is
relevantas it relates to the provision of new housing and requires sites and developments to
have safe and appropriate access and provide a quality living environment for future
occupiers which does not have contaminants, noise and air quality issues.

The site meets the criterion set outin H3 given thatthe site is in a highly sustainable location
well served by transport links to the city centre, Birmingham Road District Centre and
surrounding amenities. Therefore, the principle of residential development of the site is
accepted. The issues relating highway safety concerns, loss of trees and quality of living
environment of future occupiers will be dealt with later in the report.

Housing mix and density

Page 12



The Coventry and Warwickshire Housing & Economic DevelopmentNeeds Assessment 2022
(HEDNA) provides the latest housing figures. The HEDNA suggests that the mix of market
housing that should be provided in Coventry is 10% 1-beds, 40% 2- beds, 40% 3-beds and
10% 4-beds. These figuresare intended to be used as a monitoringtool across the city rather
than to be applied rigidly to all individual development sites. The figures should also be
applied considering the existing housing mix in the locality and gaps within this; the site
location and characteristics; and the local need. The application overprovides for 1-bedroom
flats and provides fewer 2 and 3-bedroom houses than recommended by the HEDNA. The
breakdown is as follows:

e 1 bed- 9 dwellings (16%)

e 2 beds- 20 dwellings (36%)

e 3 beds- 19 dwellings (34%)

e 4 beds- 6 dwellings (12%)

e 5beds- 1 dwelling (2%)

The applicanthas now amended the scheme to replace the 9-unitsouthern apartmentblock
with 4, 3-bedroom, 2.5 storey houses. This is an improvement to the initial scheme where
there was a high proportion of 1 bed units. Furthermore, the replacement of the southem
apartment block with the four houses would notadversely impact the viability of the scheme.
It is accepted that the northern apartment block is essential on the frontage of Birmingham
Road. Therefore, officers are of the view that the proposed mix set out within the information
provided is now deemed to be acceptable and has positive weightwithin the planning balance
complying to Policy H4 of the Coventry Local Plan.

Adopted Local Plan Policy H9 (Residential Density) states a minimum netdensity is required
of 35 dwellings per hectare, which would equate to 56 dwellings for the 1.9ha area if one
excludes the required 15% open space. The proposed 55 dwellings provide a density of 34
dwellings per hectare. The draft allocation for this site in the emerging local plan is 48
dwellings; the proposed number of dwellings is a marginal increase from the draft allocation.
Therefore, it is considered that the proposed housing mix is acceptable and compliant with
Policy H9 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Affordable Housing

In terms of affordable housing provision,the applicantindicatesthatthis application is exempt
through the vacant building credit given the proposed floorspace of the 55 housesis less than
the existinghotel building. Thefloorspace of the existingbuildingis 8395m2 and officers have
calculated the proposed floorspace of the 55 residential dwellings equatesto 5139m2. The
Planning Practice Guidance and paragraph 65 of the NPPF provide an incentive for
brownfield development on sites containing vacant buildings and says where a vacant
buildingisbroughtback into anylawfuluse oris demolishedto be replaced by a new building,
the developer should be offered a financial credit equivalentto the existing gross floorspace
of relevant vacant buildings when any affordable housing contribution is calculated. This is
subject to it having been demonstrated that the buildings have been vacantfor more than 12
months but that they have not been abandoned. Local Plan Policy H6 and the Affordable
Housing SPD support this.

Page 13



The PPG states that when LPAs are deciding whether a use has been abandoned, they
should accountfor the condition of the property, the period of non-use, whetherthere is an
intervening use, and any evidence regarding the owner’sintention. The PPG goes onto say
that LPAs should also have regard to the intention of national policy, which is to incentivise
brownfield development and therefore it may be appropriate for authorities to consider
whether the building has been made vacant for the sole purposes of re-development or
whetherthe building is covered by an extant or recently expired planning permission for the
same or substantially the same development.

The applicanthas confirmed thatthe former hotel has been vacantfor more than 12 months,
the hotel was used as temporary accommodation for the homeless and asylum seekers
between 2018 and 2022. The Allesley Hotel was closed in 2022 following enforcement action
by the Council and has remained vacant since. It was not made vacantin order to facilitate
redevelopment of the site. Duringthis period, the building hasfellinto a state of disrepair, with
two large fires reported in February and May 2024, due to the extent of the damage to the
building as a result of these fires the building is beyond repair and is not capable of
redevelopment.

The applicanthas also submitted a Structural survey and condition report. The report confirms
that the condition of the building is such that it is beyond repair, and the most appropriate
outcome would be to demolish.

In our view the VacantBuilding Creditis accepted on balance and the applicanthas provided
sufficientinformation in supportof this position, thus the proposal is compliantto Policy H6 of
the Coventry Local Plan.

Impact upon the character of the area and heritage assets

The massing of the proposed development will predominantly be delivered with two storey
and two and half storey dwellings which is reflective of the predominant scale found within
the locality, with limited intervals of tall massing in the form of the three storey apartment
blocks offered in response the conservation area and frontage facingon to BirminghamRoad
which would be acceptable.

Initially the Conservation officer raised concerns in relation to the design of the apartment
block (Plot 1-9) fronting BirminghamRoad as the building has a Georgian style frontage rather
than Tudorbethan, which the current building is.

The agent submitted amendments to the design of the three-storey apartment block (Plot 1-
9) fronting Birmingham Road, in which the design of the proposed building now includes hung
tiles, and oriel window, and mock tudor panelling, which is considered to be acceptable.

Notwithstanding the above changes the Conservation Officer has requested thatthe creating
a separation between the buildings has somehow made the tudorbethan building
unconvincing. The Conservation officer requested that instead the heightof the building is
increased and the gap between the two buildings is removed and also suggested projecting
the building by a single or half brick, so that the buildingline is slightly staggered, this would
add further articulation to the frontages.

Page 14



The scheme has not been amended in line with the Conservation comments, however
planning officers consider that the current proposals does not warrant a refusal. On balance
the amended proposed design is considered to be an improvement on the existing, that
recalls the history of the site, withoutbeing pastiche, and willresultin an enhancementto the
Allesley Village Conservation Area.

The design of the dwellings and proposed double garage has made positive reference to the
forms found within the Ancient Arden Character Area offering simple gable forms. The
proposed style and appearance of the properties to the southern half of the site are
consideredto be fairly standard fora housebuilderbuton balance are considered acceptable.

The acoustic barrier fronting Pickford way is to be 2.4 metres high set back within the tree
line, thus is not considered to be prominentto Pickford Way and is to have an acceptable
impact upon the visual amenity of this streetscene.

Overall, in design terms it is considered that the design of the dwellings is considered to be
acceptable and will complementthe setting of the nearby listed buildings and Allesley Village
Conservation Area, thus the proposals are compliant with policies DE1 and HE2 of the
Coventry Local Plan 2017.

There is not considered to be harm caused to the heritage assets, and there are also public
benefits of the schemeinsofaras a high-quality scheme will be created to enhance the setting
of the locally listed building. The scheme will also add 55 quality homes which will contribute
to the city’s housing stock.

Archaeology

The application is for the demolition of the post-medieval and early 20th century Allesley
House Hotel and the development of a substantial part of the back plots of Allesley, which
would have originally lay behind the medieval village frontage and Allesley Park, a medieval
deer park, the boundary of which survived into the 19th century.

The proposed demolition is within Allesley Village Conservation Area and Allesley Village
Historic Core Archaeological ConstraintArea. The area for developmentis centred around
the former Allesley hotel and encompasses the surrounding open areas to the east, west and
rear up to Pickford Way. Along Birmingham Road to the east, west and north of the proposed
development are several listed buildings and locally listed buildings, dating as early as 16th
century.

Approximately circa 450m from the southern boundary of the area is also scheduled
monument Motte Castel. This is slightly raised at 150m aOD compared to the site of the hotel
at 103m aOD. As the area already contains the hotel, it is unlikely that the visual from the
monument will be largely affected.

It should however be noted thatthere is currently a mature tree line boundingthe south of the
site along the A4114 Pickford way. This along with the land drop of the site helps shield the
built-up area maintainingnatural views. The plans suggestthis will be maintained.Itis advised
for integrity of the views especially from the raised scheduled monumentthatthis tree line is

Page 15



maintained and even advance to include evergreen species so that the site is shielded year-
round.

In respect of the hotel, parts date back to the early 19th century or earlier and are
characterised by Tudor Revival style northern frontage thoughtto be part of the renovations
made by William lliffe during his ownership of the property. The frontage is considered to be
an important part of the appearance of the Conservation area.

A Desk-Based Assessment (DBA) for the Archaeology and Built Heritage by Pegasus Group
was produced prior to this consultation. This included a Historic Environment Record (HER)
search anddetails the historic background andrisk to archaeology. The assessment confims
limited potential for Prehistoric and Roman remains although a single spot find of a Roman
coin is noted.

There is significant potential for medieval and post-medieval archaeological remains that
could inform the character of the medieval settlement and its settings. This could further
inform research objectives as defined in the West Midlands Research Framework for the
medieval period especially in relation to Urban settlements. Due to the archaeological
potential and implications, further archaeological investigation is needed to assess the
presence, nature, character and preservation of archaeological remains. A written scheme of
investigation is required detailing a programme of archaeological evaluation which may be
followed by further archaeological works dependenton the results. Archaeology officers have
no objections subiject to this being conditioned.

Impact upon neighbouring amenity

Whilst the visual appearance and impact of the development proposal is set out in the
preceding section of this report, regard has also duly been given to the living environment for
existing and future occupiers.

Considering the prospective occupiers of the dwellings, the Nationally Described Space
Standards (NDSS) (2016), assists in providing an indication of the dimensions of dwellings.
CCC’s New Residential Design Guide SPD, adopted 2023, also sets out the expectation for
amenity space for residential dwellings. In this case all eight units far exceed the intemal
dimensions for dwellings, the provision of amenity space also meets and exceeds the local
requirements set out in the SPD. The quality of the development and the layout is also
deemed conducive to providing quality living accommodation which will make a positive, and
modest contribution to the city’s market housing stock.

A number of objections have been received from surrounding residents indicating the
development of the site will give rise to noise, overlooking and loss of privacy issues. The
Council’'s adopted Residential Design Guide adopted a 12m separation distance (rear to
side), and 20m (rear to rear) at first floor window level.

No 83 Birmingham Road is located west to the Proposed apartment block for Plots 1-9 at a
separation distance of circa 6.4 metres. No 83 Birmingham Road have a number of windows
to the side elevation that accommodate habitable rooms. On the side elevation of the
apartment block fronting thisdwellingthere are two windows on the side elevation at first floor
level and second floor level, these can be conditioned to be obscure glazed to avoid any

Page 16



harmful overlooking as these are secondary windows to the living room/kitchen area to Plots
6 and 9. The proposed apartment block has a rear wing which accommodated Plots 1, 4 and
7, there are bathroom and kitchen windows on the side elevation of this rear wing at all three
levels. This rear wingis to be located circa 20.3 metres from No 83 Birmingham Road; thisis
an acceptable relationship given the separation distance; thus, the proposed windows are not
considered to cause harmful overlooking or loss of privacy.

Adjacent, North to the proposed apartment block for Plots 1-9 are dwellings No 64
Birmingham Road, No 72 Birmingham Road and No 1 Butchers Lane which are to be located
at a minimum distance of circa 20.0 metres. This relationship is considered to be acceptable
and there are no concerns in relation to loss of privacy or harmful overlooking given the
separation distance.

No 79 Birmingham Road is located east to the proposed apartment block at a separation
distance of circa 12.9 metres and the rear wingon No 79 Birmingham Road is at a distance
of 25.8 metres. The current separation distance between No 79 Birmingham Road and
Allesley Hotel is 5.2 metres. There are two windows atfirst floor level on the closest side wall
on No 79 Birmingham Road, which both accommodate bedrooms and the window closestto
the rear is a secondary window. A tree is to be planted to ensure that privacy and outlook is
protected. The proposed windows on the side elevation are not considered to have a
detrimental impact upon the amenity of this occupier with regards to harmful overlooking or
loss of privacy. Plot 10 is to be located circa 8.03 metres away from rear wing, there are no
windows within the rear wing, thus this distance is considered to be acceptable.

Proposed Plots 10 and 11 are located circa 20.0 metres from the rear end of No 77
Birmingham Road and are to have 10.9 metre rear garden depths. This relationship is
considered to be acceptable.

Harry Caplan House is located west to the application site, Plots 22, 23 and 24 are proposed
to be located to the rear of Harry Caplan House with a separation distance of circa 22.9
metres, which is considered to be an acceptable relationship.

The proposed garage is located to the rear of Nos 85 and 87 Birmingham Road at distance
of circa 9.3 metres to the rear of these dwellings. Given the scale and position the garage it
is not considered to overbear the amenity of these occupiers.

Not all the dwellings achieve atleast 10 metres in rear garden depth, 12.0 metres side to rear
relationship and 20 metres from habitable to habitable. However, a concerning relationship is
between Plots 50 to 48 which have a separation distance of circa 8.1 metres; there are
concerns with outlook of plot 48 and level changes. Looking at the finished floor levels plot
48 is circa 1.0 metre lowerthan Plot 50 so this would need a minimum separation distance of
14.0 metres to the blank two storey side rather than the standard 12.0 metres. On balance
the relationship of the dwellings is considered to be satisfactory for future occupiers and gives
neutral weightwithin the planning balance in compliance to Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local
Plan.

Highways

Page 17



The applicants, in support of the application, have undertaken a transport assessment. The
developmentis anticipated to generate 28 two-way vehicle trips in the AM Peak and 27 in the
PM peak. This equates to less than one trip every two minutes, which will have a negligible
impact on the capacity of the local highway network. In comparison to the fallback position
associated with the site’s previous use as a hotel, the developmentis anticipated to generate
fiveless tripsinthe AM peak andtwelve less trips in the peak. A junction capacity assessment
of the proposed site access junction has demonstrated that the junction operates well within
capacity in the future year scenario.

The transport assessment has not been updated to reflect the updated layout and quantum
of development. The Local Highway Authority have since raised this as a concern; however,
the Local Planning Authority cannot request this so late in the process.

Vehicularaccess has been designed and is shown from Birmingham Road utilisinga 5.5m
wide carriageway. The access and visibility splays have been assessed, and Local Highway
Authority officers have confirmed that they have no objection in relation to this and therefore
the visibility splays are acceptable.

The Local Highway Authority initially had concerns with the layout, it was suggested that the
layout is reconsidered with more use of shared spaces, variations in road geometry and
many more ways at reducing traffic speeds down to 20mph or less. The proposed layout
was amended, and the new layout is considered to be acceptable subject to any problems
identified within the Road Safety Audit being addressed satisfactorily.

Two parking spaces per dwelling (2+ bedrooms) are proposed and 1 parking space per 1 bed
dwelling. The proposed car parking is acceptable and complies with the Appendix 5 of the
Coventry Connected SPD.

A Travel Plan was submitted and has been assessed. This would need to be updated
and would be conditioned.

The Local Highway Authority have objected to the proposals as an acceptable refuse vehicle
tracking, and a stage 1 Road Safety Audit have not been submitted in support of the
application. The applicants are yet to submit this, and this will be reported in the late
representations. This work is underway and until itis established thatthe internal layout, site
access arrangement, proposed pedestrian crossing along Birmingham Road and vehicle
tracking are safe and suitable, there remains a highway objection to the proposal.

Ecology and Biodiversity

An Ecological Impact Assessment was submitted in support of the application. The report
states that Giant hogweed and yellow archangel is present on site, these are schedule 9
invasive species and therefore an INNS report is required. Furthermore, an updated survey
to determine the spread of giant hogweed will be conducted prior to construction, given a
significant period of time will have elapsed. This could be conditioned.

Clearance of vegetation and building demolition during the nesting bird season (taken to be

March to August, though with some seasonal and species variations) would risk damaging or
destroying active birds’ nests. To preventthis, clearance of vegetation and building demolition

Page 18



would be undertaken outside of the nesting bird season. If this isn’t possible, a check of
vegetation to be cleared would be undertaken within 24 hrs of the clearance taking place. If
any active birds’ nests were discovered, they would be leftin place with a buffer of vegetation
surrounding them until such time as the young had fledged or the nest was no longer active.
This would be conditioned.

Proposals include the demolition, resulting in the loss of a bat roosting site. Bat roosts are
legally protected and therefore a European Protected Species Licence (EPSL) from Natural
England (NE) must be in place to legitimise the works to these buildings, prior to work
commencing. A mitigation and compensation within the EPSL must be agreed with NE to
minimise impacts to roosting bats underthe Scheme. As per the bat mitigation guidelines, the
timing and type of compensation is flexible due to the Site supporting a non-breeding day
roost. Working methods are likely to include removal of the roof prior to work commencing to
reduce the suitability for roosting bats due to the limitations of safe internal access.
Compensation can include eitherbespoke bat features within the new buildings, orintegrated
bat boxes in the external walls. This would be conditioned.

Trees categorised as PRF (preliminary roost features) that are being retained will require a
bufferzone implementing in line with the root protection area (RPA) of the tree which will be
denoted using Heras fencing. For works inside the RPA of the tree(s), or for those PRF trees
requiring removal or pruning, an inspection immediately priorto work commencing (the same
morning) will be necessary. Those PRF‘s which are accessible and can be fully inspected,
can also be inspected and blocked in advance of works commencing. However, this will be
conductedas close to the work commencing as reasonably practicable. To ensurenonetloss
of roosting features, bat boxes will also need to be installed on nearby retained trees in the
event that features are blocked in advance of works commencing. For trees with features
which are not accessible, these will be sectionally felled and inspected ones on the ground.
If they cannot be fully inspected, they will be leftin situ for 24 hoursto allow for any bats (if
present) to disperse. Again, this would be conditioned.

Fence panelling associated with residential developments will reduce accessibility to foraging
habitats for hedgehogs. Therefore, hedgehog access points (at least 13x13cm gaps) will be
created within garden fences to prevent them from forming a barrier to the movement of
hedgehogs within and through the Site. The gaps will need to be between properties as well
as on the Site boundary to create a network of gardens in which the hedgehogs can forage.
This has been placed in the form of a condition to ensure that this is implemented.

The woodland and scrub with the Application Site provide suitable habitats for foraging,
commuting and sett creation. Dense bramble scrub prevented full accessibility across parts
of the Application Site, howeverthere were no notable mammal pathwaystraversing the scrub
and enough of the Site was accessible to conduct an assessment. Two mammal holes
indicative of badger were recorded within the woodland in the north of the Site. Following a
two-week period of camera trap monitoring of the two mammals, both were assessed to not
be in use by badger, therefore active badger setts are considered absentfrom the Application
Site. There remains the transientrisk of badger presence given the suitability of the habitats
for foraging and commuting. Therefore, badger within the Application Site are considered to
be of Site nature conservation importance. To make sure thatno new badger setts have been
created a walkover survey is required pre-commencement. This would also be conditioned.

Page 19



A biodiversity impact assessment (BIA) has been undertaken forthe Scheme. This involves
making a comparison between the biodiversity value of habitats present within the Site prior
to development (i.e. the ‘baseline’) and the biodiversity value of habitats following the
completion of the Scheme (i.e. ‘post development’). The biodiversity value of the Site is 14.88
units of Area based habitats and Post development; the Scheme would resultin the loss of -
6.72 units of Area based units. This equates to a -45.18% loss.

The applicanthas agreed to make a paymentto fully compensate for Biodiversity Loss and
to provide the statutory 10% gain.

The Council’'s Ecologist has been consulted and raise no objections to the proposed
development A series of conditions have been appended to the decision in relation to nesting
birds, bat roost, lighting, Badger Walk over survey, Hedgehog enhancement, biodiversity
features, INNS species, construction environmental management plan and habitat
management and monitoring plan

Trees

The site lies within the Allesley Village Conservation Area where it is furnished with mature
trees some of which are original specimens such as the Plane (TPO T17) and group Yew and
Cedar trees (TPO G6 and G5) etc which provide the pleasantbosky appearan ce within this
verdant urban setting. Many of the trees afford addition protection from their Conservation
Area designation status as they form towards ‘City of Coventry (BirminghamRoad No.1) Tree
Preservation Order 1967’

The application site consists of approximately 15 TPO Trees (T2, T3, T4, T5, T6, T7, T8,
T11, T13, T16, T17, T20, T22, T23 and T24) and 4 Tree Groups (G2, G4, G5 and G6).

In this case the applicants submitted an arboricultural implication study, arboricultural
demolition statement, CAVAT assessment of TPO and non TPO trees, tree protection and
constraint plans.

The proposal will involve the removal of both TPO and Conservation trees mainly Category
B and C Trees are to be removed. The Agenthas confirmedthatthere are three main reasons
that these trees will be removed, due to demolition, due to land remediation and to
accommodate the proposed layout.

The Tree officers do not agree to all of the BS5837 U and C categories as described within
the Arboricultural Implication Study.

The Tree officers requested the retention of the TPO group closest to the Allesley Hotel.

The applicant submitted an arboricultural demolition statement, which mentions that in a
numberof locations, mostly notably aroundtrees T27, G13, G14, G15, T29 and, T30 the main
buildingandretainingwall are; eitherinfluencing the spread of roots or, the trunks are growing
againstthe structurers to such an extentthat, removal will damage the full root hierarchy and
leave the trees unstable and atrisk of premature collapse. In particular G13 — yew will be left

Page 20



exposed and elevated with no protection for soil or roots, resultingin the risk of premature
collapse.

A CAVAT assessment for the following TPO trees T6 (Sycamore), T18 (Ash), T19 (Ash), T24
(Ash), T27 (Holly), T29 (Holly), T30 (Cedar), T32 (Holly), G16 (Yew) & G13 (Yew) has a
cumulative CAVAT value of £853,422.

A CAVAT assessment for the non TPO trees T11 (Yew) and G14 (Ash) has a cumulative
CAVAT value of £187,404.

With regard to the on-site trees, our Tree officer disagrees with the technical evidence that
has been provided, which sought to demonstrate that the TPO trees our tree officer wants to
retain will inevitably be lost during demolition works.

The Trees officerhas confirmed that there willbe noneed to remove anytrees on the grounds
of demolition or land remediation, as alleged within the submitted Arboricultural Demolition
Statement and Demolition Land Remediation Tree Loss Plan. We have experienced such
justifications fortree removals on sites in the past, and there has always a way and methods
around these. The industries standard must be followed ‘BS 5837: 2012 Trees in relation to
design, demolition and construction — Recommendations’ which has a dedicated chapter
(Ch7) on methodology when trees need to be retained.

The Trees officer objects to the removal of these TPO trees and requires the following:

e Retention of the prime TPO trees within the site, which are the remaining TPO Groups G5
and G6 of ‘City of Coventry (Birmingham Road No.3) Tree Preservation Order 1965’, A
revised Dimensioned Tree Protection Plan, illustrating distances between retained trunk
centres and Tree Protection Measures. Officers would want to see the majority of TPO
Groups G5 (x4 Yews, x6 Holly x2 Cedars) and G6 (x4 remaining Yews, 1 Holly) retained,
with a possibility atallowing a few trees from these groups to be removed. Thes Yews are
identified as: G13-B1 to the ACS-Arboricultural Survey Sept ‘24 within the TPO group G5,
plus the Yew and Cedar tree group G16 located closer to Birmingham Road within the
TPO group G6. Some of these historic, native Yew trees are hundreds of years old with
1.2m trunk diameters and qualify as potential veterans. Please note that the original 1965
justification for this TPO, still stands strong.

e A detailed Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) is required for those demolition works
which are within the vicinity of the couple of prime TPO tree groups Root Protection Areas
and Crown Spreads, which we are now only requiring for retentions. The AMS mu st
include a model Site Monitoring Sheet for approval for use

e The CAVAT assessment must include all the trees shown for removal, calculated at the
Full CAVAT Method and to include the spreadsheet which shows the working out.

o Thelandscape plan mustinclude the replacementoftrees accepted forremoval, to include
their full costs, to include their purchase, delivery, planting and maintenance.

The applicant has not agreed to pay the CAVAT contribution, citing viability concerns,
however, the applicant has confirmed that they will pay the BNG offsetting costs of
approximately £210,000, when considering these elements in the round with the viability

Page 21



concerns, the contributions secured via the BNG off-setting together with a comprehensive
landscaping scheme to be secured via condition when weighed in the balance of the wider
material consideration, it is deemed that the balance is tilted in favour of the development in
this particular case.

Officers have conditioned Tree protection measures for the remaining trees on site.

Drainage and Flood Risk
When determining planning applications, Local Planning Authorities should ensure flood risk
is not increased elsewhere and only consider development appropriate in areas at risk of
flooding where, informed by a site-specific flood risk assessment following the Sequental
Test, and if required the Exception Test, it can be demonstrated that:
- Within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest flood
risk unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location; and
- Developmentis appropriately flood resilient and resistant, including safe access and
escape routes where required, and that any residual risk can be safely managed,
including by emergency planning; and it gives priority to the use of sustainable
drainage systems.
Within the consultation, it was suggested that the site is liable to an increased flood risk,
majority of the site lies within Flood Zone 1 and is deemed to be at a low risk of flooding.
However, the very south of the site is within Flood Zone 2 & 3 as Pickford Brook runs west-
east alongthecentral reservation of the A4114 (BirminghamRoad)which islocated due south
of the site. None of the proposed properties or access is located within the flood zone as such
itis not considered that a flooding sequential assessment is required in this instance.

The LLFA raise no objections subject to a condition being appended to the decision securing
full details of the proposed drainage system. As such the proposed development, with this
condition attached accords with Policies EM4 and EM5 of the Local Plan.

Air Quality

An Air Quality Assessment has been submitted in support of this application. Modelled UK-
AIR background concentrations, Defra PCM roadside concentrations, and local air quality
monitoring data have been used to establish baseline air quality at the Site and surrounding
locale. Predicted background concentrations of NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 at the Site and
surrounding locale are all below the relevant AQALs. Local air quality monitoring closest to
the Site also illustrates concentrations below of the annual mean AQAL for NO2 in recent
years.

The total emission ‘damage costs’ of the Proposed Development (sum of NOx and PM2.5
emissions) have been calculated as based on the site generated traffic. Using Defra’s Air
Quality Appraisal Damage Costs Toolkit, the emissions generated have been applied to the
damage costs spreadsheet resultingin the sums of £27,689. Thisis the indicative value of a
package of air quality mitigation measures to offset the real-world impact of emissions from
the Site.

Environmental Protection Officers can confirm that they agree with the findings of the Air
Quality Assessmentwith regards to pollutants and predicted concentrations and agree to the
amount proposed for air quality damage costs.

Page 22



Officers agree with the proposed Type 1 mitigation measures, and to clarify one EV charging
will be required per dwelling and Ultra-low NOx boilers installed. This could be conditioned in
the event of an approval.

Noise
Policy H1 of the Coventry Local Plan states future housing will be designed to create new and
stable communities.

Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan states that new development must provide a high -quality
residential environmentwhich assistsin deliveringurban regeneration or creating sustainable
communities and which overall enhances the built environment. A suitable residential
environmentincludes safe and appropriate access, adequate amenity space and parking
provision and be safe from pollution.

A noise assessment has been submitted. Two noise surveys have been carried outin order
to establish the existing noise environment at the site, during the daytime and night-time
periods, in accordance with current guidance. Road traffic noise from the Pickford Way
(A4114), together with road traffic from Birmingham Road (A649), was dominant for the
maijority of the daytime and nighttime periods across the Site.

The proposed developmentlayout, in conjunction with the embedded mitigation (the acoustic
fence), have been used to create an acoustic model of the Site to predict noise impacts at
PSRsand ESRs. Assumptionshave been made aboutthe details of the embedded mitigation.

With the implementation of the embedded mitigation, external daytime levelsin some gardens
exceeded the recommended level in accordance with BS8233. Therefore, proposed
mitigation measures have been set out to reduce the noise level in outdoor living areas to a
level below 55 dB(A). The embedded mitigation is as follows:

- A 2.4m high acoustic barrier at the southern boundary of the Site; and,

- 1.8m high close boarded fencing around the perimeter dwellings.

- All fences/acoustic barriers should include no perforations and have a minimum

surface density of 15kgm-2

The proposed scheme of mitigation retains the measures described as part of the embedded
mitigation but with some modifications. More specifically,the fencing surrounding the outdoor
living areas of Plot 21 and Plot 22 are proposed to be heightened from 1.8m to 2.4m.

The daytime and night-time Internal Ambient Noise Levels (IANLs) have been calculated
using the predicted facade noise levels. Based on these levels, an indicative acoustic
performance specification has been provided for glazing and ventilators. The specification is
considered the minimum required to achieve the guideline IANLs for sensitive spaces, in
accordance with BS8233 and WHO guidance. Detailed calculations of fagade noise break-in
should be carried out once the detailed design has been developed to ensure that the IANL
requirements are met. Details of the glazing and ventilation specification are outlined below.
The red and worst-case scenario glazing will be applied to all the dwellings fronting Pickford
Way and will be only on the principal elevation and the principal elevation of the apartment
block fronting Birmingham Road.

Page 23



The existing background sound level measured at the Site has been used to establish
recommended plantnoise limits at ESRs and PSRs. The daytime and night-time plantnoise
rating limits will ensure a low impact, in accordance with BS4142.

Environmental Protection officers have no objections subject to conditionsforthe provision of
further information as per the report's conclusions including:

» Overheating mitigation measures and alternative means of ventilation where necessary.

* Prior agreement of further detailed acoustic calculations for fagade noise break-in prior to
any works commencing on site, to be provided as specifications forwindows and ventilation
* Prior confirmation of any plant being installed and compliance with recommended plant
noise limits before installation commences.

Contamination

A ground investigation report has been submitted and assessed by officers. Environmental
Protection officers have requested a condition be appended to the decision in regard to a
UXO assessment, asbestos survey prior to demolition works, a further site investigation.

Infrastructure requirements and developer contributions

Comments and objections have been submitted raise concerns regarding the impact on
services such as schoolsand doctors, the highways network, drainage and flooding and other
infrastructure pressures.

Paragraph 56 of the NPPF states local planning authorities should consider whether
otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the use of
conditions or planning obligations.

This includes setting out the levels and types of affordable housing provision required,
along with other infrastructure (such as that needed for education, health, transport, flood
and water management, and green and blue infrastructure). Where planning conditions
are considered the acceptable way to mitigate against any harm that may arise, they have
been noted under the relevant sections, with the specific condition given.

However, there are other areas which cannotbe mitigated against solely by the imposition of
conditions. These are discussed in more detail below.

Planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended), commonly known as s106 agreements, are a mechanism which make a
development proposal acceptable in planning terms, that would not otherwise be acceptable.
They are focused on site specific mitigation of the impact of development.

Please note thatall the below S106 contributions are based on the 60 dwellingsandwill need
amending. This will be reported in the late representations document.

NHS Trust:
NHS trust has requested a contribution of £77,933.51 which will go towards the gap in the
funding created by each potential patient from this development within their first year of
occupation.

Page 24



NHS (ICB):

The contribution requestwould be for£125,04.00 which would be used on local improvement
works to deliver additional capacity in local primary care facilities to support the population
from this development.

In the locality shows that there are several practices providing primary care medical
services to the area. The practices have been identified where they are within a 1.5km
radius of the location as shown below:

Name of Practice Address
Allesley Park Medical Centre Whitaker Road, Coventry CV5 9JE
Allesley Village Surgery Birmingham Road, Allesley CV5 9BD

Streetscene & Greenspace:

Streetscene & Greenspace have considered the revised plans which have reduced the
number of dwellings to 60, the predicted development population to 130 and increased the
required onsite greenspace provision to 857 sqm. Calculations have been updated and the
onsite greenspace deficit contribution has reduced from £87,181 to £77,699. Officers
welcome the addition of a LAP on site. Whilst the greenspace team would prefer the LAP to
be more centrally located, officers accept that the location proposed is practical and
acceptable. The LAP would have to be designed in accordance with the latest Fields in Trust
guidance. A LAP only has a catchment distance of 100m so not all properties within the
developmentfall within catchmentofthe on-site LAP and as detailedin the previous response
the development site is outside safe walking distance of existing play provision at Allesley
Park. To offset this, we would request a revised play contribution of £121,149.

Trees:

A CAVAT assessment for the following TPO trees T6 (Sycamore), T18 (Ash), T19 (Ash), T24
(Ash), T27 (Holly), T29 (Holly), T30 (Cedar), T32 (Holly), G16 (Yew) & G13 (Yew) has a
cumulative CAVAT value of £853,422.

A CAVAT assessment for the non TPO trees T11 (Yew) and G14 (Ash) has a cumulative
CAVAT value of £187,404.

This amounts to a total of £1,040,826. As stated earlier in the report, the developer has not
agreed to this contribution.

BNG:
The expected offsetting cost for this would be approximately £210,000.

Air Quality:
Damage costs spreadsheet resulting in the sums of £27,689 for Air Quality will be spent
towards air quality mitigation within the city.

Education:

Page 25



The Education contribution below breaks down the education contribution in terms of total
houses and on a per 2+bed dwelling basis. A total contribution of £654,699 is required.

Provision Number of | Provision: Contribution

Stage: Children requested:
generated:

Early years/ | 21 Towards improving education facilities £357,346

Primary (which may include the purchase,

improvement and expansion of land and
buildings) at St Christopher, St John CE,
Whoberley Hall, Allesley Hall, Allesley
and/or other schools nearthe development
the area.

Secondary 11 Towards improving education facilities £240,506
(which may include the purchase,
improvement and expansion of land and
buildings) at Coundon Court, Cardinal
Newman, President Kennedy and/or other
schools near the development the area
Post 16 2 Towards improving education facilities £56,847
(which may include the purchase,
improvement and expansion of land and
buildings) at Coundon Court, Cardinal
Newman, President Kennedy and/or other
schools near the development the area.

Sporting Provision:

The proposal contains no indoor sporting provision nor any formal playing pitches.

The population of the proposed developmentis estimated to be 144no based on an average
household occupancy rate of 2.4. This additional population will generate additional demand
for sports facilities. If this demand is notadequately met then it may place additional pressure
on existing sports facilities, thereby creating or exacerbating deficiencies in facility provision.

The Sports Facilities Calculator and Playing Pitch Calculators indicate that a population of
144 in this local authority area will generate a demand for:

Pools: 1.55 sqm of pool space costing £33,015

Sports Halls: 0.04 courts costing £29,891

Artificial Grass Pitches: 0.09 grass pitches costing £10,481

Playing Pitches: 0.09 grass pitches costing £10,481

Pitch maintenance costing £2,205 per annum (based on a 10-year maintenance period
£22,050 in total)

¢ Ancillary Facilities: contribution towards a two-team changing facility costing £28,431

The total sport provision contribution is £129,991.

Page 26



The agent has agreed all the contributions amounts, however a S106 agreement has not
been signed.

Financial Viability Assessment:

A Financial Viability Assessment was submitted in support of the application. This has been
assessed and the Council’s position is that the scheme is viable with the agreed s106
contributions (minus CAVAT) and a surplus of circa £400k. This is withoutdelving into a
detailed cost analysisor challengingthe benchmarklandvalue. The applicantdoes not agree
with this position. However, the applicant has confirmed that they are prepared to pay the
S106 Contributions excluding the CAVAT payment.

The Tree Officer requests that the important line of TPO trees be retained within the site.
However, the submitted arboricultural report identifies these as category U which will notbe
able to be retained during demolition. They furtherindicate thatthe scheme will notbe viable
if the trees are retained or if the requested CAVAT be met in addition to the s106
requirements. On balance, delivering this site for residential development, the acceptance of
the other s106 requests and given that these trees are category U it is considered that their
loss is acceptable.

The Local Planning Authority has now accepted the S106 Contributions excludingthe CAVAT
payment.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. Section 149
states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conductthat is prohibited
by or under this Act;

a) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

b) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into accountand given due regard to this statutory duty, and the
matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the determination of this
application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development.

CONCLUSION

The site is allocated for residential developmentin the emergingLocal Plan and is acceptable
in principle. The proposals will regenerate this vacant site with 55 market houses in the
Conservation Area with a density and housing mix suitable for this location. The less than
substantial harm that the development would have upon the loss of the TPO trees in the
Conservation Area would be outweighed by the public benefit. The development will have
minimal impact upon neighbour amenity of both existing and future occupiers. The proposed
landscaping would provide a net gain in biodiversity on the site with contributions made to

Page 27



improving infrastructure for public benefits. The proposed development is therefore
considered to be acceptable subject to relevantconditions and contributions. The reason for
Coventry City Council granting planning permission is because the development is in
accordance with: PoliciesDS1,DS3, H1,H3, H4, H9, GE1, GE3, GE4, DE1, HE2,AC1, AC2,
AC3, AC4, EM1, EM2, EM3, EM4, EM5 and EM7 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the
emerging Local Plan, together with the aims of the NPPF.

POLICY APPENDIX

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2024.
Coventry Local Plan 2017 & Emerging Local Policy.
Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD).

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets outthe Government's planning policies
for England and how these are expected to be applied. It sets out the Governments
requirements for the planning system only to the extent that is relevant, proportionate and
necessary to do so. The NPPF increases the focus on achieving high quality design and
states that it is “fundamental to whatthe planning and development process should achieve”.

Principle of development

The National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 11, states that “Plans and decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. For Decision Making, this
means:-

c) approving developmentproposals thataccord with an up-to-date development plan without
delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless:i. the
application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particularimportance
provides a strong reason for refusing the development proposed; or ii. any adverse impacts
of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed
against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole, having particular regard to key
policies for directing development to sustainable locations, making effective use of land,
securingwell-designed places and providing affordable homes, individually orin combination.

Footnote 8 to paragraph 11 confirms that this includes situations where the local authority
cannotdemonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer
set outin paragraph 78).

Part C of Paragraph 125 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ‘give substantial
weightto the value of using suitable brownfield land within settlements for homes ... unless
substantial harm would be caused, and support appropriate opportunities to remediate
despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated or unstable land’..

Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 states that a suitable residential environment will
include safe and appropriate access, have adequate amenity space and parking provision
and be safe from environmental pollutants such as land contamination, excessive noise and
air quality issues. Wherever possible new developments should also be:

a) within 2km radius of local medical services;

b) within 1.5km of a designated centre within the city hierarchy (policy R3);

Page 28



c¢) within 1km radius of a primary school,;

d) within 1km of indoor and outdoor sports facilities; and
e) within 400m of a bus stop

f) within 400m of publicly accessible green space.

Housing mix and density

Policy H4 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 relates to housing mix, the policy states that the
Council will require proposals for residential developmentto include a mix of market housing
which contributes towards a balance of house types and sizes across the city in accordance
with the latest Strategic Housing Market Assessment. Thatbeingsaid, part 2 of H4 states that
in assessing the housing mix in residential schemes the Council may take into account
circumstances where it may not be appropriate to provide the full range of housing types in
accordance with the latest Strategic Housing Market Assessment, including; sites where
particular house types and/ or building forms may be required in order to sustain or enhance
the setting of a heritage asset.

Policy H9 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 relates to residential density and states outside of
the Ring Road (The A4053) a minimum of 35 dwellings per hectare (net) should be provided
on Previously Developed Land.

Affordable housing

Policy H6 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 relates to affordable housing and states that new
residential schemes of 25 dwellings or more (excluding student accommodation), or more
than 1ha, will be expected to provide 25% of all dwellings as affordable homes.

Design & Heritage

Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 seeks to ensure high quality design and
development proposals must respect and enhance their surroundings and positively
contribute towards the local identity and character of an area.

Policy HE2 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 states ‘Developmentproposals involving heritage
assets in general and listed buildingsin particular, should acknowledge the significance of
the existing building and the area by means of their Siting, massing, form, scale, materials
and detail.’

Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states the creation of high-quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should
achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in
which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities.

The National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 135 states that “Planning policies and
decisions should ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but
over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layoutand appropriate and effective
landscaping;

Page 29



c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment
and landscape setting, while notpreventing or discouraging appropriate innovation orchange
(such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, usingthe arrangement of streets, spaces,
buildingtypes and materials to create attractive, welcomingand distinctive placesto live, work
and visit.

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amountand
mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local facilities and
transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-
being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and
disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion
and resilience.

The NPPF further states (at paragraph 139) “Development that is not well designed should
be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and governmentguidance
on design, taking into account any local design guidance and supplementary planning
documents such as design guides and codes”.

Archaeology

Policy HE2 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 seeks to ensure that development
proposals do not cause harm to heritage assets in the form of archaeology, this is consistent
with Paragraph 207 of the NPPF (2024).

Residential Amenity

Policies H3, H5 and DE1 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 seek to ensure that
development proposals provide a suitable living environment for future occupiers, whilstalso
notresulting in a detrimental impact to existing/neighbouring residential occupiers, the NPPF
reaffirms the importance of quality design.

Highways

Policy AC1 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 states ‘Accessible Transport Network’
states that development proposals which are expected to generate additional trips on the
transport network should: a) Integrate with existing transport networks including roads, public
transport and walking and cycling routes to promote access by a choice of transport modes.
b) Considerthe transport and accessibility needs of everyone living, working or visiting the
city. ¢) Support the delivery of new and improved high quality local transport networks which
are closely integrated into the builtform. d) Actively support the provision and integration of
emerging and future intelligent mobility infrastructure. Policy AC2 seeks to ensure that
development proposals do not have a detrimental impact upon the road network and where
required suitable mitigation should be provided as part of any approval, i.e. through
obligations.

Policy AC3 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 acknowledges that the provision of car
parking can influence occurrences of inappropriate on -street parking which can block access
routes for emergency, refuse and delivery vehicles, block footways preventing access for
pedestrians, reduce visibility at junctions and impact negatively on the street scene.
Proposals for the provision of car parking associated with new developmentwill be assessed

Page 30



on the basis of parking standards set out in Appendix 5. The car parking standards also
includerequirementsforthe provision of electric carchargingand cycle parkinginfrastructure.

Parking provision should accord with the maximum standard expressed in Appendix 5 unless
it has been clearly demonstrated that the site is in a highly accessible location where
transport, by means other than the private car is a realistic alternative. In that respect lower
levels of provision may be considered acceptable where the site is in close proximity to the
City Centre, a train station, a high-quality rapid transport route or other public transport
interchange and where there is a package of measures (proportionate to the scale of
development) to enable sustainable means of transport. Any variation from the maximum
standard must be fully justified by proportionate evidence.

Ecology/Biodiversity

Paragraph 187 of the NPPF (2024) states that planning decisions should minimise impacts
on and provide net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological
networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures within the site.

Policy GE1 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 expects new development proposals to
make provision for green infrastructure to ensurethat such developmentisintegrated into the
landscape and contributes to improvements in connectivity and public access, biodiversity,
landscape conservation, design, archaeology and recreation. Whilst also maintaining the
quality and quantity of existing green infrastructure, and where the quantity is not retained,
enhancement to quality is expected.

Policy GE3 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 states proposals for development will
be permitted provided that they protect, enhance and/or restore habitat biodiversity.
Development proposals will be expected to ensure that they:

- Lead to a net gain of biodiversity, where appropriate, by means of an approved
ecological assessment of existing site features and development impacts.

- Protect or enhance biodiversity assets and secure their long-term management and
maintenance.

- Avoid negative impacts on existing biodiversity; and

- Preserve species which are legally protected, in decline, are rare within Coventry or
which are covered by national, regional or local Biodiversity Action Plans.

Trees

Paragraph 136 of the NPPF (2024) attributes trees to making an important contribution to the
character and quality of urban environments and can also help mitigate and adapt to climate
change. As such the NPPF is clear in that planning decisions should ensure thatnew streets
are tree-lined and that appropriate measures are in place to secure the long-term
maintenance of newly planted trees, and that existing trees are retained wherever possible.

Policy GE4 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 states the development proposals will

be positively considered provided that:

a) there is no unacceptable loss of, or damage to, existing trees or woodlands duringoras a
result of development, any loss should be supported by a tree survey.

Page 31



b) trees not to be retained as a result of the developmentare replaced with new trees as part
of a well-designed landscape scheme; and

c) existing trees worthy of retention are sympathetically incorporated into the overall design
of the scheme including all necessary measures taken to ensure their continued protection
and survival during construction

Drainage and Flood Risk

Policy EM4 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 states that all major developments must
be assessed in respect of the level of flood risk from all sources and that all opportunities to
reduce flood risk in the surrounding area must be taken, including creating additional flood
storage. Furthermore, Policy EM5 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 states that all
development must apply SUDs and should ensure that surface water runoffis managed as
close to its source as possible.

Air Quality

Policy EM7 of the adopted Coventry Local Plan 2017 requires new developments to ensure
that there is not an increase in air quality issues, this is supported and consistent with
Paragraph 199 of the NPPF (2024) which states that planning decisions will have due regard
for Air Quality Management Areas, of which the site and the rest of the city lies within.

Noise
Policy H1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 states future housing will be designed to create
new and stable communities.

Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 states that new development must provide a high-
quality residential environment which assists in delivering urban regeneration or creating
sustainable communities and which overall enhances the built environment. A suitable
residential environmentincludes safe and appropriate access, adequate amenity space and
parking provision and be safe from pollution.

Developer contributions

Policy IM1 ‘Developer Contributions for Infrastructure’ of the Coventry Local Plan states that
development will be expected to provide or contribute towards provision of: a) Measures to
directly mitigate its impact and make it acceptable in planning terms; and b) Physical, social
and green infrastructure to support the needs associated with the development. The
development would trigger the need for the following contributions to be secured under a
Section 106 Legal Agreement if the application was found to be acceptable.

CONDITIONS/REASONS

The development hereby permitted shall begin notlater than 3 years from the
date of this decision.

To conform with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as

Reason: amended)

Page 32



The development hereby permitted shall be carried outin accordance with the
following approved plans:
Location Plan - Drawing N0.1310-24-100

Planning Layout (Colour) DWG 1310-24-200 Rev L

Street Scenes DWG 1310-24-230 Rev C

Proposed Street Scene DWG 1694-24 Rev B

Street Scene Plots 51-57 DWG 1694-53 Rev A

Materials Plan DWG 1310-24-250 Rev D

Enclosures Plan DWG 1310-24-260 Rev D

Storey Height Plan DWG 1310-24-270 Rev D

Refuse Strategy Plan DWG 1310-24-280 Rev D

Detailed Landscape Proposals DWG C-2260-01 Rev D

Acoustic Barrier DWG 1310-24-290

Sections DWG 1310-24-240 Rev C

Plot 1-9 Floor Plans and Elevations - Option A DWG 1694-33 Rev D
Wentbridge Floor Plans DWG WEN/0-001 Rev B

Wentbridge Elevations DWG WEN/0-002 Rev B

Salbury Floor Plans DWG SAL/END/0-001.5 Rev B

Salbury Elevations DWG SAL/END/0-002 Rev C

Ripley Floor Plans DWG RIP/MID/0-001.5 Rev A

Ripley Elevations DWG RIP/MID/0-002 Rev C

Ripley Floor Plans DWG RIP/END/0-001.5 Rev D

Ripley Elevations DWG RIP/END/0-002.5 Rev D

Netherton Floor Plans DWG NET/DET/0-001 Rev A

Netherton Elevations DWG NET/DET/0-002 Rev A

Maltby Floor Plans DWG MAL/0-001 Rev A

Maltby Elevations DWG MAL/0-002 Rev A

Leyburn Floor Plans DWG LEY/DET/0-001 Rev A

Leyburn Elevations DWG LEY/0-002

Horbury Floor Plans DWG HOR/0-001 Rev B

Horbury Elevations DWG HOR/0-002 Rev A

Ferndale Floor Plans DWG FER/END/0-001.5 Rev A

Ferndale Elevations DWG FER/END/0-002 Rev A

Appleton Floor Plans DWG APP/0-001 Rev B

Appleton Elevations DWG APP/0-002 Rev B

Plots 51-53 Floor Plans and Elevations DWG 1694-52 Rev A
Plots 54-55 Floor Plans and Elevations DWG 1694-51 Rev A
Plots 56-57 Floor Plans and Elevations DWG 1694-50 Rev A
Garage Single - Plans- Drawing No.500/005 Rev A

Garage Double- Plans Drawing No0.501/006 Rev A

85 Birmingham Road Garage - Drawing N0.501/006 Rev A

Site Access Junction General Arrangement - Drawing No.07905-CI-A-0001
P02

Site Access Junction Geometry Plan - Drawing No.07905-CI-A-0002 P02
Site Access Junction Vehicle Swept Paths - Drawing No.07905-CI-A-0003 P02
Internal Visibility Assessment - Drawing No.07905-CI-A-0004 P01

Page 33



Internal Layout Review DWG 07905-CI-A-0006

Transport Assessment, dated 30th October 2024 - Report Ref.0790
Sustainable Buildings Statement, dated October 2024 - Report Ref.009402
Issue 15 Rev B

Statement of Community Involvement, dated November 2024

Planning Statement, dated November 2024

Vacant Building Credit Statement dated January 2026

Design and Access Statement, dated October 2024

Historic Building Recording, dated 7th November 2024 - Report Ref.P24-0554
Structural Survey and Condition Report dated 201" November 2024
Archaeology and Built Heritage Desk-Based Assessment dated December
2024

Topographical Survey - Sheet 1 - Drawing No.U0244

Topographical Survey - Sheet 2 - Drawing No.U0244

Demolition Land Remediation Tree Loss Plan DWG Allesley Hotel Rev 1
Arboricultural Implication Study dated April 2025

Arboricultural Demolition Statement dated 16™ July 2025

Arboricultural Survey

Tree Protection Plan - Drawing No. TPP/5180/Y/300

Ecological Impact Assessment dated November 2024

BNG Metric

Biodiversity Impact Assessment, as submitted 18th November 2024

BIA Baseline Habitat Plan - Drawing No.RSE_8026_BIAB_1024_V1R2

BIA Baseline Habitat Plan - Drawing No.RSE_8026_BIAP_1024_V1R2
Surface Water Network, dated 25th October 2024 - Report Ref.2024-10-25
Surface Water

Supplementary Soaking Testing, dated 18th October 2024 - Report Ref.: 210-
24-038.3091

Supplementary Soakage Testing letter dated 15" July 2025

SAP Calculations for Houses, as submitted 18th November 2024
Impermeable Area Plan DWG M44595-JNP-92-XX-DR-C-2001 Rev P02
Exceedance Flow Layout DWG M44595-JNP-92-XX-DR-C-2002 Rev P03
Proposed Drainage Strategy DWG M44595-JNP-92-XX-DR-C-2003 Rev P03
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy dated October 2024

Site Investigation, dated April 2022 - Report No.210-21-038-09

Air Quality Assessment, dated 5th November 2024 - Report Ref.33873-HYD-
XX-ZZ-RP-Y-2001_PO03

Noise Impact Assessment dated 23" July 2025

Rapid Health Impact Assessment, dated November 2024 - Report Ref.664198

Reason: Forthe avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
Prior to their incorporation into the development hereby permitted, sample
3. details of all facing and roofing materials shall be submitted to and approved in

writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall be installed only in
full accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the

Page 34



Reason:

Reason:

Reason:

development and thereafter shall be retained and shall not be removed or
altered in any way.

To ensure that the proposed development has a satisfactory external
appearance in the interests of the visual amenities of the area in accordance
with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of
both hard and soft landscaping works shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details of hard landscaping works shall
include boundary treatment, including full details of the proposed boundary
walls, railings and gates to be erected, specifying the type of bricks and colour
of the railings and gates; footpaths; and hard surfacing (which shall be made of
porous materials or provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the
hard surface to a permeable or porous area). The hard landscaping works shall
be completed in strict accordance with the approved details within three
months of the first occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted; and all
planting shall be carried outin accordance with the approved details within the
first planting and seeding seasons following the first occupation. Any tree(s) or
shrub(s) which within a period of five years from the completion of the
developmentdies, is removed or becomes; in the opinion of the Local Planning
Authority; seriously damaged, defective or diseased shall be replaced in the
next planting season with another of similar size and species. All hedging,
tree(s) and shrub(s) shall be planted in accordance with British Standard BS
8545:2014 Trees: from nursery to independence in the landscape -
Recommendations and BS4428 - Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of appearance of the development in the
interests of the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policies GE1 and
DE1 ofthe Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

The residential accommodation hereby permitted shall not be occupied unless
and until the bin storage areas have been provided in full accordance with the
details shown on the approved plans and thereafter they shall remain available
for use at all times and shall not be removed or altered in any way.

In the interests of the amenities of the future occupants of the residential
accommodation in accordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), or any statutory
instrument amending, revoking and/or replacing that Order, the first and

Page 35



Reason:

Reason:

Page 36

second floor windows to be formed in the west side facing elevation of the
Apartment block for Plots 1-9 hereby permitted shall only be glazed or re-
glazed with obscure glass and any opening part of any window will be at least
1.7m above the floor of any room in which the window is installed.

In the interests of the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties in
accordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

The development hereby permitted shall only proceed in strict accordance with
a scheme for targeting and utilising local people for construction and
employment, which shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

To secure local employment in accordance with the City Council jobs strategy
and Policy JE7 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a scheme
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority
(LPA) for the provision of a Sustainable urban Drainage System (SuDS) in
accordance with the latest available design guidance. The submission shall
include all relevant details and calculations to enable a full evaluation to be
undertaken, and clear and accountable consideration shall be given to the
following features:-

* Open Air storage or attenuation in the form of a wet pond, dry basin, swale or
other similar surface feature, aimed at managing water quantity, quality and
introducing biodiversity at the ground surface.

» General below ground attenuation, aimed solely at managing the quantity of
water on site (Note: preference should be given to localised cellular storage
unless there is no possible mechanism for doing so).

» Water quality control mediums such as permeable paving, filter drains, rain
gardens, ponds or swales aimed at improving the quality of water passing
through the system either above or below ground.

* The use of water harvesting and grey water reuse at individual plot level
within the development. This consideration should include both the deployment
of water butts, and dedicated tank-based storage where appropriate and any
reasons for NOT using should be clearly stated.

» The deployment of green roof and/or wall technology on suitable structures
within the development. All in accordance with Coventry City Council’s
Supplementary Planning Document “Delivering a more Sustainable City”.

i. The stormwater discharge rates from the development shall be managed in
order to reduce flood risk to surrounding sites, downstream areas or the wider
environment by means of a suitable vortex flow control mechanism (or
mechanisms) limiting the total site discharge offsite to Qbar greenfield rates or



Reason:

51/s, whichever is greater. The discharge rates for brownfield sites shall be
considered as greenfield in accordance with the CCC SFRA.

ii. A detailed strategy document must be submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the LPA for the long-term inspection and maintenance of the SuDS and
other surface water drainage elements on site. It should also mention any
notable Health and Safety or specialist training, and special equipment
required as part of the routine maintenance.

iii. Prior to the commencement of any works on site, provisions must be made
for the drainage of the site to ensure there are no temporary increases in flood
risk, on or off site, during the construction phase, particularly with respect to the
planned demolition/construction works and the deposition of silts and
cementitious materials. This should be covered under environmental risks in
the Site Specific CEMP.

iv. Evidence must be provided to show the management of overland flow
routes in the event of exceedance or blockage of the drainage system. Details
should include demonstration of how the buildings and adjacent highway
infrastructure will be protected in such an event.

v. Provisions must be made for the drainage of the site to ensure there is no
discharge of surface water to the Public Highway.

vi. Prior to commencement of the demolition process, any drainage to be
retained should be marked on a plan, and at the ground surface, and should be
capped to prevent the ingress of demolition or construction materials in the
vicinity.

vii. Upon completion of demolition works, the buried drainage in the vicinity of
the site should be inspected by CCTV to ensure that the services have not
been damaged and that the drains are not blocked.

viii. Where new or redevelopment site levels resultin the severance, diversion
or reception of natural (or engineered) land drainage flow, the developer shall
maintain existing flow routes (where there are no flood risk or safety
implications) or intercept these flows and discharge these by a method
approved by the Local Planning Authority.

ix. Foul drainage plans

The drainage details shall be installed in full accordance with the approved
documentation and thereafter shall be maintained and shall not be removed or
altered in any way.

To ensure that adequate drainage facilities are available for the satisfactory and
proper development of the site in accordance with policies EM1, EM4 and EM5
of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and Coventry City Council’s adopted
Supplementary Planning Document for ‘Delivering a More Sustainable City’.

Prior to their incorporation into the development hereby permitted, a package
of measures to minimise the impact of the development upon local air quality

Page 37



Reason:

10.

Reason:

1.

Reason:

12.

Page 38

shall be submitted to and in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These
measures shall have consideration of the following: -

(i) Provision for electric vehicle recharging points or dwellings to be made 'EV -
ready' so a power connection is available to install an EV charge point as
required;

(i) Use of low NOx boilers (to have a maximum dry NOx emissions rate of
40mg/kWh);

(iii) A construction method statement demonstrating how dust and noise
emissions are to be mitigated during construction. The measures shall be
installed in full accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of
the development and thereafter shall be retained and shall not be removed or
altered in any way.

To mitigate the impacts of development on air quality during and post
construction in accordance with Policies DS3 & EM7 of the Coventry Local Plan
2017.

The development hereby permitted shall not commence unless and until a
Desk Study for Potential Unexploded Ordnance Contamination and a risk
mitigation strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only proceed in strict accordance
with the approved details.

To safeguard health, safety and the environmentin accordance with Policy EM6
of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the aims and objectives of the NPPF.

The development hereby permitted shall not commence unless and until an
Asbestos Survey has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only proceed in strict accordance
with the approved details.

To safeguard health, safety and the environmentin accordance with Policy EM6
of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the aims and objectives of the NPPF.

The development hereby permitted shall not commence until the following
noise details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

* Overheating mitigation measures and alternative means of ventilation where
necessary.

* Prior agreement of further detailed acoustic calculations for fagade noise
break-in prior to any works commencing on site, to be provided as
specifications for windows and ventilation

* Prior confirmation of any plant being installed and compliance with



recommended plant noise limits before installation commences.
The development shall only proceed in strict accordance with the approved
details.

To safeguard health, safety and the environmentin accordance with Policy EM6

Reason: of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the aims and objectives of the NPPF.

No demolition/ development shall take place until the applicant, or their agents
or successors in title, has secured the implementation of a programme of
archaeological works, to be defined in a Written Scheme of Investigation that
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The strategy shall include details of the following:

- The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the
nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed
works;

- The identification and assessment of the extent, character and significance of
archaeological remains within the application area;

- The assessment of the impact of the proposed development on the
archaeological remains;

- Measures to ensure the preservation in situ or by record of archaeological
features of identified importance;

- Methodologies for the recording and recovery of archaeological remains,
including artefacts and ecofacts;

-The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,
publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material

- A timetable of works in relation to the proposed development;

- Alist of all staff involved in the implementation of the strategy, including sub-
contractors and specialists, their responsibilities and qualifications

The development shall not be occupied until any archaeological mitigation
investigation and post investigation assessment has been completed in
accordance with the programme set outin the approved written scheme of
investigation, and provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of
results and archive deposition has been secured.

13.

The submission of these details prior to the commencement of development is
fundamental to mitigate the effect of the works associated with the

Reason: development upon any heritage assets and to ensure that information
regarding these heritage assets is preserved by record for this and future
generations in accordance with Policy HEZ2 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

No development (including any demolition or preparatory works) shall
commence unless and until a walkover badger survey has been undertaken by
a qualified ecologist to ensure that there have been no setts created within the

14.

Page 39



Reason:

15.

Reason:

16.

Reason:

17.

Page 40

application site since the date of the badger survey provided in support of the
application. The results of this survey work together with the scope and timing
of any necessary mitigation measures shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any
works. The mitigation measures shall be undertaken in full accordance with the
approved details and timetable of works and once undertaken shall not be
removed or altered in any way.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the advice
contained within the NPPF 2024.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of
general ecological habitat enhancement measures and hedgehog mitigation
measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Such measures shall include; retention and management of
boundary vegetation, and hedgehog friendly boundary fencing and gates. The
habitat enhancement measures shall be undertaken in strict accordance with
the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development and
thereafter shall be retained and shall not be removed or altered in any way.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the advice
contained within the NPPF 2024.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted details of Bat
boxes, Bird boxes, hibernacula features, bee bricks, and log piles shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Bat
boxes, Bird boxes, hibernacula features, bee bricks, and log piles shall be fully
installed in strict accordance with the approved details prior to the first
occupation of the developmentand thereafter shall be retained and shall notbe
removed or altered in any way.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the advice
contained within the NPPF 2024.

No removal of trees/ hedges/ shrubs/or demolition of buildings/ structures shall
take place between 1st March and 31st August (inclusive) unless a survey to
assess the nesting bird activity on the site during this period has been
undertaken by a qualified surveyor, and a scheme to protect any nesting birds
identified on the site has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. No trees/ hedges/ shrubs shall be removed, or



buildings/ structures shall be demolished between 1st March and 31st August
(inclusive) other than in strict accordance with the approved bird nesting
protection scheme.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the developmentin
Reason: accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the advice
contained within the NPPF 2024.

No development (including any demolition or preparatory works) shall
commence unless and until a Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The CEMP shall include the following: (a) a risk assessment of
potentially damaging construction activities;(b) identification of biodiversity
protection zones (e.g. buffers to trees and hedges or to protected wildlife
habitat); (c) practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working
practices, such as protective fencing, exclusion barriers and warning signs) to
avoid or reduce impacts during construction (particularly in relation to works
within canopy and root protection areas for hedgerows or protected trees); (d)
the location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features
(in relation to breeding birds in particular); (e) the times during construction
when specialist ecologists need to be present on site to oversee works (as
required); (f) responsible persons and lines of communication; and (g) the role
and responsibilities on site of an Ecological Clerk of Works (ECoW) or similarly
competent person (as necessary). The approved CEMP shall be adhered to
and implemented throughoutthe construction period strictly in accordance with
the approved details.

18.

In order to safeguard protected and/or priority species from undue disturbance
and impacts, noting that initial preparatory works could have unacceptable
impacts; and in order to secure an overall biodiversity gain in accordance with
Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Reason:

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted a Landscape
and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The content of the LEMP shall
include the following:

a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed;

19. b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that mightinfluence management;
c) Aims and objectives of management, including mitigation and enhancement
for species identified on site;

d) Appropriate management option for achieving aims and objectives;
e) Prescriptions for management actions;
f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of

Page 41



Reason:

20.

Reason:

21,

Reason:

22,

Page 42

being rolled forward over a ten-year period);

g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the
plan, along with funding mechanism(s) for that body or organisation;

h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures, including where monitoring
shows that conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP are not being met.
The LEMP plan shall be implemented in strict accordance with the approved
details within three months of the first occupation of the development and
thereafter shall not be withdrawn or amended in any way.

In order to safeguard and enhance habitat on or adjacent to the site in order to
secure an overall biodiversity gain in accordance with Policy GE3 of the
Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Prior to the installation of any street lighting or any external lighting to be fixed
to any building(s), an external lighting strategy (including a plan) shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
strategy shall demonstrate that lighting shall be kept to a minimum at nightin
order to minimise impact on emerging and foraging bats, and to restrict light
spillage onto foraging corridors. The lighting shall be installed in full
accordance with the approved strategy and all lighting thereafter shall be
subsequently maintained in strict accordance with the approved details.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the advice
contained within the NPPF 2024.

No development (including any demolition or preparatory works) shall
commence unless and until a scheme for the retention of the bat roost(s) and
the retention of the existing entry/emergence routes, or the provision of
alternative roost space and new entry/emergence routes, has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include a programme for the implementation of the development which avoids
any building or other operations likely to affect the bat roost being undertaken
between April- September (inclusive), whilst also ensuring thatat no time
provision for roosting bats is lost from the site. The development shall only be
carried out in strict accordance with the approved scheme.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the advice
contained within the NPPF 2024.

No development (including any demolition or preparatory works) shall
commence unless and until an Invasive Non-Native Species Protocol (INNSP)



has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The INNSP shall detail the timing and method of containment, control and
removal of Japanese Knotweed from the site. The development shall only
proceed only in full accordance with the measures identified in the approved
INNSP.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
Reason: accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the advice
contained within the NPPF 2024.

No development (including any demolition or preparatory works) shall
commence unless and until a scheme (‘the offsetting scheme') for the offsetting
of biodiversity impacts at the site has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The offsetting scheme shall include: a)
a methodology for the identification of receptor site(s); b) the identification of
receptor site(s); c) details of the offset requirements of the development (14.88
units) (in accordance with the recognised offsetting metrics standard outlinesin
23. the Defra Metrics Guidance dated March 2012, or any document that may
update or supersede that guidance). d) the provision of arrangements to
secure the delivery of the offsetting measures (including a timetable for their
delivery); and e) a management and monitoring plan (to include for the
provision and maintenance of the offsetting measures in perpetuity). The
offsetting scheme shall be implemented in strict accordance with the approved
details within three months of the first occupation of the development hereby
permitted and thereafter shall not be withdrawn or amended in any way.

In order to safeguard and enhance habitat and secure an overall biodiversity
Reason: gain in accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the
emerging Local Plan.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a landscape
management plan, including long term design objectives, long term
management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape
areas (other than domestic gardens within the curtilage of a single
dwellinghouse), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The landscape management plan shall be implemented as
soon as the approved landscaping is carried out and shall not be withdrawn or
altered in any way.

24,

Reason: 10 ensure a satisfactory standard of appearance over the lifetime of the
development in the interests of the visual amenities of the area in accordance

Page 43



25.

Reason:

26.

Reason:

27.

Page 44

with Policy GE1 and DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging
Local Plan.

No part of the residential accommodation hereby permitted shall be occupied
unless and until the external amenity space has been laid out and provided in
full accordance with the details shown on the approved plans and thereafter
shall remain available for use at all times.

In the interests of the amenities of the future occupants of the residential
accommodation in accordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan
2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

No development or other operations (including any demolition, site clearance
or other preparatory works) shall be commenced unless and until tree and
hedge protection measures have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The tree protection measures shall safeguard
againstdamage or injury during construction works (in accordance with Clause
7 of British Standard BS5837 - 2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and
construction - Recommendations) all trees on the site, or those tree(s) whose
root protection areas or outer crowns may extend within the site and which are
within the City of Coventry Allesley Village Conservation Area. In particular no
excavations, site works, stock piling, trenches or channels shall be cut or pipes
or services laid, no fires shall be lit within 10 metres of the nearest point of the
Root Protection Area or outer crown of any protected tree(s); no equipment,
machinery or structure shall be located within this zone; no mixing of cement or
use of other contaminating materials or substances shall take place within, or
close enough to, a root protection area that seepage or displacement could
cause them to enter a root protection area, or any other works be carried outin
such a way as to cause damage or injury to the tree(s) by interference with
their root structure and that no soil or waste shall be deposited on the land in
such a position as to be likely to cause damage or injury to the tree(s).

The approved mitigation and / or protection measures shall be putin place
prior to the commencement of any works and shall remain in place during all
construction work.

To protect those trees which are of significant amenity value to the
Conservation Area and which would provide an enhanced standard of
appearance to the development in accordance with Policy GE3, GE4 and HE2
of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

Prior to occupation of the [BUILDING/DEVELOPMENT] hereby permitted,
details of cycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking facilities shall be provided in



Reason:

28.

Reason:

29.

full accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of the building
and thereafter those facilities shall remain available for use at all times and
shall not be removed or altered in any way.

In the interests of encouraging the use of alternative modes of transport with
the aim of creating a more sustainable city in accordance with Policies DS3,
AC3 and AC4 of the Coventry Local 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

No development (including any demolition) shall take place unless and until a
Construction Management Plan (CMP) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CMP shall include details of: -
hours of work; - hours of deliveries to the site; - the parking of vehicles of site
operatives and visitors during the demolition/construction phase; - the delivery
access point; - the loading and unloading of plant and materials; - anticipated
size and frequency of vehicles moving to/from the site; - the storage of plant
and materials used in constructing the development; - the erection and
maintenance of a security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities
for public viewing where appropriate; - wheel washing facilities and other
measures to ensure thatany vehicle, plantor equipmentleaving the application
site does not carry mud or deposit other materials onto the public highway; -
measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during demolition and
construction; - measures to control the presence of asbestos; - measures to
minimise noise disturbance to neighbouring properties during demolition and
construction; - details of any piling together with details of how any associated
vibration will be monitored and controlled; and - a scheme for recycling /
disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works.
Thereafter, the approved details within the CMP shall be strictly adhered to
throughout the construction period and shall not be amended in any way.

The agreement of a Construction Management Plan prior to the
commencement of development is fundamental to ensure a satisfactory level of
environmental protection; to minimise disturbance to local residents and in the
interests of highway safety during the construction process in accordance with
Policies AC1 and AC2 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Local
Plan.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a Travel Plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The Travel Plan shall set out proposals (including a timetable and methods of
monitoring the performance of the Plan), to promote travel by sustainable
modes, and shall be implemented in accordance with the details specified
therein and shall not be amended in any way.

Page 45



Reason:

30.

Reason:

31.

Reason:

32.

Reason:

33.

Reason:

Page 46

In the interests of encouraging the use of alternative modes of transport with
the aim of creating a more sustainable city in accordance with Policies
DS3,AC3 and AC4 of the Coventry Local 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

None of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied unless and until the
car parking provision for that dwelling has been constructed orlaid out, and
made available for use by the occupants and / or visitors to the dwellings and
thereafter those spaces shall be retained for parking purposes at all time and
shall not be removed or altered in any way.

To ensure the satisfactory provision of off-street vehicle parking facilities in
accordance with the Council's standards and in the interests of highway safety
and the satisfactory development of the site in accordance with Policies AC1,
AC2 and AC3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Prior to commencement of development, full engineering and construction
details of the vehicular access hereby approved shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved works shall
be implemented prior to the first occupation of the development and retained
thereafter.

In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies AC1 and AC2 of
the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Before the vehicular access hereby permitted is first used, visibility splays of
45m are required to the west of the access and visibility splays of 43m are
required to the east when measured 2.4m back from the near side edge of the
carriageway. The visibility splays shall be retained thereafter with nothing in the
visibility splay exceeding 600mm in height.

In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies AC1 and AC2 of
the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Prior to commencement of development, full engineering and construction
details of the pedestrian crossing on Birmingham Road shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved works
shall be implemented prior to the first occupation of the development and
retained thereafter.

In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies AC1 and AC2 of
the Coventry Local Plan 2017.



Prior to commencement of development, details of a scheme to improve Public
Footpath 290 that connects from Birmingham Road to Winsford Avenue has

34. been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved works shall be implemented prior to the first occupation of the
development.

In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policies AC1 and AC2 of

Reason: the Coventry Local Plan 2017.

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



61 abed

Scale 1:1250

msssmmsm  Application boundary

Revision ‘ Date ‘ Amendnent Initials

V4 T 01902 762854 M 07977 253860
Ra Or W www.radford-architectural.co.uk
com

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES ¢ radfordarchitecturalservic

Cl

~ /\VANT

homes

FORMER ALLESLEY HOTEL
BIRMINGHAM ROAD,

COVENTRY
Title
LOCATION PLAN
Dwg No
1310-24-100
Revision — 1 Scale @A3
1:1250
Drawn Date

DS OCT 2024



AutoCAD SHX Text
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Rainbow Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Harry Caplan House

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Stone House

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
BRIDLE PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Allesley Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
El Sub


0S abed

10/12/2022 10:41:38 AM

1 f1
Front Elevation. Left Elevation. Rear Elevation. Right Elevation.
1:100 1:100 1:100 1:100
T T T T
L 6073 L \ | | ‘
i i | L : |
| 1 \
‘ 'LXA‘ ' ‘ A 24.09.2024 BA STAIRS AND WINDOWS AMENDED TO REFLECT LAYOUT
g Garage } : 18643 Sqft : } REV  DATE BY AMENDMENTS
| b | A
N | VANT
5| m: :m E homes
R 3 13
§\ f;:' 'fe, I AV22 SPECIFICATION
g ~ 1<
il PLANNING
Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan Area: 3627 m?/ 390.42sq.ft.
1:100 1:100 DATE: 'SCALE@A3:  |DRAWN BY:
| FEB2023 | 1:100  BA
DWG TITLE:
85 Birmingham Road
Garage
HOUSE TYPE:
Garage - Double - Gable Front
COINS REFERENCE:
GgeDD
DRWG No: REV:
501/006 A




Notes
N
KEY
Indicative tree planting see
Cottage detailed landscape dwg.
+ []
El Sub Existing frees to be retained
u
l Sta /’_\\\
'\/\ ) Existing frees to be removed
105.8m )
Indicates alternate surface
treatment - refer to surface
TCB materials plan
El
X .
Sub Sta mmmmmm  Application boundary
r + Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m
\\/ ol /8 g 104.2m Shelter 49 high
¢ 8 "Dutch” france === 18m brick screen wall
£6 €8 S . S 64 :
crossing
——=——  1.8m timber fence
S Other boundary treatment -
QPXY\ o refer to enclosures plan
%@\0\/ Community ) \7 EXiSTing Har i Private bin storage (slabbed)
«© Centre / ) refained Shared bin collection point
& = . I b (slabbed)
By L Elebc’r . Lo \l/:/ S - Cycle storage shed
- Sub- 10N
s
The
1-9
_*
[ E— ) i 6, ></c 50 Lodge
=
4 N “mp
+ .
S¢
:I 104.2m
ooy
| 10 Lo
| 5T
( [ o o=
D | | Sy o sv [ : ] %
5l | S as [ ol 9z
1 to 33 s\G 43 ds as| 4 S N A z g 11
af | £ diy diy diy 3 << -
g | ’ -~ N ,
Harry Caplan House 2 o N ;, % =
é” I 53 . = o
’ 57 /52 Y& L —
£l % 51 ] 3 3
al | T 55 2T ¢ ” 12 N
< e E o o > ‘0 % s d\f
wi | 4 T 50 g %= R
Drainage Right of ,’ ’ = = ~ A N 5 - = o§
' sement way No.89 I N 3 ° % .
. Il 5 58 -
BT 6m wide l I N 13
. I'l 9 3 s n
22 2 o P <
24 / U / = — T 59 - 7
/— |9 29-33 omifted” — § L 7 "
= __ S~ -+ - 2
~= T _ SR [ il 25 " ha = sv a "y A VP
S S o e~ m—m——— _ s/, \\\1 | | y 26 _ L 0 % * oy, TS -
T ——_T~—__ —<Zhttenuation basin \)\ U RiP | 7 s [/ N 3 W =Jr : '- _ Stone House
—~ TN T : II | 4 / / v S Tl A
—— ~_ ———_ -~ l] A/ A T o / / . s QL0 o 8 o L
~o o~ _ — — | X / / 3 A ¥ 4 4
~_T———-=7 | A L 60 o < f =
= — — / s > 4
........ o Qs Sﬁa A / // 4o ~ o afugy, ¢ D@
) a3 Déﬂ I~ - [ ~ 14
N 34 48 3
o R As /[,)}/ / S 35 S, 1 : g [w}
o= , /D o Orp / / 36 47 437 7 5 = o
== / / // 37 38 39 S % Y .
.......... == == == // / / NeT ® 41 N : = > %)
~ % N / / / I~ 7. ‘ " " L 2 D@
SN ( [ /° e 43 - 16
\\ £ R o L 16.02.26 Southern apartment block replaced with &no. houses. DS
~ NS N\ ..// o a 7 ~ = Dé‘u A = " Sﬁ S 44 (] 3 5’ K 14.08.25 Trees adjusted to suit landscape plans. IN
~ A N aq Opp opp a Iy a - - J 04.07.25 Plots 22-44 re-planned, plots 50 & 60 substituted. DS
NS N yP L éqL Rip L o ot 7 QOver-run areas shown to street bends.
S — a y o As > A 18 H 28.04.25 Plots 45 & 46 swapped, sub-station added. IN
= * o 19 2 G 230425  Defails added, "dutch” entrance shown. DS
TS = — o AS Orp " v T LEY § 21 F 10.04.25 Minor amendments, southwest corner re-planned, IN
= Y= schedule updated.
Preposed acoustic = :\ A AS 7 - E 26.03.25 Scheme re-drawn following LA comments. I
barrier 2 m-high §\ﬁ -~ == SHA/? # a R D 04.11.24 Cycle stores shown, wall railings added to front of DS
AN = ED plots 1-9.
N \0/”@/.\ \ki\ SU/?FAC Rip 'S C 15.10.24 Plot 60 reverted to RIP, highway bend adjacent plot DS
\\/)@ AN \Q\ E LAN / L - A ﬁD 48 widened slightly, parking court to plots 31-39
N e S = E S ST R ) opp Dé“L altered, attenuation pond re-designed.
—= - < As B 04.10.24 Plot 49 handed, plot 60 changed to FERNLEE, plots DS
=~ QQ o orp 58 & 59 handed due to levels.
. A 4 7 74 A = :Q o A 30.09.24 Tree survey .informafion L{pdafed, plots 21-26 IN
Accommodation Schedule ICher e e
0 M k t ORD W Shallow eto Vehicle ~L frontage apartments & ferrace roof plans altered
r pen lviarke Ay accomedafe GVer-run zone < to reflect KRT designs.
- L
. - H = L Revision | Date Amendment Initials
House Type Arrangement Accomodation Total Units highway run-o
Plots 1,4, 7 Apart. 1 BED 3
Plot 2 Apart. 1BED 1 o y : ’ T 01902 762854 M 07977 253860
e Radford ..
Plots 3, 6, 9 Apart. 1 BED 3 barrier 2.4m high AAIOYA v vrssorscareniecturatcoun
7] ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES ¢ radfordarchitecturalservices@gmail.com
_ Plots 5, 8 Apart. 1 BED 2
Ripley sp Semi/End 2 BED 6 Client
Ferndale sp Semi/End 2 BED 3
Ripley Semi/End 2 BED 9
Ferndale Semi/End 2 BED 2 homes
Project
Malthy Detached 3 BED 2 FORMER ALLESLEY HOTEL
Leyburn Detached 3 BED 3 BIRMINGHAM ROAD
Salbury Semi/End 3 BED 14 COVENTRY !
Wentbridge Detached 4 BED 1 Title
Horbury Detached 4 BED 2 PLANNING LAYOUT
Netherton Detached 4 BED 3 Dwg No.
Appleton Detached 5 BED 1 1310-24-200
U Total 55 Revision Scale @A1
Q :
Q Grand Total 55 L 1:500
D Drawn Date
o Scale 10 DS SEPT 2024
- E
0 10 20 50



AutoCAD SHX Text_49
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Rainbow Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Harry Caplan House

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Stone House

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
BRIDLE PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
BIRMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
A4114 PICKFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Attenuation basin

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Existing drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
Drainage easement 6m wide

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
L.A.P

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
Right of way No.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Shallow swale to accomodate highway run-off

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
"Dutch" entrance crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
Existing pillar retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Electric sub-station

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Vehicle over-run zone

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
BCP


Notes

© Radford Architectural Services Ltd. Do not scale from this drawing
Refer to figured dimensions only. Contractors must check all
dimensions on site.

2G abed

KEY

Indicative free planting see

Cottage detailed landscape dwg.

Existing frees to be retained

Existing frees to be removed

Indicates alternafe surface
freatment - refer to surface
materials plan

El
Sub Sta

Application boundary

Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m
high

1.8m brick screen wall

Other boundary freatment -
refer fo enclosures plan

——=——  1.8m fimber fence

Community Private bin storage (slabbed)

Shared bin collection poinf
(slabbed)

= Cycle storage shed

Centre

104.2m

Drainage Right of
easement way No.

Stone House

L 16.02.26 Southern apartment block replaced with &no. houses. DS
K 14.08.25 Trees adjusted to suit landscape plans. IN
J 04.07.25 Plots 22-44 re-planned, plots 50 & 60 substituted. DS
Over-run areas shown to street bends.
H 28.04.25 Plots 45 & 46 swapped, sub-station added. DS
G 23.04.25 Details added, "dutch” entrance shown. DS
F 10.04.25 Minor amendments, southwest corner re-planned, DS
schedule updated.
Srasnesd Seaustle Bk b - ~ ’ 4 ‘ ¥ C ) | \ E 26.03.25 Scheme re-drawn following LA comments. BN
barrier 2. high L = 4 \ a ' ‘ | ) £ D 04124 lElyocflz ?_f;res shown, wall railings added to front of DS
(¥ 15.10.24 Plot 60 reverted to RIP, highway bend adjacent plot DS

48 widened slightly, parking court to plots 31-39
altered, attenuation pond re-designed.

B 04.10.24 Plot 49 handed, plot 60 changed to FERNLEE, plots DS
58 & 59 handed due to levels.

A 30.09.24 Tree survey information updated, plots 21-26 DS

- > \ . Y altered position, attenuation pond altered shape

O ~ R - slightly, private drive to front of plot 62 extended,
Shatta) 7 ‘).';- L > 4 frontage apartments & terrace roof plans altered

Fy to reflect KRT designs.
accomodare

A

B
-

[ S

House Type Arrangement Accomodation Total Units highway run-o Fovon |tfe | Amendnart e
Plots 1,4,7 Apart. 1 BED 3 =
Plot 2 Apart. 1BED 1 AR, w o viona rersse 1 prern 230
Plots 3, 6, 9 Apart. 1BED 3 harrier 2.4m high Radford W www.radford-architectural.co.uk
: Plots 5, 8 Apa rt. 1 BED 2 ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES  E radfordarchitecturalservices@gmail.com
Ripley sp Semi/End 2 BED 6 Client
Ferndale sp Semi/End 2 BED 3
Ripley Semi/End 2 BED 9 VANT
Ferndale Semi/End 2 BED 2 e homes
Malthy Detached 3 BED 2
Leyburn Detached 3 BED 3 E(I)RRMPI]EIEH?E"]L ERSOL,EI; HOTEL
Salbury Semi/End 3 BED 14 COVENTRY '
Wentbridge Detached 4 BED 1 s
Horbury Detached 4 BED 2 PLANNING LAYOUT
Netherton Detached 4 BED 3 Dwg No.
Appleton Detached 5 BED 1 1310-24-200
55 Revision Scale @A
55 L 1:500
Drawn Date
S — DS SEPT 2024
0 10 20 50




€g abed

(| L 1 1] ¥ 4 E i Tl T 1 il H—i

Er
=
1 |

e mETEEETE .

| 3 E
S = = ;‘ al - == g = l'“!’ =

'_

T S S T

.; fi;IE\D!]\? iEs !D]]

o PLOTS 22-24 o o PLOTS 25-26 o PLOTS 27-28 o o PLOT 34 o PLOTS 35-36 o PLOTS 37-38 o PLOTS 39-40 o
FFL 96.30 FFL 96.70 FFL 96.70 FFL 96.35 FFL 96.25 FFL 96.20 FFL 96.40
T =~
STREET SCENE A-A.. i BEXFL/EL ]

1= (]

“x

- g |0
ﬂ HHE

T

EEE

R W

PLOTS 18-19

PLOTS 20-21

FFL 98.70

PLOTS 41-42

FFL 96.70

PLOT 43

FFL 97.10

PLOT 44

FFL 98.75

FFL 98.45

STREET SCENE A-A CONTINUED...

i 1 B S
I = i iu ‘ = | | \: Suli
° PLOT 14 ° & PLOT 44 ° PLOT 45 & PLOT 46 ° PLOT 47 ° PLOT 48 °
FFL 101.00 FFL 100.50 FFL 101.60 FFL 101.80 FFL 101.40 FFL 101.10

STREET SCENE B-B

Scale 1:200

IN-SET PLAN N

e e e —

0 5

10

20

C 18.02.26 Southern apartments replaced. DS

B 07.07.25 Updated to latest site plan, street scene A-A DS
amended.

A 02.05.25 Updated fo latest site plan. IN

Revision ‘ Date ‘ Amendment Initials

ﬁ?@t’lford

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES E radfordarchitecturalservices@gmail.com

T 01902 762854 M 07977 253860

W www.radford-architectural.co.uk

Client

/\VANT

homes

FORMER ALLESLEY HOTEL
BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
COVENTRY

Title

STREET SCENES

Dwg No.

1310-24-230

Revision Scale @A2

C 1:200

Drawn Date

DS OCT 2024




G abed

PICKFORD WAY

SECTION A-A..

_______ EXISTING GROU

< “- — - o~ Vv
44 V\,«V 0 % _ g“qu
- AN Q%
- . S - AR
Ty <~ N ‘HWV% v
- Z TN <Y DY
v g - =N “ e v
“y < 0}74\\\ vl =2
A\ . -~ 7 < AV\ \J s Lay
Yo N\ E y\w < A%
2, 3 Vd&:‘«g N N -~ = N~ 4 0:¢
) A T us.s % Loty ag.,d,:-\sf,, % - N A N QPlegy
W s, e X R ?""3 S . ‘Y-‘"‘? < AY G =R W
.:? 2 ".‘..' :: "";“:'t' B ~ - 04
P PN LI e Wh - L AVl DAY WY
AL L TR voa g7 {,% A o Yo A4ad
. T i [EERR A - Cr RIS R S
N - - M ~ . e - ° N N o o - “
s St ™ v L PLOTS 1-9

PLOT 51
FFL 103.00

B, LT N FFL 104.15

PLOT 42
FFL 96.70

—_— ]
—_
—_
J——

ND LINE

BOUNDARY

.CONTINUED

AL11L

SECTION B-B

PLOT

FFL 96.30

- & - BIRMINGHAM 10, 33

ROAD

104.15

22

LA 2.4

——————— EXISTING GROUND LINE

a x
ridge =
=z

-]

113.66

SECTION

eaves
110.43

Yad
DA A0
4,44 4¢ "»E"
- ﬁ"“\’
R e B
x4
- afaa DA<

v (AP Al Y
\ g

q - ﬁv
s;\r‘vv,a a ”0‘6

4,48 &~ vy \OVu ’% ¥ %v
v

POt s A R < 3 - Al

$ >~ )

PLOTS 1-9
FFL 104.20

eqves

10640  HARRY CAPLAN

PLOT 47
FFL 101.80

BOUNDARY

PLOT 51
FFL 103.00

A
ridge
110.41

Y
eaves

107.90

Scale 1:200

e e ——

0 5

20

I + 103.|Jm /
T e ——— //
— /
Lg ®Rige el \
"Dutch’/eqtrance <§
£6 crossifig
Communit ’ . § Existing
Y S SN retained §
£ Y \ ~
AAAAAAAAAAAA Electf %
g0 o [ 5 sub-sfation
L g \_\
4 X
F S, X ™SO
— | " - Ry
4 . '"p\
+ L ‘
S¢
!
i
roar g @
10
e
( FoF %
1
ds A o2
ds < 5
s e ds S aw oS P 1
diy diy 3 j - -
s
<] + 3 @
53 o
w o |
57 56 2 g 3
= 5 7 )
== 12
N 55 54 o \
r + 50 5 Y §::" S \
Right of —L =F. 5
T3 i
~~~~~~ way No.89) i 5 58 £ N
ém widé™~ I J: ”
H = \
2 m |
i 2 > \
= ) 59 Foye N \
S v ; " w
s IR S [%) + H- 4 3 .
) > 8 5L
| 3 T W -
wit 45 4w el /A L T
% it A Wi . +
Joy o
i + i o
2 { L - i i @
25-33 s | 49 ; < - i g
o 3J w et o 8 @ 4 < A 'L 3 i
% S¢ 35 S /. N A3 j ~
36 47 o IG5 S =)
& o] s Y 9 L F
— fe. £ / 40 46 £ o >
NE; 5 4 & = =
N s 42 45 + = g ''''
SﬁD [[fRP 43 ~ - )
; T i beg=i e S¢ bl s JF =
R (<N . L =g DS z -
/ e} 4 / T Dﬁ‘u Rip IS . i 5 1
SN iy -1y ] L oL s
~— s \\ ol 71 - = INET A e 20
~ | N~ S == AN ) [T T T = / R A
"?op.ng _e_zd_ﬁacou.s;ic < " \ .... a7 (e R )
arrier 2:5m-hig ~=- E -
g_____\\ B S X Rip)
— 2 L > -, St ¢
- . ey X 1 O RN ey M BV .
_______________ - T o— . D Q.
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ‘\\\“.. T - S=o i i
________________ \/44774 IS Tl - ‘"‘~~___~ > N » a
\\\\\\ — T~ FICkr 0 /
— — ~— YRp Waro —Shallow i Vehicle * ; +
~~~~ e T — T~ - A )/ accem“r&\ —~ over-run zene b <o
T B S — highway run=off_ T~ T3 = +
e T — T T T T S
T T TS S S Y T T Proposed Stuustic N \\
~—— T T TS T TS T T ~~harrier 2.4m high ™~~~ N
------ o
_____ \‘ \, ~4 e
~— T \ ‘~-\_\\\ ~. - <~ =~
_________ - e S \\\\\\ ~ - \\;
Notes
C 09.07.25 Updated to latest site plan. IN
B 02.05.25 Updated to latest site plan. I
A 29.11.24 Additional sections added. I
Revision | Date Amendment Initials

Y

T 01902 762854 M 0797% 253860
Ra Or W www.radford-architectural.co.uk

ARCHITECTURAL

SERVICES £ radfordarchitecturalservices@gmail.com

(lient

/\VANT

homes

Project

FORMER
BIRMING
COVENT

ALLESLEY HOTEL
HAM ROAD,
RY

Title

SECTIONS

1310-24-240
Revision Scale @A1
C 1:200

DS

OCT 2024



AutoCAD SHX Text_126
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
Harry Caplan House

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
BRIDLE PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
BIRMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
A4114 PICKFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
Attenuation basin

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Existing drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
Drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Drainage easement 6m wide

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
L.A.P

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Right of way No.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Shallow swale to accomodate highway run-off

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
"Dutch" entrance crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Existing pillar retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Electric sub-station

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Vehicle over-run zone

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Scale 1:200


103.3m

1 to 33

Harry Caplan House

¢6

RIP

|2
I+ L
! | 7
/
I +
/ :
/ s

LB 'W"""L/
72 —

29-33 omifted — —

25
26
27

+
/8 cg 104.2m Shelter
r8 SN % 64
U S
------------- ~ -
-
8 T3
L
X 6, X
-+ < /QU
1 "o
_}
r ar 4
10
F
S\ sy >
)
1
= -
:]F ,;'j (X - w
53 ] ; .
57 56 - 52 i P —
P 51 i R 3 ;OU
e 55 5 B i 12
L o 54
= = 50 § =
— =
] 3 L , L =
: i ° 58 i _L
; 13
’ B
i i
= ~ N
I == 59 “s e 5
— L |
o " :’J: 8 r 7 VP e
RN N Sy
2/ i3 i Fy Z ~
/ } i S T -
/ = e L/ A L. 7 L
/ / / i 5 L s \/ D == _ 3R
!l i & R /
/ i ~ [~ o
[ N/ i %
gy 1 f iy L s 'e : =1
‘/ / / 49 o N ; : : O
/ 34 % [/ y : s :
/ / SG 35 48 9s, . ; -
/ / 36 A3/ 1 : o

42
The
50 Lodge
104.2m
‘e
IS
£
S
5 &
S
(s}
&

Stone House

Notes

Bricks

Marshalls Redbridge Stock
with Red Feature Brick

Marshalls Edmonton Stock
with Blue Feature Brick

Tobermore Landsdowne Moorland
with Blue Feature Brick

Roof Tiles
. Russell Brown Roof and Ridge Tiles

. Russell Grey Roof and Ridge Tiles

. Ibstock Gemini Mixed Russett

All front doors painted black

All garage doors painted white

D 18.02.26 Southern apartments replaced. N
C 07.07.25 Updated to latest site plan. N
B 29.04.25 Updated to lafest site plan. DS
A 07.11.24 Wall railings added to front of plots 1-9. N
Revision | Date Amendment Initials

4 T 01902 762854 M 07977 253860
Radford W www.radford-architectural.co.uk
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES ¢ radfordarchitecturalservices@gmail.com

Client

/\VANT

homes

FORMER ALLESLEY HOTEL
BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
COVENTRY

MATERIALS PLAN
1310-24-250

Revision Scale @A?2
D 1:500

DS OCT 2024



AutoCAD SHX Text_177
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Rainbow Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Harry Caplan House

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
Stone House

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
BIRMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
A4114 PICKFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
VP


Shelter

%

Notes

A

BOUNDARY TREATMENT:

1.8m Close board fence
— 2.4m high close board fence

1.8m high brick screen wall (Note: Screen
walls to match adjoining building, re materials plan).

0.45m Timber knee rail
---------- 2.4m high acoustic barrier

—————————— 1.2m high timber post & rail
© 1.8m Timber Gate. Gate to be self-closing
and key lockable from both sides.
Anti-climb design on street side.

Dwarf wall with black painted metal railings

on top
D 18.02.26 Southern apartments replaced. DS
C 07.07.25 Updated to latest site plan. N
B 29.04.25 Updated to lafest site plan. DS
A 06.11.24 Wall & railings added to front of plots 1-9. N

Revision ‘ Date ‘ Amendment Initials

V4 T 01902 762854 M 07977 253860
Ra Or W www.radford-architectural.co.uk

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES E radfordarchitecturalservices@gmail.com

a

~ /\VANT

homes

FORMER ALLESLEY HOTEL
BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
COVENTRY

ENCLOSURES PLAN
1310-24-260

Revision Scale @A?2
D 1:500

DS OCT 2024



AutoCAD SHX Text_218
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
Rainbow Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Harry Caplan House

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Stone House

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
BIRMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
A4114 PICKFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
VP


\
LB VR Notes
T 1033m 72 . u
Roa
. N
/9 oo 104.2m Shelter 42
r8 SN % 64
°Q
7 N .
.. NS <
__________ <~ T :
............... F i = e
o0 g |~ = TR A )
[a] S
= J % "! I:I 3 STOREY
L The
1-9 4
+ + ‘ % X 50 Lodge I:I 2.5 STOREY
K = K/ “\ pl/
. R VA S Mo 2 STOREY
K + I:I 1 STOREY
S¢
104.2m
[ T
11 1 «
< Il Pk
’ | Sv/ sv/ /)l sy ‘ %
Il :
1 to 33 ,I | 11
| =
=
Harry Caplan House ,, ’l n :s’ )
-
53 = _
/| 7 > 56 {72 ——= S
I A——— 51 ) 0 £
I N 55 54 NS
Il r =+ 50 § — s &
I 1 = L = 'S
'l R - — «
I ’i ° 58 / ] s =
|| 4 13
O\ Y | R
22 ] i A WAL
23 2 L | = T! T 59 r I .
29-33 omifted — —
! = r - " Y v
: Fy * 26 L % oy 7
— I 27 — = y ~jrs : Stone H
— i / A one ouse
RIP | 8 / ?é i, F ™ i: R =
N | Ik / / } JL Ty &y "7 N -
| 3 !l | i NN g
S / / ,: 60 J HO/\I _ A
/ S / / i a O—
......... Gef [t [ 4 Nl | o
""""""""" — DE‘M / / ) S N/ + ] "
anird . / 34 48 S : ,
......... / N 35 ;O
== w1, / / / 36 o ==
/ 47 [
::\ 4 / / // s 37 38 39 S p | ,
.......... = = == // / / 40 46 g/ : ~ o —~ i
=== Ng 41 i 2
N\ ;o 02 45 ; o+ j =
I s Rip 43 ; : [ B 16
/ p - D 18.02.26 Southern apartments replaced. DS
’ ; [m} C 07.07.25 Latest site plan shown. N
@ B 29.04.25 Latest site plan shown. DS
— A 07.11.24 Latest site plan shown. N
Revision | Date Amendment Initials

T 01902 762854 M 07977 253860

1I.i::flford

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

/\VANT

homes

FORMER ALLESLEY HOTEL
BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
COVENTRY

W www.radford-architectural.co.uk

E radfordarchitecturalservices@gmail.com

Client

'STOREY HEIGHT PLAN
1310-26-270

o 1500

s 0CT 2024



AutoCAD SHX Text_254
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
Rainbow Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Harry Caplan House

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
Stone House

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
BIRMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
A4114 PICKFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
VP


72 — u

Notes
© Radford Architectural Services Ltd. Do nof scale from this drawing
Refer to figured dimensions only. Contractors must check all
dimensions on site

LB
5 ' + 103.3m
R B/RM//\/G
o B
0]
/8 S8
o6 8
/ |: U
1 N v A N (Y N ¥ Y i
o0 g |- =
2 [
L]
L]
4 SV
1 to 33
| am
Harry Caplan House I
Il n
It a 57
,’ 7. 56
|l ™ ha 55
TR L
[ J .
Il n i3
(|| = P o8
NIAVa- ;
I - |
X
29-33 omi > : ’. s "
=== S 2 T : - -
=EFIY [ SR L L7 ]| s
: \! RIP RIP I / 7 = N " >. i
) / N/ e
) 1 | + ;1 ’
~——, | . : ;] :
7 | o y /] | N
T " / |
0 g Sﬁg ]/ / : 49
. Oy ! 34

36

in

1

L

53

48

+
104.2m Shelter
\ % 64
S
35
6y X
A
(7)
Mo
%
10
v sy ! 3
11
L - 77}
- - Y
o 51 ; ! i * 12
¥ i
L — =
|
L _
13
y
13}
A" w
'l .
L e =
- /.. -
L7 B et - | 7
L Yo, e
- {n]
A Y/
L3N

'@'S " S :- : :
/ < 7 . o

f'PO/};bOW )
nn

42
The
50 Lodge
104.2m

(/o/\/ )

Stone House

KEY

=e=mmmme BIN COLLECTION CREW PULL
DISTANCE - MAX. 15m

mmmm STEP FREE BIN PULL ROUTE TO
COLLECTION POINT

BIN COLLECTION POINT

BIN/RECYCLING STORAGE

D 18.02.26 Latest site plan shown. N

C 07.07.25 Latest site plan shown. N

B 30.04.25 Latest site plan shown. N

A 06.11.24 Latest site plan shown. N
Revision | Date Amendment Initials

T 01902 762854 M 07977 253860

ﬁ:('flford

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

/\VANT

homes

FORMER ALLESLEY HOTEL
BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
COVENTRY

W www.radford-architectural.co.uk

E radfordarchitecturalservices@gmail.com

Client

REFUSE STRATEGY
1310-24-280

Revision Scale @A?2
D 1:500

DS OCT 2024



AutoCAD SHX Text_295
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
Rainbow Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
Harry Caplan House

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
103.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
Stone House

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
BIRMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
A4114 PICKFORD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
BCP


6G abed

Notes

© Radford Architectural Services Ltd. Do not scale from this drawing
Refer to figured dimensions only. Contractors must check all
dimensions on site.

ZAttenuation basin Stons House

Sane

APy A
oposed acoustic

barrier 24m-high

W
accomeda o
highway run-off

24dm

- posed
“barrier 2.4m high

Acoustic barrier to be 2.4m high close
board timber construction with a
minimum density of 15 kg/m? and free
of perforations.

If necessary due to gaps in hedgeline,
it can be supplemented with native
species: Yew, Holly and Hazel and/or
clad in ivy and left to mature.

Fence line to generally follow the top
of embankment before highway land
as shown, but meander through free
line as best fits.

Revision | Date Amendment Initials

V4 T 01902 762854 M 07977 253860
Ra Or W www.radford-architectural.co.uk

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES € radfordarchitecturalservic com

Client

/\VANT

homes

BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
COVENTRY

ACOUSTIC BARRIER
Dwg No
1310-24-290
Revision —————— Scale @A3
NTS

DS MAY 2025




09 abed

R
v\ Uy 4
a,aa & < _Zv
v v VX &
A - 4
4 - VR P I/K%
- — o AV~
o a¥4a g 9
v -~
v VAY Y|
0& - vwg\ VNW <
< § - 0w 30y _ N\~
N P (*0@7 Y .
<1 e 0 - y&gA// Sy —]
Nk vUQJV A
0 o o o o e e e e N ~ V4 g <2 QO
T T T T T T T T TITI T I I I T I I I I T I I T I I I I I I I I T I I T I I T T e L L LT T T L L T T T T T T TITITITITITIIITT < N\ < A S =7 S
1 O ~ — N v i
TTTI T I T I T I TI T I T I I T I I T I I I I I I I I T I T I I I I I T I I I II T I I ITII I TI T T I IIITITITITITITITITITI] ﬁ\ < L vav o %
8 V7 N s N ‘ﬁgfv%vh ¢=¢ o=
N @@\W 5 N
- Y
~ N
y = -
7474§<\\ vVV a N ~, i =
Arg QNS 5 530 ST LI L LT ,
- v 2
N Lo CEETY ] mEs EEN EEN 4 3
- o VA ~7 L] L]
= \ ~7
NIRRT e o OO Do n ZoS
S gw e TS 4
N FBQU o~
Sl 2 == o7,
ok ok SRS o] LTT L] LI L] J [ [ /
AR ~ HEN L1000 HEN
o - o I Y L] L] LI j
[1]] [ ]] [ ]] RN AL L o -
H H H H H Render
O L I O T L R R R Y
A T T 7 T [ ] R R SR SR SRS S S ST
; ] Render Render L. | [ ] l J‘ [ ‘ j
i frdillegogre TEE eph oo =
Stone Stone Stone [IBex UE __} {-. %%EF”””” i == ‘._li-ﬂ_: HHHHHHH it A e reacee IRETET ITT) 2
- s .. 1 1T 11 AR REREEN &
T T L1 il 1y :] i3 g_
I [l a .
i Brick @@ Brick D

North Elevation Plots 1-9 (slab level 103.275) Datum Level = 102.00m

ELEVATION POSITIONS
NOT TO SCALE

I
)
I
l
|

El Sub
Sta

|

|

|

|
[
[
|
|

I

/

Retained

P 1Ll ars to B Plots 1-9 elevations odded to Street Scene 17.02.26] DW KT
A Additional Trees 02.10.24|LB |[KT
Rev Amendment Date Drn|Chk]
\\\\e n 1. r a n C e \\< Revisions:
\\ ( Client: )
TSa AVANT HOMES
~o N
~o ~N
N
N
Site:
DEVELOPMENT AT BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
ALLESLEY, COVENTRY
\\\\ Title:
\\. PROPOSED STREET SCENE
X

/O(-/ Scale: Date:
1:100 @A1 SEPTEMBER 2024
Drg No.: Rev:
1694-24 B
DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\1694\Surveys\Current\1694—24.dwg
DRAWN: IG

MINOR INACCURACIES MAY OCCUR DUE TO PRINTING PROCESSES,
SCALED DIMENSIONS SHOULD NOT BE TAKEN FROM THIS DRAWING
UNLESS FOR THE PURPOSES OF VERIFYING OR DETERMINING ANY
PLANNING APPLICATION. ALL WRITTEN / SCALED DIMENSIONS &
FLOOR AREAS ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR(S) ON
SITE.

THIS DRAWING, DESIGN & BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE ©
COPYRIGHT OF KEVIN R. TWIGGER ASSOCIATES LTD & MAY NOT BE
AMENDED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO
LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS OR ALTERATIONS
MADE BY OTHERS.

Kevin R.Twigger & Associates Ltd

Rushall House, School Road, Brewood, Staffs, ST19 9DS
t| 01902 851 641 e]| admin@krtassociates.co.uk
w | www.krtassociates.co.uk

- J

ARCHITECTURAL ¢ CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYORS ¢ LANDSCAPE DESIGN

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

METRES F:F:F

SCALE BAR - 1:100



AutoCAD SHX Text_337
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Render

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
Render

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
Render

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
Sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
Box

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
Render

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
Render

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
Render

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
Alarm

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
Alarm

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
Render

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
Pump

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
BIRMINGHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Retained pillars to entrance

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\1694\Surveys\Current\1694-24.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Title:

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Drg No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
IG

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
Site:

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
Amendment

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Rev:

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
Drn

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
Chk

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
Client:

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
Additional Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
02.10.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
KT

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
Plots 1-9 elevations added to Street Scene 

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
17.02.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
KT


v
,, —
\4 \\/"
% B — N
— B
- LB | | |
= : - \ \ \
I T T
'] i ] ‘
.. o I I I
< o T T I
Il T T
4P ? I I I
a
R | | i
N\ | 1 |
[ 4 9 I I I
!k L e
A o ¥ : : %
] \ y ‘ : |
\ \11 el ! : >
X 2 \ s i :
\ \ % ] ]
J - \‘ é o ) = :
\ /.A e - i —— 1
v 47 4 : |
4 7 )4 o = i — . .
( P 4 2 77—7;\—,.,’. ] ;
| V/ = ’n”nr— I i
! |
T ,H;_’
& RS REam=me
rlw‘

PLOT 57 PLOT 58 PLOT 59 PLOT 60 \ \

Front Elevation ‘ ‘
vat | | Rear Elevation

0

I
ap
G Bedroom 1 [
] 10 C

LJ\-Z/% \—“ e &“ 4 : \g Plot 57
hrog hrog hro ST

_E]Dt Landing ]D; Landing R i Bﬁt ar ﬂ Landing | D = P Ot 58

] N1 7 = = Plot 59

N % % N | Plot 60

TT1T

BT

Bedroom|2 Live/ Work Bedroom| 2 Live/ Work | " | Live/ Work Bedroom 2 Live/ Work Bedroom 2 D

H L
-~

DO T

Bedrogm 1

En-Suite

Floor Area Schedule

|
1D
Bedroom 1 D ' Bedroom 1

N
Z?F

Plot No. Total sq.ft

]
N
:
Q
3
a

5888

Hl L] L]

[a [ Floor Area Schedule Added [o7.11.24BE [- |
[Rev— [Amendment [Date — JOm|chk|
Revisions:

( 2

| | | . . .
P_LOT 57 PLOT 58 PLOT 59 PLOT 60 Left-Side Elevation AVANT HOMES
First Floor Plan

‘ Site:
M DEVELOPMENT AT BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
_F ALLESLEY, COVENTRY

Title:
PLOTS 57 - 60
E’ 2N FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

[ \ |_ —| / B —| / [ Scale: Date:
1 I 1:100 @ A2 OCTOBER 2024
- Drg No.: Rev:
: all % N Ha\\ : & Ha\\ ] 169429 A
D WC /4 ¥, ) WC @ \J WC G[_ V DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\ 1694\Planning\Current\1694—29.dwg
\ =

Kitchen/Dining Kitchen/Dining

DRAWN: B. Evans

Tl =Y MINOR INACCURACIES MAY OCCUR DUE TO PRINTING PROCESSES,
Storel | |Store, Storg il I SCALED DIMENSIONS SHOULD NOT BE TAKEN FROM THIS DRAWING
I M L (- UNLESS FOR THE PURPOSES OF VERIFYING OR DETERMINING ANY
|- PLANNING APPLICATION. ALL WRITTEN / SCALED DIMENSIONS &
L ] FLOOR AREAS ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR(S) ON
SITE.

Lounge Lounge Lounge Lounge THIS DRAWING, DESIGN & BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE ©
COPYRIGHT OF KEVIN R. TWIGGER ASSOCIATES LTD & MAY NOT BE
1 = AMENDED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO

LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS OR ALTERATIONS
. _ MADE BY OTHERS.
\ (. J

T | I 0 ! | ! T | B [ —] ( A

L J b i
PLOT 57 ‘ PLOT 58 ‘ PLOT 59

Ground Floor Plan

Kevin R.Twigger & Associates Ltd
. . . hall , School d, d, Staffs,
Right-Side Elevation o s a7 i

w | www.krtassociates.co.uk

- J

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

METRES F:F:F ARCHITECTURAL e CIVIL ENGINEERING

SCALE BAR - 1:100 LAND SURVEYORS ¢ LANDSCAPE DESIGN

T9 abed



AutoCAD SHX Text_403
DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\1694\Planning\Current\1694-29.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
Title:

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
Scale:

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Drg No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
B. Evans

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
Revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
Site:

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
Amendment

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
Rev:

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
Drn

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
Chk

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Client:

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
Floor Area Schedule Added

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
07.11.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
BE

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
-


29 abed

METRES

METRES

(NNNNNRRNERERR

2 )

%3

s,

2
2y

7

s

7
%

7.

[z

2

5
27 Y
Z &2
\ /,A R

PLOT 10
Front Elevation

(NNNNRRRRENAER

[RNNRENNRENEEE

PLOT 11

PLOT 10

]

4

|

Left-Side Elevation

Bedroon

)

D)thr(%m’r
Landing

1

PLOT 11

Ground Floor Plan

Om 4m 6m 8m 10m
SCALE BAR - 1:100
Om 2m 3m 4m 5m

SCALE BAR - 1:50

Bedroom 2 || Live/ Work

]

Live/ Work

PLOT 10
First Floor Plan

PLOT 11

Rear Elevation

Hoor Area Schedule

lroom 1

Landing

/

B

Bathro

N a

Wardrobe

adroom 2

—— ]

Plot No.
Plot 10
Plot 11

Total sq.ft
808
808

Rev Amendment Date Drn|Chk|

Revisions:

-
Client:

AVANT HOMES

Site:

DEVELOPMENT AT BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
ALLESLEY, COVENTRY

Title:

PLOTS 10 - 11
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

Scale: Date:

1:50 & 1:100 @ A1 NOVEMBER 2024
Drg No.: Rev:

1694-49

DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\1694\Planning\Current\1694—49—50-51-52.dwg
DRAWN: B. Evans

MINOR INACCURACIES MAY OCCUR DUE TO PRINTING PROCESSES,
SCALED DIMENSIONS SHOULD NOT BE TAKEN FROM THIS DRAWING
UNLESS FOR THE PURPOSES OF VERIFYING OR DETERMINING ANY
PLANNING APPLICATION. ALL WRITTEN / SCALED DIMENSIONS &
FLOOR AREAS ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR(S) ON
SITE.

THIS DRAWING, DESIGN & BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE ©
COPYRIGHT OF KEVIN R. TWIGGER ASSOCIATES LTD & MAY NOT BE
AMENDED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO
LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS OR ALTERATIONS
MADE BY OTHERS.

Kevin R.Twigger & Associates Ltd

Rushall House, School Road, Brewood, Staffs, ST19 9DS
t] 01902 851 641 e| admin@krtassociates.co.uk
w | www.krtassociates.co.uk

8 J

ARCHITECTURAL e CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYORS ¢ LANDSCAPE DESIGN




)

Left-Side Elevation

INNNRNNERRNEN

Rear Elevation

)

N\

)

S

>

Hoor Area Schedule

S

N\

N

N\

y N
_—
NN

=
N

N

A\

N\

Plot No. Total sq.ft
Plot 56 808
Plot 57 808

Y
ANNNN
NN
NN

S\
!\\\\‘
S

PLOT 56
Front Elevation

—% { | U —!I, Il!—
(=
Kitchen/Dining Bedroo 'droom 1

=i

[
| I —

E[° [3) WC /'Z{a” W Ha” H’lSto I b j :I’_- \ A Plot numbers amended to latest layout 13.08.25|DW [KT
) - N ] k | { throom 1 i & o
L ; WC ‘ ‘ : / fbli\e\n/tjANT HOMES
“ ‘ \ K\ »tore a D \ ] D Landing

ﬂ:

Site:
Store Wardrobe DEVELOPMENT AT BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
| _ _ ALLESLEY, COVENTRY
—

Lounge (_: WJ Lounge | \ J PLOTS 56.- 57

. FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
Bedroom 2 ||Live/ Work | | |Live/ Work || Bedroom 2

b
)

Scale: Date:

1:50 & 1:100 @ A1 NOVEMBER 2024
Drg No.: Rev:
l ‘ i l 1694-50 A
DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\ 1694\Planning\Current\1694—49—50-51-52.dwg
T | |
! i MINOR INACCURACIES MAY OCCUR DUE TO PRINTING PROCESSES,

DRAWN: B. Evans
‘ ‘ SCALED DIMENSIONS SHOULD NOT BE TAKEN FROM THIS DRAWING
UNLESS FOR THE PURPOSES OF VERIFYING OR DETERMINING ANY
PLANNING APPLICATION. ALL WRITTEN / SCALED DIMENSIONS &
FLOOR AREAS ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR(S) ON

SITE.

PLOT 56 PLOT 57 PLOT 56 PLOT 57 THIS ORAVING, DESIG & SULLDING WORKS DEFICTED ARE THE ©

COPYRIGHT OF KEVIN R. TWIGGER ASSOCIATES LTD & MAY NOT BE
AMENDED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO
LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS OR ALTERATIONS
MADE BY OTHERS.

Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan ~ J

Kevin R.Twigger & Associates Ltd

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

METRES Rushall House, School Road, Brewood, Staffs, ST19 9DS

SCALE BAR - 1:100 t| 01902 851 641 e| admin@krtassociates.co.uk
' w| www.krtassociates.co.uk

N\ J

ARCHITECTURAL e CIVIL ENGINEERING
SCALE BAR - 1:50 LAND SURVEYORS ¢ LANDSCAPE DESIGN

Om 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m

€9 abed

METRES




79 abed

|
=
il

Left-Side Elevation _, ,

LSl

2 Rear Elevation

= =
.. Hoor Area Schedule

~ Plot No. Total sq.ft
= Plot 54 808

Plot 55 808

PLOT 54 PLOT 55

Left-Side Elevation

__{

—'U il 1T !J}—% %—L
| | ]

-

Bedroom 1 Bedroom 1

Nhal 55

=0 04
\ / @I A Plot numbers amended to latest layout 13.08.25|DW |KT
th ro@

M M {m: :m] ;z sionsf\mendment Date  |Drn|Chk
T | — throo — .
| R AVANT HOMES
‘ | ‘ ‘ K\ﬂ tore| IStore, FIJ/J ‘ ‘ ‘ 10 Landing Landing a

Site:

Wardrobe Wardrobe DEVELOPMENT AT BIRMINGHAM ROAD,

b P:J _ - _ ALLESLEY, COVENTRY
Lounge Lounge \ \ J
PLOTS 54 - 55

F :-} FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

Bedroom| 2 Live/ Work | | | Live/ Work Bedroom 2

-,

Scale: Date:

1:50 & 1:100 @ A1 NOVEMBER 2024
Drg No.: Rev:
1694-51 A
DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\ 1694\Planning\Current\1694—49—-50-51-52.dwg
I DRAWN: B. Evans
@ F g - 1 F a £ q @ I!‘EE!I I!EE!I AEEB I!EE!I MINOR INACCURACIES MAY OCCUR DUE TO PRINTING PROCESSES,

SCALED DIMENSIONS SHOULD NOT BE TAKEN FROM THIS DRAWING
UNLESS FOR THE PURPOSES OF VERIFYING OR DETERMINING ANY
PLANNING APPLICATION. ALL WRITTEN / SCALED DIMENSIONS &
FLOOR AREAS ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR(S) ON
_______________ = B e | SITE.

1=
PLOT 54 PLOT 55 PLOT 54 PLOT 55 CEYRGHT O VI & TWHGEER ASSOLIATES LT s N 5
COPYRIGHT OF KEVIN R. TWIGGER ASSOCIATES LTD & MAY NOT BE
AMENDED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO
LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS OR ALTERATIONS

- MADE BY OTHERS.
Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan | ;
Kevin R.Twigger & Associates Ltd
Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m
METRES Rushall House, School Road, Brewood, Staffs, ST19 9DS

SCALE BAR - 1:100 t| 01902 851 641 e| admin@krtassociates.co.uk
' w | www.krtassociates.co.uk

g J

ARCHITECTURAL e CIVIL ENGINEERING
SCALE BAR - 1:50 LAND SURVEYORS ¢ LANDSCAPE DESIGN

Om Im 2m 3m 4m 5m

METRES




[F

e

N = >
—— ,f;,’;’,é\
n m T= (2:/ L]
=== e 0 O oL
Eﬂ O | @H ; — ‘ /|
—[— o

Left-Side Elevation _
Rear Elevation

[NNENRNARENNER

? o Floor Area Schedule

2D

l’,/’<

v I\ - : Plot No. Total sq.ft
AN N N Plot 51 308

i\\ § \\\Q §\\\ I _ Ot 5

A A : T

Plot 52 808
Plot 53 808

PLOT 51 PLOT 52

PLOT 53 Right-Side Elevation

Front Elevation

iroom 1 Bedroom 1

Bedroon

=0
‘f'- 0 0~
- @ -_;1’ A Plot numbers amended to latest layout 13.08.25|DW [KT
' } 3 Rev | Amendment Date Drn|Chk
J\ / / Revisions:
Q Q Client:
5 athr athr l:m AVANT HOMES

4{ %hro/om
ak Landing ak

=) | | | Landing Landing
Store!| ———] = DEVELOPMENT AT BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
Wardrobe Wardrobe ALLESLEY, COVENTRY
ﬂ/ EoAle 5 | | ‘ | ‘
| \( Lounge Lounge K J k / \ / PLOTS 51 - 53
Lounge FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS

Bedroom 2 || Live/ Work | | | Live/ Work Bedroom 2 Live/ Work Bedroom 2 o

1:50 & 1:100 @ A1 NOVEMBER 2024

|
|

Drg No.: Rev:

‘ 1694-52 A
l I ‘ I DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\ 1694\Planning\Current\1694—49—-50-51-52.dwg
DRAWN: B. Evans
i

MINOR INACCURACIES MAY OCCUR DUE TO PRINTING PROCESSES,
I!EEL AEE!] }!EE!] [!EE!’ SCALED DIMENSIONS SHOULD NOT BE TAKEN FROM THIS DRAWING
"} 1} UNLESS FOR THE PURPOSES OF VERIFYING OR DETERMINING ANY
PLANNING APPLICATION. ALL WRITTEN / SCALED DIMENSIONS &
FLOOR AREAS ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR(S) ON

] I e

THIS DRAWING, DESIGN & BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE ©

PLOT 51 PLOT 52 PLOT 53 PLOT 51 PLOT 52 PLOT 53

AMENDED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO
LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS OR ALTERATIONS
MADE BY OTHERS.

Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan f :

Kevin R.Twigger & Associates Ltd

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

METRES Rushall House, School Road, Brewood, Staffs, ST19 9DS
SCALE BAR - 1:100 t| 01902 851 641 e| admin@krtassociates.co.uk

w| www.krtassociates.co.uk

. J

ARCHITECTURAL e CIVIL ENGINEERING
SCALE BAR - 1:50 LAND SURVEYORS ¢ LANDSCAPE DESIGN

Om Im 2m 3m 4m 5m

METRES

G9 abed




99 abed

-

7
77
7

(7

]
nEon

PLOT 52

T

PLOT 53

PLOT 51

PLOTS 51-53 FRONT ELEVATION

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

METRES F?:F

SCALE BAR - 1:100

e 87/ 22 7Y,
A" ‘A‘I / ",:ER"' X %
DI
O
|

42‘ -
7

I

7 N 7™\
7 N
7
¢

PLOT 55
PLOT 56

PLOT 54

PLOTS 54-57 FRONT ELEVATION

N
N

PLOT 57

Plot numbers amended to latest layout 13.08.25DW | KT|

A

Rev dment Date Drn|Chk|
Revisions:

-

Client:

AVANT HOMES

Site:

DEVELOPMENT AT BIRMINGHAM ROAD
ALLESLEY, COVENTRY

’

Title:
STREET SCENE PLOTS 51 - 57

Scale: Date:

1: 100@A2 APRIL 2025
Drg No.: Rev:

1694-53 A

DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\1694'\Planning\Current\1694—49-50—51-52.dwg
DRAWN: DW

MINOR INACCURACIES MAY OCCUR DUE TO PRINTING PROCESSES,
SCALED DIMENSIONS SHOULD NOT BE TAKEN FROM THIS DRAWING
UNLESS FOR THE PURPOSES OF VERIFYING OR DETERMINING ANY
PLANNING APPLICATION. ALL WRITTEN / SCALED DIMENSIONS &
FLOOR AREAS ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR(S) ON
SITE.

THIS DRAWING, DESIGN & BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE ©
COPYRIGHT OF KEVIN R. TWIGGER ASSOCIATES LTD & MAY NOT BE
AMENDED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO
LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS OR ALTERATIONS
MADE BY OTHERS.

Kevin R.Twigger & Associates Ltd

Rushall House, School Road, Brewood, Staffs, ST19 9DS
t| 01902 851 641 e| admin@krtassociates.co.uk
w| www.krtassociates.co.uk

. J/

ARCHITECTURAL e CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYORS ¢ LANDSCAPE DESIGN




13

14

/9 abed

Rough Dene Woodland Planting
163nr Corylus avellana 40-60cm
14nr Malus sylvestris /175-200cm
27nr Prunus padus 175-200cm
14nr Salix cinerea 40-60cm

27nr Sorbus aucuparia 175-200cm
14nr Ulmus glabra /40-60cm

14nr Viburnum opulus 40-60cm

El
Sub Sta

TCB o E—

€01

1to 33

Harry Caplan House

Wyre Road Na(ivéLI;iéd €

16nr Cor aye 2L

‘ Community
- ‘ Centre
N
‘ e
Z | |
[ “ [
L | |
O\ |
<4 AT et ien-DESIN

L *\TE/omless native mix |
51nr Ace cam v o
39nr Cor alb
51nr Cor ave \

/SQnr Rib san 3L ‘
39nr Sam nig

39nr Vib opu |

16nr Ros gan 2L

Praopa
barrier

/?gggfls ?223 |

,7,',

Bl

LS3a 1

8nr Lav Hid 5L |
8nr Ski Rub 5L
16nr Vib dav 5L

way No

LS2b
9nr Heb Pag 5L
9nr Pru Ott 5L

A LS4c
9nr Ber Nan 5L N
. onr Lav Hid 5L

9nr Phl fru 5L ‘
..9nr Vib dav 5L

Lda o
N 7nr Cor can 5L
7nr Euo Eme 5L-
7nr Pru Ott 5L
7nr Vin Var 5L

PR Cu oo oo CHolly Yew Hedge
vy * /76300 Jle aqu 2L
v v Ry v v 210nr Tax bac 3L

Right of

highw

Thornless nat

86

76

1nr Car Fra—;

\LS3ar L
8nr Lav Hid 5L
“8nrSkiRubSL | "

. SL'Prulus Hedge
« 35nf Pru lus 5-7.5L

VP

VP

F

Ls2e—|
9nr-Ber Nan 5L
onrLavHidsL U

Ls3d
—BnrFes Gla5-7.5L

LS4d T
8nrFes Gla 5-7.5L
8nrlav

1nr Car Fra-

E 16nrLav Hid

tive mix

8nr Vib

35

L]

5L

8nr Cor Sib 10

~13nr Fat liz 10l

3nr Hyp Hid
57

Hid 5L

8nrVib-dav 5L

>
Y

[

f

/ L >

1nr Car Fra—

dav 5L
4ni Vin Var 5L

501 Pru/ot5

74

72

104.2m

LS4h
~ 19nr Ber Nan 5L
>“tonrHetyPag/si
19nr/Mis Gra/5:7.5L
Agnr Prd-Oft 5,

*—1nr Sor Lut

1-9 51/pho Red Hedge

B7nr-PhoRed

LS2c LS5a X

16nr Ber Nan 5L 16nr Fes Gla 5-7.5L 7

16nr Lav Hid 5L 16nr Lav Hid 5L
16nrPotElisL A
16nr Sal lan 5L
16nr Vib dav 5L 4

L3d
10nr Bux sem 5L
[ 20nr Vib dav 5L
100r Vin Var 5L
L2a
5Snr Euo Eme 5L777
5nr Hyp cal 5L

L2a
10nr Euo Eme/5L-
10nf/Hyp cal-5L

5L/Pry Jus Hedge

LS2c

7nr Ber Nan 5L
[7nr Lav Hid 5L
MS3b
5nr 10L

. 5nr Heb Mid 10L
9nr Ros off 10L

7nr Pru Oft 5L

7nr Vib/dav 5L/ 5L Pru |0s;Hedg

21nr Pfu/lus 5,

Yoy

1mBe}bé|j Ty

5L Pru lus Hedge /
42nr Pru ius 5-7.5L

p

barrier 2.4m high

6nr 10L.
[6r|r Hel

(7
] |

5L

105.8m

Shelter
Dufch’/eqfrance

LS4d

12nr Fes Gla 5-7.5L

12nr Lav Hid 5L
12nr Spi Wat 5L
12nr Vib dav 5L

LS4d
14nr Fes Gla 5-7.5L
14nr Lav Hid 5L
14nr Spi-Wat 5L

3 14nrVib dav 5L

Inr Sor Luty~_

wd 10L

1

.\;‘;lnr Car Fra

M.

LS4e =[]
| 10nr-Ber Nan 5L

OnrPhlfru 5k, 70
10nrVib dav 50 T

2nr Pru Ott 5L

» Ls3d
7nrFes Gla 5-7.5L
___15nrtavHid 5L
| 7niVib-dav 5L

5L Pho Red Hedge
31nr PhoRed 5L |11

7=

l/»1nr Bet jac

5L Pho Red Hedge/
18nr Pho Red 5L

5L Prii lus Hedge J
/1501 /Pru lus 5

is Hedge j

lus 5-7/5L

4a

{7

44

Cho ter 10L ]

leb Pag 5L
r Pru Ott 5L

Cor Ele 10 [ 75,

r Euo Que 10L E

S

5L Pho Red Hedge
13nr Pho Red 5L

l ok
5

£y
8nr Auc Var 10L /:‘
8nr Cho Sun 10L-
8nr Cor Sib 10L
8nr Hymgld 10L

El Sub

64

Existing piar
refain

eb Pag 5k

Pru Oftt 5L 6nr Euo Emg 5L

; 1 5L Pho Red Hedge

-~ 5

38nr Pho Red 5L

<
N

50
R, iy

R ain,
bOW
//7,7
(Pry)

10L Holly Hedge
32nr lle aqu 10L

AN

Stone House

| Cottage

104.2m

Groundworks Schedule
Grass
Abb Name Common Name Form Age Girth Height Root Brks Cntr Qty
Fes Gla Festuca ovina 'Glauca’ C 5-7.5L 7
77
Herbaceous
Abb Name Common Name Form Age Girth Height Root Brks Cntr Qty
Cor can Cornus canadensis Creeping dogwood 30-40cm c 5L 7
Mis Gra Miscanthus sinensis 'Gracillimus' Maiden grass c 5-7.5L 30
Phl fru Phlomis fruticosa Jerusalem sage 40-60cm Cc 5L 29
66
Shrub
Abb Name Common Name Form Age Girth Height Root Brks Cntr Qty
Hypericum patulum ‘Hidcote' 40-60cm c 7 100 11
Auc Var Aucuba japonica 'Variegata' 60-80cm c 7 100 8
Ber Nan Berberis thunbergii 'Atropurpurea Nana' Barberry 30-40cm c 4 5L 91
Bux sem Buxus sempervirens Common box 40-50cm C 5L 22
Cho Sun Choisya ternata 'Sundance’ Mexican orange blossom 40-60cm c 7 10L 11
Cho ter Choisya ternata Mexican orange blossom 40-60cm C 7 10L 7
Cor alb Cornus alba Red barked dogwood 12 60-80cm B 102
Cor ave Corylus avellana Hazel, Cobnut 40-60cm C 2 2L 16
Cor ave Corylus avellana Hazel, Cobnut 1 60-80cm B 134
Cor Ele Cornus alba 'Elegantissima’ Red barked dogwood 60-80cm C 7 10L 3
Cor Sib Cornus alba 'Sibirica’ Westonbirt dogwood 60-80cm C 7 10L 11
Cryls av Corylus avellana Hazel, Cobnut 1/0 40-60cm B 163
Euo Eme Euonymus fortunei ‘Emerald Gaiety' Spindle ‘Emerald Gaiety 30-40cm(D) c 5L 35
Euo Eme Euonymus fortunei 'Emerald Gaiety' Spindle 'Emerald Gaiety 30-40cm(D) Cc 3 5L 7
Euo Gol Euonymus fortunei 'Emerald n Gold' Euonymus ‘Emerald and Gold* 30-40cm(D) C 3 5L 16
Euo Que Euonymus fortunei 'Silver Queen’ Spindle Silver Queen 40-60cm [} 10L 3
Fat liz Fatshedera lizei 60-80cm c 1oL 3
Heb Mid Hebe 'Midsummer Beauty' Hebe 40-60cm Cc 11 1oL 11
Heb Pag Hebe pinguifolia ‘Pagei" Hebe 30-40cm(D) c 5 5L 74
Hyp cal Hypericum calycinum Rose of sharon 20-25cm Cc 5L 15
Hyp Hid Hypericum patulum "Hidcote' 40-60cm c 6 100 11
lle aqu llex aquifolium Holly 30-40cm [} 2L 630
lle aqu llex aquifolium Holly 80-100cm c 100 32
Lav Hid Lavandula angustifolia "Hidcote" English lavender 30-40cm [} 5L 213
Pho Red Photinia x fraserii ‘Red Robin' Red-tipped photinia 0/1 60-80cm B 5L 137
Pot Eli Potentilla fruticosa 'Elizabeth’ Cinquefoil 40-60cm(D) C 4 5L 16
Pru lus Prunus lusitanica Portugal laurel 60-80cm C 4 5-7.5L 190
Pru Ott Prunus laurocerasus 'Otto Luyken' Cherry laurel var. 40-60cm [} 4 5L 88
Pru spi Prunus spinosa Blackthorn 40-60cm c 3 2L 16
Rib san Ribes sanguineum Flowering currant 60-80cm c 3L 102
Ros can Rosa canina Dog rose C 3 2L 16
Ros off Rosmarinus officinalis 'Miss Jessopp's Upright' Rosemary 40-60cm C 7 10L 9
Rub fru Rubus fruticosa Bramble 40-60cm Cc 3 2L 16
Sal lan Salix lanata Woolly willow 40-50cm c 4 5L 16
Sam nig Sambucus nigra Common elder 60-80cm B 102
Ski Rub Skimmia japonica ‘Rubella’ Japanese Skimmia 40-60cm c 6 5L 16
Spi Wat Spiraea bumalda 'Anthony Waterer' 40-60cm Cc 5L 46
Vb op Viburnum opulus Guelder rose i 40-60cm B 14
Vib dav Viburnum davidii David viburnum 30-40cm Cc 4 5L 187
Vib dav Viburnum davidii David viburnum 30-40cm C 8 5L 16
Vib opu Viburnum opulus Guelder rose 11 60-80cm B 102
Vin Var Vinca major 'Variegata' Greater periwinkle var. 10-15cm C 5L 10
Vin Var Vinca major 'Variegata' Greater periwinkle var. 30-40cm C 5L 34
Vin Var Vinca major 'Variegata' Greater periwinkle var. 30-40cm(D) c 5L 5
2767
Tree
Abb Name Common Name Form Age Girth Height Root Brks Cntr Qty
Ace cam Acer campestre Field maple Transplant - seed raised 1 60-80cm B 134
Bet Dal Betula pendula 'Dalecarlica’ Swedish birch Standard (Heavy) 3x 12-14cm 350-425cm RB 76 2
Bet jac Betula jacquemontii Standard (Heavy) 12-14cm 350-425cm B 2
Car Fra Carpinus betulus 'Frans Fontaine Hornbeam Standard (Extra heavy) 3x 12-14cm 350-425cm RB 65 3
Car Fra Carpinus betulus ‘Frans Fontaine Hornbeam Standard (Extra heavy) 3x 16-18cm min 600cm RB 65 2
Cramon Crataegus monogyna Common hawthorn Seedling (undercut) 1ul 60-80cm B 95
Mis sy Malus sylvestris Crab apple Standard (Half) 175-200cm B 14
Prns pd Prunus padus Bird cherry Feathered 3x 175-200cm B 27
Pru pad Prunus padus Bird cherry Standard 3x 16-18cm 450-500cm RB 5
Pru Sub Prunus subhirtella 'Autumnalis’ Autumn cherry Standard (Heavy) 3x 12-14cm 350-425cm RB 56
Slx cnr Salix cinerea Grey sallow 40-60cm B 14
Sor Lut Sorbus aria "Lutescens’ Whitebeam Standard (Selected) 2x 12-14cm 350-425cm RB 37 2
Srbs ac Sorbus aucuparia Mountain ash or Rowan Feathered/Maiden 175-200cm B 27
Tax bac Taxus baccata Yew 50-60cm C 3L 210
Ulm gl Ulmus glabra Wych elm 40-60cm B 14
552
3462

Specification for Soft and Hard Landscape Works.

All landscape works shall comply with BS 4428:1989.
Unless where otherwise specified:-

A. Setting Out

1. Planting shall be set out exactly as shown on the drawing and measured from existing fixed points. Curved beds shall be
set out using radii scribed on the ground using two pointed stakes and a line between, or with site marker paint. The junction
between convex and concave curves shall be cut to form a smooth and even flowing line. Check that all setting out conforms
to the plan before cultivation and planting works are carried out. Failure to do so may result in rejection of the work by the
landscape architect and may require amendment at the contractor's expense.

2. All planting beds shall be a minimum of 1 metre wide, except where there is insufficient space, due to the constraints of
walls and path edgings and their foundations. With narrow beds between walls/fences and path edgings, ensure that the bed
has space free from concrete footings before planting. If the bed is sealed with concrete, then the landscape contractor shall
contact the site manager or landscape architect to determine if footings are excessive and can be reduced or else, the bed can
be paved. The width of all beds will be checked by the inspecting landscape architect and where the width is not as drawn, the
contractor shall re-cultivate them to the specified width at his own expense.

B. Ground Preparation.

1. Pre-planting herbicide application shall be applied by suitable spraying apparatus using an approved translocated systemic
herbicide to manufacturer's instructions and to 1997 Control of Pesticides Regulations and 2003 COSHH regulations on all
beds, except those which are both weed free and are to receive geotextile sheet mulch. Spray immediately if any weeds are
present. If none are showing, but there may be a delay before planting, or the area is to be seeded, spray after one month
following cultivation, to allow dormant seed to germinate. All spraying shall be carried out by skilled and qualified operatives,
using protective clothing, in suitable weather (no wind) and any damage caused by spray drift, from incorrect usage or
spillage, shall be rectified at the contractor's own cost. Repeat as necessary to ensure complete kill and rake off all dead
material from site.

2. Carry out the following works to the existing topsoil on site to ensure it conforms to BS 3882:2015, being free from rocks
larger than 50m diameter, concrete, all roots, wire, brick, and have less than 20% clay. Allow for pre-application of
herbicide as above. Fertilise with 100g per metre square of Fisons "Neutrocote” slow release fertilizer, in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions. For beds less than 5 meters in width, fork over thoroughly or machine rotovate soil to a depth of
300mm, ensuring that the subgrade and topsoil are completely broken up and free draining, relieving any compaction. For
beds greater than 5 metres in width, break up the subgrade and topsoil using a tractor mounted subsoiler or ripper at 500mm
centres to a depth of 500mm, except where there are services, or within 10 meters of tree stems or 3 meters of existing
hedges. Do not rip areas where roots greater than 10mm diameter are encountered. Do not break up soil within the root
protection zone of any retained tree. Refer to All About Trees Arboricultural Implications Assessment for further information.

3. Determine before submitting a tender, the extent of support from the site manager with ground preparation: ensure soil
of all planting beds is graded to a level 65mm below adjacent grass or paved surfaces, (90mm below where agro-textile set
mulch is not specified), within 400-600mm of edges to ensure bark or wood chip mulches are retained. Where grass is
proposed, then the soil level shall be flush (maximum 10mm below - but never proud) of adjacent paved surfaces, to receive
rain water run-off. The landscape contractor is responsible for ensuring that the final product conforms to the specification
even where the developer and/or main contractor have failed to supply and spread topsoil to the recessed level. The
landscape contractor shall allow for adjustment of levels, as specified above, including for re-grading subsoil and topsoil.
Where beds are sloping, ensure that topsoil is graded to the specified levels below pavement & grass surfaces within 400mm
of the edges of the bed. This is to allow for sheet mulch and bark or wood chip mulch so that mulch does not spill out on to
pavements and also to allow surface water to drain from paths on to planted areas.

4. For sloping areas to be turfed adjacent to paved areas, topsoil levels shall be graded flush with the finished pavement
level (or up to 10mm below), to allow surface water to drain from pavements to soft areas. Soil of grass areas should
therefore never be proud of paved areas. Soil levels more than 10 mm below pavement edges will cause mower damage on
cutting.

5. Imported topsoil (where specified and sanctioned by the employer) for making up ground, shall conform to BS 3882:
2007, and be free from rocks (over 50mm diameter), concrete, roots, wire and brick, and have less than greater than 20%
clay. Such soil shall be cultivated as set out above. Representative samples shall first be approved by the landscape
architect before being supplied to site. No imported soil shall be supplied to site without a written instruction.

C. Planting

1. All planting must be carried out in accordance to the specification and schedule of quantities accompanying these
drawings. Refer to the specification for the preparation of existing topsoil and required depths for planting, turfing, and
standard trees, and also for maintenance requirements.

2. No substitutions will be accepted without the prior agreement of the inspecting landscape architect. The contractor shall
replace at once at his own cost any stock size, species or variety of plant which has not been specified on the planting plan
and schedule, unless prior agreement to a substitution by the landscape architect has been received. All plants shall be true
to size in the of plants and notes, (3L pots are 19cm diameter and 15cm deep). All shrubs,
(other than ground cover), shall be 400-600mm height and spread, or otherwise specified for the pot size by the HTA National
Plant Specification and be bushy, healthy, disease free stock, not pot bound, leggy or spindly. There should be a minimum of
5 breaks per shrub. This specification is the minimum standard required and any stock falling below this standard, in the sole
opinion of the inspecting landscape architect, shall be lifted and replaced at the contractor's expense.

3. Refer to accompanying Landscape Management Plan for watering details.

4. Proposed large feathered or standard trees to be true to the species, variety and size as specified on the planting
plan, to include 1.6m chestnut stake 600mm above ground and 1000mm below ground) and 1No.tie with spacing device
positioned 25mm maximum from the top of the post.

5. Turf to be of cultivated grade such as Rowlawn "Medalion”, or other of similar quality and source, approved by the
landscape architect. The contractor shall replace at once any turf rejected by the landscape architect at his own cost.

6. Self-clinging climbing shrubs or wall shrubs shall be trained to the wall/fence with heavy duty, plastic coated garden wire.
Training wires shall be attached vertically to the wall/fence by means of 125mm long stainless steel eye screw fittings.
Position 1No. at 250mm from ground, and 1No. 250mm from top of the wall/fence, and string the wire tightly between the
fixings. Train the climber to the wire with plastic coated garden wire tags.

7. Twining varieties of climber shall be trained to walls/fences by mounting ready-made trellis panels 1.8 x 1.8m generally
(but 1.8 x 0.6m for corners or where space is restricted). Include for adapting any panels for locations where walls or fences
are lower than 1.8m. Fix trellis panels to the walls/fences using non rusting screws 125mm long (to be approved),
incorporating 50mm cube wood spacing blocks to ensure that the panel is mounted sufficiently far from the wall/ fence to
allow twining of stems. Ensure that all timber is pressure impregnated with a non phyto-toxic preservative and then painted
with a dark brown non phyto-toxic preservative wood stain such as Sadolin “Classic” walnut or similar and approved. Ensure
that the trellis is not in contact with the ground. Train the climbing shrub to the trellis with plastic coated garden wire tags.

8. Climbers specified outside proposed shrub beds shall have specially prepared climber pits. Climber pits shall be 400mm x
400mm and 600mm deep (minimum size), and be backfilled with topsoil (from site - unless otherwise agreed). Ensure the
base of the pit is thoroughly broken up and free draining before back filling with topsoil. Ensure no damage to foundations and
services, and make good all structures and surfaces disturbed. Fertilise with 50g of Fisons "Neutrocote" slow release fertiliser.
Water with 15 litres of water per climber pit.

D. Mulch

1. When specified by the additional specification notes on this plan, supply and spread agrotextile "Weedstop Fabric" sheet
mulch over planting beds, previously, cultivated, graded and fertilized topsoil before planting, and peg down with Weedstop
pegs at a minimum of 500mm centres, (300mm at edges) and beds less than 1m wide. Pegging this densely is essential to
prevent flaps of material becoming exposed. Refer to the specification for "Weedstop Fabric" sheet mulch on plan.

2. Following planting supply and spread evenly Melcourt Industries “"Rustic Biomulch" to a depth of 50mm, (75mm if no sheet
mulch specified), over all planted areas. Finished mulch levels shall be no higher than 15mm below pavement or grass levels
to avoid any spillage onto pavements or lawns. N.B. no substitution of mulch type will be acceptable. It is essential to have a
no-fines, large particled, brown wood chip to reduce weed growth, reduce wind blow and prevent rapid break down.

E. BS Codes
1. All workmanship and materials shall conform to the following codes:-
- General landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces) - BS 4428:1989.
- Trees in relation to construction- BS 5837:2012.
- BS 3998:2010 (recommendations for tree works) unless otherwise specified.

Heavy standard tree planting in grassed or planted

areas. Tree pits as per BS 8545:2014. To include
single 1.6m timber stake, 600mm above ground,
spacer and biodegradable tie.

Ornamental shrub planting, including 50mm depth
no-fines bark mulch. Individual species to be planted

in groups of no more than 7 plants.

Ornamental hedge planting, including 50mm depth

no-fine bark mulch.

Native hedge planting. Plants to be pit planted at

0.33m spacing in a double staggered row (6 plants
per linear metre). Shelters to all plants. Species to
be planted in random, single species groups of no

more than 5 plants.

Areas to be turfed.

- Arboricultural Association - GN 8 Framework for tree work contracts - standard conditions of contract and
for tree works 2008.

- BS 8545:2014 Trees: from nursery to independence in the landscape. Recommendations

- Nursery stock in accordance with latest horticultural trade association nursery stock specification entitled "National
Plant Specification 2001 ".

- Turf - BS 3969:1998- recommendations for turf for general purposes.

- Seeding - EEC Regulations 1974. Use blue labelled certified varieties to EC purity and germination regulations. When
requested, submit an official seed Testing Station Certificate of germination, purity and composition.

- Topsoil - BS 3882:2007

- Pesticides: Control of Pesticides Regulations 1997; The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974; the COSHH Regulation
2003, the product COSHH sheet Water Supply (Water Quality) Regulations amended 1991;Control of Pollution Act
1974; Hedgerow ACT 1997; Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

F. General Notes for the Developer.
1. Tree Protection

- Please refer to All About Trees' tree protection information. No digging to take place within the root protection zones

of protected trees.
2. Ground Work

- Soil levels for shrub beds and grass areas should have any compacted subgrade thoroughly broken up by machine
before instructing the ground worker to spread topsoil or the landscape contractor to commence work or the beds
will become waterlogged in wet weather and the plants and turf.

- Top soil spread from on site should be to the following minimum depths:- Shrub beds: 350mm. Grass areas 150mm.
allow for excavation of 415mm of the subgrade for shrub beds to leave beds 65mm below finished pavement or
grass areas in order to receive sheet and bark mulch, (90mm below where sheet mulch is not to be used). Tree
pits will be as per BS 8545:2014. Top soil shall be spread for grass areas flush with any areas of paving and after
settlement, the soil level should be no greater than 10mm below paved areas to allow for turf. For areas to be
grass seeded, the soil level shall be flush with any finished paved surfaces after settlement (or to a maximum of
5mm below) to allow for rain water to drain onto soft surfaces. Settlement shall be no greater than the tolerances
given or problems will be encountered with mowing (the blades in danger of touching concrete edgings) or where
soil is proud of pavements, then drainage problems will be encountered.

- Existing topsoil and imported soil shall conform to BS 3882:2007, and be free from compaction, rocks/bricks
greater than 50mm diameter, concrete, wire, roots, debris, oil, cement and builders rubble. Soil shall have a clay
content of less than 20%.

3. Hardworks

- Hard works, unless otherwise agreed, shall be carried out by the developer or main contractor. All materials and
workmanship shall be in accordance with the construction details and the layout plan.

- All paths and edgings shall be set out properly to lines and radii, with all curves scribed on the ground using pointed
pegs and string or site marker paint, achieving flowing natural arcs. Setting out shall be agreed with the landscape
contractor and subsequently the landscape architect.

- Hard surfaces shall be constructed after suitable base courses have been laid, taking full account of local site
conditions, soft spots and substrate. The indicative depths of base courses are minimum depths assuming suitable
substrate conditions.

- All metalwork shall be finished hot dipped galvanized in accordance with BS EN 1SO1460. The galvanizer shall be
responsible for the thorough removal of all galvanizing smuts (fettling) to the complete satisfaction of the Landscape
Architect. The decorating contractor shall prepare the galvanized surface by washing with detergent and water and
scrubbing with a scouring pad until all dirt, grease, white rust & sulphates have been removed & then allowed to dry
thoroughly. Supply and paint ‘Icosit 6630" from Sika Ltd (tel. 01707 374444) applied with a turkhead brush strictly in
accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, COSHH regulations and the product COSHH sheet. Apply 2No. coats
of paint with a dry film thickness of 100 microns per coat. Apply paint only when galvanized surface is thoroughly
dry at temperatures above five degrees Celsius and in any event above the current dew point temperature. Paint
work will be subject to inspection by experts and if found wanting, shall be stripped off, re-prepared and applied
entirely at the decorating contractors own cost.

- All wood work to use ACQ water based wood preservative applied by vacuum pressure by Permawood or other similar
and approved company. The timber shall then be stained with 3No. coats of Sadolin "Classic," colour ‘Walnut" strictly
in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, COSHH Regulations 2003 and product COSHH sheet.

Areas of N14F Flowering Lawn seed mix, managed to

allow annual flowering.

Areas of Emorsgate EH1 seed mix.

Areas of N8F Water's Edge Flowers Mix seeding.

New native scrub planting, at 1m centres, including

biodegradable shrub guards and stakes.

Revision D: Updated to reflect layout changes around plots 25-28. PDP. 17.02.26
Revision C: Enhanced biodiversity proposals in liaison with ecology consultants. PDP. 08.08.25
Revision B: Updated to layout revision J from client. PDP. 16.07.25
Revision A: Updated to replanned layout. PDP. 06.05.25

PDP

Associates

Great Asby

Appleby in Westmorland
Cumbria

CA16 6HD

017683 54130

info@pdpcumbria.co.uk

Client

Project
Former

Scale

1:500 @ A1

Avant Homes

Allersley Hotel

Coventry

Drawing title
Detailed landscape proposals

Drawn by
PDP

Drawing No.

c-2260-01 Revision

Date
Nov 2024



AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Attenuation basin

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
Existing drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Drainage easement 6m wide

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
L.A.P

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
Right of way No.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Shallow swale to accomodate highway run-off

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
"Dutch" entrance crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
Existing pillar retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
Electric sub-station

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
Vehicle over-run zone

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Attenuation basin

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
Existing drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
Drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Drainage easement 6m wide

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
L.A.P

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
SHARED SURFACE "LANE"

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
Right of way No.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
Shallow swale to accomodate highway run-off

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
"Dutch" entrance crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
Existing pillar retained

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
VP

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
Electric sub-station

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
Vehicle over-run zone

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
VP


oY

l===
l /

ganl

T

- i

L

IR

By

HEE

| ]

anel TTAl

q “l"""b "L
T ]| SRERESA
i1 !!!!!!u!r [T

CYCLE STORE TO ACCOMODATE 12 CYCLES APPROX 6.2mW x2.1mD x2.1M H
*FINISH SUBJECT TO CHANGE; SOLAR POWERED MOVEMENT SENSOR LIGHT TO BE ADDED

A Cycle Store image and 08.05.2024
details updated
Rev Description Date
Title
Cycle Storage
Project

Birmingham Road,

Coventry
Drawn Checked Date
BA - NOV 23
Drg No.
N 3503-465
Scale Rev
NA @ A3 A

/\VANT

homes

Avant Homes (West Midlands)
Wingfield Court
18 Coventry Road
Coleshill
B46 3BE




File name C:\PJA\ONEDRIVE - PHIL JONES ASSOCIATES\07905 ALLESLEY, COVENTRY\A-ENG\2 - DESIGN\DRAWINGS\CURRENT\07905-CI-A-0001 SITE ACCESS GENERAL ARRANGEMENT.DWG, printed on 25/10/2024 13:17:42, by Faheem Ali

A2

General Arrangement

2.4 x 45m visibility splay calculated
based upon a 85th percentile recorded
speed of 30.9mph using MfS 2

\

V

TOW

shown with dropped crossing to
be included

™~ . 4’7) ~~~~ S
\=*<§§;§§§Z 45/}7\ T~
§§: T%
S~
<Qu
~ <.
X -
% =~

~

Approximate resurfacing extents shown with
3x dropped crossing to be included

Potential existing bus stop to
be investigated. No evidence
of bus infrastructure

T~

Double yellow markings
to tie into existing

”'\\
) (0
:

Proposed footway to
tie into existing

) : 'Extents of double yellow markings
~. into development to be confirmed

|/

~ = ~ (S

\ .

Extents of double yellow markings into
development to be confirmed

~N
N

STO1
104.695

~N

\ \ Double yellow mar

Assume corner of Lodge building to be ~
removed to accommodate adequate ~
footway facility

—
Existing lighting column
(approximate location)
‘\\\\ Existing crossing
Proposed 1.6m wide uncontrolled -— ®
— crossing with tactile paving. N %
Approximate resurfacing extents Q\_/ Existing overhead cable

Existing lighting column

(approximate location)
~N
~N
N
Existing bus stop to remain in place
~
~N
~N

N\

S ’ N
N (

~N

\ N

2.4 x 42m visibility splay calculated
based upon a 85th percentile recorded
speed of 29.8mph using MfS 2

Existing lighting column

. \
kings
to tie into existing X (approximate location)

~N

~
~
~

69 obed

Copyright © Phil Jones Associates Ltd / PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. Ordinance Survey License Number: 100022432

Site access location

Notes

1. Do not scale from this drawing.

2. All dimensions in metres unless stated otherwise.

3. This drawing is based on topographical survey (10.01.21 Subject: 0247

10.

11.

12.

unknown company) and OS mapping (OS license number 100022432)
information.

OS background is shown indicatively to cover un-surveyed areas in the
topographical survey provided.

This drawing is not to be reproduced in any part or form without consent of
PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. All copyright reserved.

The design details presented must be reviewed in conjunction with the
wider site information and site constraints.

No liability will be accepted by PJA for neglegence or otherwise in relation
to the accuracy of the topographical survey / OS mapping which have been
received by Third parties and it's contents.

Reproduction from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the
controller of His Majesty's Stationary Office.

The purpose of this drawing is to show the location of the proposed access
junction design providing access to the proposed residential development
on the site of the Allesley Hotel.

The drawing has been produced to support outline planning application.

From a planning perspective, the purpose is to show where access is to be
formed and indicate an engineering solution for the road and pedestrian
link arrangements. The alignment and technical details of those
arrangements are not fixed at this stage and will be resolved via condition.

The design is Preliminary and subject to discussions with the local planning
and highway authorities (Coventry City Council ). The drawing should not
be used for tendering or construction purposes and requires further
development as part of the detailed design and understanding of highway
authority preferences, which vary between authority.

All works are proposed to be within the highway boundary or Developer
owned land. It is assumed that the highway and site boundary abut each
other.

Site specific detailed surveys need to be carried out to confirm design
information, which may impact the outline design proposals. These include,
but are not limited to, ground conditions, groundwater levels, utilities,
ecology, tree protection etc. Impacts related to other civils features have
not been detailed and are subject to detailed design.

Any existing details which are shown on this drawing are for guidance only
and are to be checked on site.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

22.

23.

The existing road widths are based upon topographical survey data.

Stopping Sight Distances (SSDs) have been calculated using 85 percentile
speeds recorded by an ATC survey on Birmingham Road between 3™ - 9th
February 2022:

Eastbound - 30.9mph

Westbound - 29.8mph

Based upon the parameters in Manual for Streets 2, with no adjustment for
weather or gradient, the following Stopping Sight Distances have been
calculated:

To the West from site access - 45m
To the East from site access - 42m

The Stopping Sight Distance (SSD) for the proposed junction has been
calculated based on the recommendations of Coventry City Council
Highways Design Guide for Local Residential Road.

The proposals outlined are subject to Road Safety Audits.

The junction has been designed in accordance with Coventry City Council
Design Guide - Highway Design and Manual for Streets 2.

The geometry layout is presented on the supporting plan with reference
07905-CI-A-0002.

The vehicle turning manoeuvres are presented on the supporting vehicle
swept paths plan with reference 07905-CI-A-0003.

Reference of source data:

Topographical survey (Dated: Jan 2022, Drawing reference: U0244,
provided by Safe Dig Surveys and File Name:U0244 - Sheet 1)

0OS mapping (OS license number 100022432)

Masterplan (Dated: 20.09.24, Drawing reference: 1310-24-200-C, provided
by Avant Homes and file name: 1310-24-200rev.C - Planning Layout)
Highway boundary - produced from pdf plans dated 07.03.24 from
Coventry Highways Adoptions. The boundary produced follows features
lines on the topographical survey and OS mapping where the survey is
limited.

Design approach/summary/assumptions;

The location of the junction is formed on the existing access point to
Allesley Hotel.

The location of the existing bus stop opposite the access junction has been
assessed and proposed to stay in its existing location. To the east, the
highway is fronted directly with overlooking properties, until such a point
where the footway narrows. To the west, Butchers Lane junction is
positioned with fronted houses for a further 50m.

Following a desktop study, there is evidence of a bus stop directly west of
the access junction, however, there is no physical infrastructure identified.
Further investigation is required to determine any impact to the bus stop /
access junction.

The design criteria and philosophy is subject to local authority agreement.

CDM Note

These drawings have been produced with reference to the
CDM Regulations 2015.

Please note that these are pre-construction phase drawings
and should be subject to further design risk management
as required in accordance with Regulation 9.

The residual risks identified on the DRA / drawings are based on the
information available at the time of design. Any services information
indicated on PJA drawings is obtained from third parties, and is given
for guidance purposes only. The exact location of any services will
need to be verified by the client / contractor before commencing
works on site.

Until Technical Approval has been obtained from the relevant Local
Authorities or Statutory Bodies, it should be understood that all
drawings are issued as preliminary and NOT for Construction. Should
the Contractor and / or Employer commence work prior to approval
being given, it is entirely at their own Risk

PRELIMINARY DESIGN

For comment and review only.

Design is based upon information available at the time.

Design is subject to full review as additional information becomes
available.

Design is subject to full review upon receipt of comments from;
e  Development Control

LA Planning Authority

Environment Agency

LA Highways Department

Sewerage Undertaker

Key

= e = Highway Boundary

Site Boundary
Junction Visibility (2.4 x 43m MfS)
Tactile Paving (Buff, Uncontrolled)

Carriageway

Footway
PO2 | 17.10.24 Updated Masterplan FA | RH | AS
PO1 | 22.04.24 FIRST ISSUE AS | AN | JW
Rev |Date Revision Note Drw| Chk|App

7%

PJA"

transport @ engineering e placemaking

Park Point, High Street, Longbridge,
Birmingham, B31 2UQ, UK

T: +44 (0) 121 475 0234

Birmingham | Bristol | Cambridge | London | Manchester | Reading

Melbourne | Perth

pja.co.uk | pja.com.au

Client

Avant Homes

Project

Allesley, Coventry

Title

Site Access Junction
General Arrangement

Drawing Issue Status

For Planning

PJA Ref Scale @ A2 Date
07905/A As Shown April 2024
Drawing No. Revision
07905-CI-A-0001 P02

Primary Contact
Andrew.Nixon@pja.co.uk



AutoCAD SHX Text_466
1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
31-39

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
Attenuation basin

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
Drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Existing drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
Drainage ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
Shallow swale to accomodate highway run-off

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
Bins

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
Bins

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
Proposed acoustic barrier 2.4m high

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
Retained RoW to No.79


File name C:\PJA\ONEDRIVE - PHIL JONES ASSOCIATES\07905 ALLESLEY, COVENTRY\A-ENG\2 - DESIGN\DRAWINGS\CURRENT\07905-CI-A-0002 SITE ACCESS GEOMETRY LAYOUT.DWG, printed on 25/10/2024 13:19:48, by Faheem Al

A

NO

0/ abec

2.4 x 49m visibilify splay calculated

L]
[
|
:
B I R |

—
based upql a 85th pErcentile recorded ~ S
speed of 3 ph using MfS 2 ~ >~
-~
~
3x wp's

Pofential existing bus stop t
b¢ investigataéd. No evidence
us infrastructure

ow 1 - 9

STO1
A J04.695 ~

~ - © 7
~ ) ~
B 8 x>~ \ {
% “ \24 N N
. > . S
%0 % g S S
~ 2.4 x 42m visibility splay calculated
~ based upon a 85th percentile recorded
XL speed of 29.8mph using MfS 2
~ ~
480 N ~ ~
N ~
~ N
~ S
\ \ B \
~ S
-~ "
S
~
~
~

~

CDM Note

These drawings have been produced with reference to the

CDM Regulations 2015.

Please note that these are pre-construction phase drawings
and should be subject to further design risk management
as required in accordance with Regulation 9.

works on site.

The residual risks identified on the DRA / drawings are based on the
information available at the time of design. Any services information
indicated on PJA drawings is obtained from third parties, and is given
for guidance purposes only. The exact location of any services will
need to be verified by the client / contractor before commencing

being given, it is entirely at their own Risk

Until Technical Approval has been obtained from the relevant Local
Authorities or Statutory Bodies, it should be understood that all
drawings are issued as preliminary and NOT for Construction. Should
the Contractor and / or Employer commence work prior to approval

PRELIMINARY DESIGN
For comment and review only.

available.

e Development Control

LA Planning Authority
Environment Agency

LA Highways Department
Sewerage Undertaker

Design is based upon information available at the time.
Design is subject to full review as additional information becomes

Design is subject to full review upon receipt of comments from;

Key

= e = Highway Boundary

Site Boundary
————— Junction Visibility
Approach Visibility

(15m offset, DMRB CD 123)
Approach SSD Visibility (25m)

A

¥ Birmingham Road

s

Copyright © Phil Jones Associates Ltd / PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. Ordinance Survey License Number: 100022432

Notes
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. All dimensions in metres unless stated otherwise.

3. The layout for the junction and associated notes are presented on
the supporting general arrangement plan with drawing reference
07905-CI-A-0001.

4. This drawing is not to be reproduced in any part or form without
consent of PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. All copyright reserved.

Site access location 5. Reproduction from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of

the controller of His Majesty's Stationary Office.

8. The purpose of this drawing is to show the location of the proposed
access junction design providing access to the proposed residential
development on the site of the Allesley Hotel.

9. The vertical alignment have not been considered and will be
assessed at future stages of design when further information is
available.

10. The design criteria and philosophy is subject to local authority
agreement.

Design Parameters
Minor Road - Site Access

e Design standard applied - Coventry City Council Design Guide -

Highway Design , Manual for Streets

Road classification - Local Residential Road

Speed limit of road - 20 mph

Design speed - 32 kph (table 7.1 MfS)

Visibility - 25m SSD (table 7.1 MfS)

Visibility setback - 2.4m

Horizontal alignment at junction- 4.5m desirable minimum

(CCC Design Criteria for LRR serving up to 150 dwellings).

Vertical alignment - to be assessed at future stages of design

e Carriageway width - 5.5m (may be reduced to 4.8m where
serves up to 50 dwellings) (CCC Design Criteria for LRR)

e Lane widths - not considered

e Footway - 2m (CCC Design Criteria for LRR)

e Verge - 1m (CCC Design Criteria for LRR)

Major Road - Birmingham Road

e Speed limit of road - 30 mph
e Visibility - westbound 42m, eastbound 45m

Calculation based on 85 percentile speeds (with no
adjustment for weather or gradient)

Eastbound - 30.9mph
Westbound - 29.8mph

PO2 | 17.10.24 Updated Masterplan FA | RH | AS
PO1 | 22.04.24 FIRST ISSUE AS | AN | JW
Rev |Date Revision Note Drw| Chk|App

7

PJA

Park Point, High Street, Longbridge,

Birmingham, B31 2UQ, UK

T: +44 (0) 121 475 0234

transport @ engineering e placemaking

Birmingham | Bristol | Cambridge | London | Manchester | Reading

Melbourne | Perth

pja.co.uk | pja.com.au

Client

Avant Homes

Project

Allesley, Coventry

Title

Site Access Junction
Geometry Plan

Drawing Issue Status
For Planning

PJA Ref Scale @ A2
07905/A As Shown

Drawing No.
07905-CI-A-0002

Primary Contact
Andrew.Nixon@pja.co.uk

Date

April 2024

Revision

P02



AutoCAD SHX Text_533
1-9


File name C:\PJA\ONEDRIVE - PHIL JONES ASSOCIATES\07905 ALLESLEY, COVENTRY\A-ENG\2 - DESIGN\DRAWINGS\CURRENT\07905-CI-A-0003 SITE ACCESS VEHICLE SWEPT PATHS.DWG, printed on 25/10/2024 14:13:23, by Faheem Ali

A]_ i R R TR RO PR PP P AR Swept Paths - Large Car - Left In, Left out Swept Paths - Large Car - Right In, Right Out Notes CDM Note

I I 1. Do not scale from this drawing. These drawings have been produced with reference to the
— e Hpy — e i o . CDM Regulations 2015.
N.Q?\_/ % 2. All dimensions in metres unless stated otherwise. Please note that these are pre-construction phase drawings
\ B \ . 3. This drawing is based on topographical survey (10.01.21 Subject: and should be subject to further design risk management
= = 0247 unknown company) and OS mapping (OS license number as required in accordance with Regulation 9.
. \ \ o . S \ \ 0 e 100022432) information. : . :
. : _— > _— Until Technical Approval has been obtained from the relevant Local

OS background is shown indicatively to cover un-surveyed areas in

- ‘ Authorities or Statutory Bodies, it should be understood that all
the topographical survey provided.

drawings are issued as preliminary and NOT for Construction. Should

4. The layout for the junction and associated notes are presented on Eh? Cor)tractfc)r anci./ Ior I—EcTr?lgyer co;]rl?ence work prior to approval
the supporting general arrangement plan with drawing reference €Ing given, 1t Is entirely at their own Ris

—— \ / 07905-CI-A-0001.
— °
- TOW Key

5. This drawing is not to be reproduced in any part or form without
consent of PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. All copyright reserved. — = — Highway Boundary

6. Reproduction from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of e Site Boundary
the controller of His Majesty's Stationary Office.

7. The purpose of this drawing is to display the various design vehicle
swept paths manoeuvring through the proposed junction.
TOW
D The drawing has been produced to support outline planning
application.

> 1-9

8. The vehicle swept paths presented have informed/validated the
proposed geometry of the junction.

9. The design vehicles that have been considered in the swept path
analysis have been listed below (based on Vehicle Tracking
software) and the relevant vehicle profiles are included to highlight
the vehicle dimensions. The vehicle profiles selected are considered
to have the most onerous swept path criteria for both British and
European standards. Therefore, the swept paths presented are
robust and provide comfort that the junction manoeuvres for the
typical vehicles below can be satisfied.

a1 by ///ﬂ

AR ~ NN RN ~ European Design Vehicles
B _PSIAIASA }_ | N N B _PATATAIAS | | N N Small Sized Vehicles
............................... ° Large Car (2006)

B O N LN | | ~ B _ PN NN LN | | ~ Large Size Vehicles

................ ~ "N NN ~ o Refuse vehicle - Phoenix Duo 2 Recycler (P2-15W with Elite 6x4
............... ~ ~ chassis) *

P SO s NS S SIS A S ~ British Design Vehicles
~ Medium Sized Vehicles
e Emergency vehicle - DB32 Fire Appliance *

)L )L * design vehicles to be confirmed with the client, local authority,
emergency services etc and alternative vehicles may need to be
used.

Swept Paths - Refuse Vehicle - Left In Swept Paths - Refuse Vehicle - Left Out Swept Paths - Fire Tender - Left In Swept Paths - Fire Tender - Left Out 10. Vehicles have been assessed at 5mph for turning movements

. through the junction. The assessment aims to achieve a minimum of
I 0.25m from kerb / channel lines and 0.25m either side of centre or

lane line markings for car manoeuvring.

11. Design approach/summary/assumptions;

e The access strategy is based on cars and refuse vehicle
assumed as most onerous simultaneous movement required

e Vehicles to wait to give way off major road before intruding to
opposing lane on entry and committing to turns

e 100mm offset from channel has been achieved for the refuse
vehicle, whereby the large car is able to manoeuvre through
the junction with the desired 250mm clearance.

e [tis acknowledged that due to the infrequent nature of the
refuse vehicle manoeuvring the junction, overhang onto the
opposing carriageway is acceptable.

e Itisassumed that a combination of most onerous vehicles
and likely worst case combination of vehicles requiring access
simultaneously is limited.

e Due to the presence of the bus stop directly opposite the
junction, it is assumed that reasonable care will be taken by
drivers exiting onto Birmingham Road when a bus is stationary
at the stop to wait as necessary to undertake the turn.

e The highway authority has not confirmed vehicle profiles to be
used

e vehicular flows anticipated to be relatively modest due to the

quantum of development Typical Vehicle Track

STO1
o 104.695

STO1
o 104.695

12. The design criteria and philosophy is subject to highway authorit
agreemegnt. b P : gy Y Wheel Track

(red)
Travel Direction

catv

Vehicle Profile

i Do Pt PO O oo,

L 11.22 q
VY | i ]
\* whe
4} = VAW 2
< ‘ ~ i+
’, ,,, 1.665 S'g.%G 4 P02 | 17.10.24 Updated Masterplan FA | RH | AS
. . . . . . . . PO1 | 22.04.24 FIRST ISSUE AS | AN | JW
Swept Paths - Refuse Vehicle - Right In Swept Paths - Refuse Vehicle - Right Out Swept Paths - Fire Tender - Right In Swept Path - Fire Tender - Right Out Refuse Vehicle ﬂphoenix 2 Duo Recycler) oo TRevco o AT
. (P2-15W with Elite 6x4 chassis)
T~ | | | 2 Overall Length 11.220m .
- Overall Width 2.530m ///,
~ l Overall Body Height 3.756m LYY
- l Min Body Ground Clearance  0.309m /.
Track Width 2.530m
N Lock to lock time _ 4.00s
N Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius ~ 11.550m

|
L
| &y
jﬂﬂ/m/y i \,/ O N

- =
58 ~ DRFD Fire Al
- =

transport @ engineering e placemaking

\%WW/ ~N L 868 J
~N [ |
~ Birmingham | Bristol | Cambridge | London | Manchester | Reading
> ~N | | Melbourne | Perth
T~ ~ sto1 b pja.co.uk | pja.com.au
TOW E $ : @
o
/?)W/ ° 52 38T Client
~
RN - : Avant Homes
DB32 Fire Appliance
Overall Length 8.680m
Overall Width 2.180m
Overall Body Height 3.452m Project
N Min Body Ground Clearance 0.337m
Max Track Width 2.121m
< Lock to lock time _ 6.00s Allesley, Coventry
~ Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius 7.910m
1-9 ) :
0 Title
$ . e Car [0
Co I Site Access Junction
i ° i = Vehicle Swept Paths
— 0/8Te 3035 Drawing Issue Status
For Planning
— Large Car (2006)
Overall Length 5.079m PJA Ref Scale @ Al Date
Overall Width 1.872m .
- Overall Body Height 1.525m 07905/A 1:250 April 2024
_e) Min Body Ground Clearance 0.310m )
T Max Track Width 1.831m Drawing No. Revision
Q — Lock to lock time ] 4.00s
D Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius 5.900m 07905-CI-A-0003 P02
\l
|_\

< , A ' Primary Contact

Andrew.Nixon@pja.co.uk

Copyright © Phil Jones Associates Ltd / PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. Ordnance Survey License Number: 100022432



AutoCAD SHX Text_534
1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
1-9


File name C:\PJA\ONEDRIVE - PHIL JONES ASSOCIATES\07905 ALLESLEY, COVENTRY\A-ENG\2 - DESIGN\DRAWINGS\CURRENT\07905-CI-A-0004 INTERNAL VISIBILITY SPLAYS.DWG, printed on 25/10/2024 14:05:02, by Faheem Ali

A1 :250 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 :500 10 20 30
- .
c;é; Internal Overview Plan X / Inset A
N N I 4
> [/tﬁf L
3 e
’\/g N/ ' L0 1\
= /7
7 //
/ 1/ oofoao
— / 2 i
D D A o= > <n
L‘f_ — : / 4.80 D -E% 4 JF -
S / T
/ X: 2.4m Y:18.6 - Achievable 4)6.‘00 [ A -§ ;
\ visibility splay 3 S - |
550 —  — , A
-
. |~ =
—_— 2 ~C
S ‘/\'-l' . o)
Q/—\ / <
. Q -
100 A\
) \ |
~
&) 200
§ o \y u
A\
,?)-00 \
L A
) al
< L
%
Ly
a2 ¢ E \
5
aSL
£ NS = 56 5.00 \
51 =
B% = el \ m\/ M ‘%
! ° e
60 RCS
! \4(4
= 53 S
= O IR
g o O = \ Y il
1
51 an
0 = : L >
O
= /
= o) o T N
" 1
! o .
61 = = | § |
50 % W A
o
200 48— L 4 T -
L9
1 — | g sucall
i A \
- I
L3 Lk LS 1,6 1 \
- L8 B
20 A
l
|
A 5 26
4 v v . i l 23 7L A
A 4
N ] = 7\ &
3137 | F o - /
L TSR
I il [ , = . I
| 3 l o
< <L
N S E [ 0
1 ! - /s F A i - _
— o 2.40
e [=) f
—— |8 N _ $a , | ! ' i
c 8 S x: 2.4m Y:25 AINGRINGN
3 < ~ \;7) g} L ,. L | L L
- |m /00 - |, ~A
e 3 e 5CH A s 2
> 3 o
-
N S -

Copyright © Phil Jones Associates Ltd / PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. Ordnance Survey License Number: 100022432

Notes
1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. All dimensions in metres unless stated otherwise.

3. This drawing is based on topographical survey (Dated: Jan 2022,
Drawing reference: U0244, provided by Safe Dig Surveys and File
Name:U0244 - Sheet 1) and OS mapping (OS license number
100022432) information.

4. OS background is shown indicatively to cover un-surveyed areas in
the topographical survey provided.

5. This drawing is not to be reproduced in any part or form without
consent of PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. All copyright reserved.

6. The design details presented must be reviewed in conjunction with
the wider site information and site constraints.

7. No liability will be accepted by PJA for neglegence or otherwise in
relation to the accuracy of the topographical survey / OS mapping
which have been received by Third parties and it's contents.

8. Reproduction from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of
the controller of His Majesty's Stationary Office.

9. The purpose of this drawing is to present vehicle visibilities within
the internal development layout.

10. The drawing has been produced to support outline planning
application.

11. Site specific detailed surveys need to be carried out to confirm
design information, which may impact the outline design proposals.
These include, but are not limited to, ground conditions,
groundwater levels, utilities, ecology, tree protection etc. Impacts
related to other civils features have not been detailed and are
subject to detailed design.

12. Any existing details which are shown on this drawing are for
guidance only and are to be checked on site.

13. The design speeds of the proposed internal roads are 20mph on
local residential street and 15mph for shared use street based upon
a Coventry City Council Design Guide - Highway Design.

14. The internal road has been reviewed against Coventry City Council
Design Guide - Highway Design and Manual for Streets.

15. Reference of source data:

e Topographical survey (Dated: Jan 2022, Drawing reference:
U0244, provided by Safe Dig Surveys and File Name:U0244 -
Sheet 1)

e 0OS mapping (OS license number 100022432)

e Masterplan (Dated: 20.09.24, Drawing reference:
1310-24-200-C, provided by Avant Homes and file name:
1310-24-200rev.C - Planning Layout)

e Highway boundary - produced from pdf plans dated 07.03.24
from Coventry Highways Adoptions. The boundary produced
follows features lines on the topographical survey and OS
mapping where the survey is limited.

17. The design criteria and philosophy are subject to local authority
agreement.

CDM Note

These drawings have been produced with reference to the
CDM Regulations 2015.

Please note that these are pre-construction phase drawings
and should be subject to further design risk management
as required in accordance with Regulation 9.

The residual risks identified on the DRA / drawings are based on the
information available at the time of design. Any services information
indicated on PJA drawings is obtained from third parties, and is given
for guidance purposes only. The exact location of any services will
need to be verified by the client / contractor before commencing
works on site.

Until Technical Approval has been obtained from the relevant Local
Authorities or Statutory Bodies, it should be understood that all
drawings are issued as preliminary and NOT for Construction. Should
the Contractor and / or Employer commence work prior to approval
being given, it is entirely at their own Risk

PRELIMINARY DESIGN

For comment and review only.

Design is based upon information available at the time.

Design is subject to full review as additional information becomes
available.

Design is subject to full review upon receipt of comments from;

e Development Control

e LA Planning Authority

e  Environment Agency

e LA Highways Department

e  Sewerage Undertaker
Key

Site Boundary

—— Shared Drive Visibility (2.4 x 25m Coventry
City Highway Design Guide)

—— Tangential Visibility
Forward Visibility (25m)

PO1 [25.10.2024

Rev |Date Revision Note

/'//,j

PJA”

transport @ engineering e placemaking

Birmingham | Bristol | Cambridge | London | Manchester | Reading

Melbourne | Perth

pja.co.uk | pja.com.au

Client

Avant Homes

Project

Allesley, Coventry

Title

Internal Visibility Assessment

Drawing Issue Status

For Planning

PJA Ref Scale @ Al Date
07905/A As Stated OCT 2024
Drawing No. Revision
07905-CI-A-0004 PO1

Primary Contact
andrew.nixon@pja.co.uk abbie.smart@pja.co.uk

FIRST ISSUE FA | RH | AS
Drw| Chk|App



AutoCAD SHX Text_540
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
31-39

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
BCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
31-39

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
42


NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
Size and amount dependant on site location/orientation

I

|

HH
|

AT :
T T T AT AT

)

4%/@%# i H\hwmu =
HHH——F =N
; ’ 1 ; /
il
Front Elevation
1:100
= ——————
I |
I |
‘ |
I I — — .
= s
“i ] Z IS g
— _ NE=:
E [T [T [T ii
/ ] N ;
/ \ g
|/ \ ; é ;
N Al p g
N\ / g
- gl

1:100

¢) abed

Rear Elevation

T =
@ =+
T
Left Side Elevation
1:100
Nl H ! ™
1 ISy i
B=
Right Side Elevation
1:100 0 2 4 6 8
1 3 5 7

10
9

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(m)

This Housetype is compliant with
NDSS

This Housetype is compliant with
Part M4 Category 2. ]

@

10/09/2024 | BLK “Standard” elevation style renamed “Traditional Brick”
17/07/2023 | BLK| First Issue

>

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING
DATE: 'SCALE@A3._ |DRAWNBY:
| 12/07/2023 1:100  GROUP
DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations -
Traditional Brick

HOUSE TYPE:

Appleton - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

18/10/2024 13:44:03

APP/0-002 B




NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
gze and amount dependant on site location/orientation

I

Q
@
~
AN

|

HH
|

AT :
T T T AT AT

4%/@%# i H\hwmu =
HHH——F =N
; ’ 1 ; /
il
Front Elevation
1:100
= ——————
I |
I |
‘ |
I I — — .
= s
“i ] Z IS g
— _ NE=:
E [T [T [T ii
/ ] N ;
/ \ g
|/ \ ; é ;
N Al p g
N\ / g
- gl

)

Rear Elevation

1:100

(m)

b T =
£ ==
[T
Left Side Elevation
1:100
A % { Y
I L= i
Right Side Elevation
1:100 0 2 4 6 8 10
1 3 5 7 9
\\\\‘\\\\\\\\‘\\\\\\\\‘\\\\\\\\‘\\\\\\\\‘\\\\
Scale Bar @ 1:100

This Housetype is compliant with
NDSS

This Housetype is compliant with
Part M4 Category 2. ]

@

10/09/2024 | BLK “Standard” elevation style renamed “Traditional Brick”
17/07/2023 | BLK| First Issue

>

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING
DATE: 'SCALE@A3._ |DRAWNBY:
| 12/07/2023 1:100  GROUP
DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations -
Traditional Brick

HOUSE TYPE:

Appleton - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

18/10/2024 13:44:03

APP/0-002 B




G) abed

Utility

WC
=

N

Snug

Ground Floor.
1:100

Hall

Store

Family

Lounge

Wardrobe

Bedroom 3

Landlng

Bedroom 5

l by

Bedroom 4

o’
th roo clI“I

9 !'- —
Suite 'I-

First Floor.

1:

0
1

2

==

Bedroom 2

Fitted wardrobes required
for NDSS storage
compliance ONLY

3

4

5

6

7

8

10
9

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(m)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

This Housetype is compliant with
Part M4 Category 2. ]

@

10/09/2024 | BLK] WWHR relocated from GF WC to kitchen. Kitchen amendex

to allow WWHR boxing. SVP boxing removed from cylinder
store. Bed 1 ensuite shower tray increased from
1000x800mm to 1100x800mm.

17/07/2023 | BLK| First Issue

>

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: 'SCALE@A3: | DRAWN BY:

| 12/07/2023 1:100  GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans -
Traditional Brick

18/10/2024 13:43:52

HOUSE TYPE:

Appleton - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

APP/0-001 B




9, abed

Utility

Snug

Ground Floor.

1:100

WC
=

N

Hall

Store

Family

Lounge

Bedroom 3

First Floor.

1:

Wardrobe

Bedroom 5

T T

Landing

Bedroom 4

th ro
c‘l“|

‘ F-“
‘ H

= \
|
|
|

0
1

2

Bedroom 2

Fitted wardrobes required
for NDSS storage
compliance ONLY

4 6

3

5

7

8

10
9

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(m)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

This Housetype is compliant with
Part M4 Category 2. ]

@

10/09/2024 | BLK] WWHR relocated from GF WC to kitchen. Kitchen amendex

to allow WWHR boxing. SVP boxing removed from cylinder
store. Bed 1 ensuite shower tray increased from
1000x800mm to 1100x800mm.

17/07/2023 | BLK| First Issue

>

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: 'SCALE@A3: | DRAWN BY:

| 12/07/2023 1:100  GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans -
Traditional Brick

18/10/2024 13:43:52

HOUSE TYPE:

Appleton - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

APP/0-001 B




Trees & Groups
BS5837_Cat

N Bt

mlesley Hotel __—7 1 1 -

g0l
L
| . I| | B
Community | | , = . I
Centre ' I | '.—I
' TREES WILL BE.REMOVED DUE |
| /| TO.DEMOLITION
s TREES TO BE REMOVED DUE |
e Bridle Path TO LAND REMEDIATION = | |
- _— C
N | ,

ﬁf ~—>¢ ., — \
: ) | ]
TREES TO BE REMOVED TO

, ACCOMODATE PROPOSED

i LAYOUT
plan House |

G94

Allesley Hotel

S C1

¥* U
e Bk Far— v
‘?'i'"
| "': .-‘\.I-:s ay - J s =
;'ﬁ- .'_FP J [SSTF TS PR :
", T\ X
1 G ; :
ey ey ey il
il ) ﬁ*‘b 4 1
; \{\ 1 = B
é ‘ d h" '&"-1-.-,“ :x:
Q i g
L it
T
a S
e
L it = ) .J":'p, -
Pfﬂnm T o, S ‘Ev = g o Wi
Sl ; ’Go\ntaivns‘-‘O‘S; data ©Crown. .
f, = | I Copyright:and database right
[? 202‘ - s
N

@ A3 Scale A
DEMOLITION / LAND REMEDIATION
TREE LOSS PLAN

Scale: 1:695

Contains Ordnance Survey Open Data © Crown Copyright and

Database Right 2022.

Tree Survey

Allesley Hotel

Allesley Hotel _Rev1

Drawing No
Date



Sean.Barratt
Oval

Sean.Barratt_1
Oval

Sean.Barratt_2
Oval

Sean.Barratt_3
Oval

Sean.Barratt_4
Oval

Sean.Barratt_5
Oval

Sean.Barratt_6
Oval

Sean.Barratt_7
Oval

Sean.Barratt_8
Oval

Sean.Barratt_9
Oval

Sean.Barratt_10
Oval

Sean.Barratt_11
Oval

Sean.Barratt_12
Oval

Sean.Barratt_13
Oval

Sean.Barratt_14
Oval

Sean.Barratt_15
Oval

Sean.Barratt_16
Oval

Sean.Barratt_17
Oval

Sean.Barratt_18
Oval

Sean.Barratt_19
Oval

Sean.Barratt_20
Oval

Sean.Barratt_21
Oval

Sean.Barratt_22
Oval

Sean.Barratt_23
Oval

Sean.Barratt_24
Oval

Sean.Barratt_25
Oval

Sean.Barratt_26
Oval

Sean.Barratt_27
Oval

Sean.Barratt_28
Oval

Sean.Barratt_29
Oval

Sean.Barratt_30
Oval

Sean.Barratt_31
Oval

Sean.Barratt_32
Oval

Sean.Barratt_33
Oval

Sean.Barratt_34
Oval

Sean.Barratt_35
Oval

Sean.Barratt_36
Oval

Sean.Barratt_37
Oval

Sean.Barratt_38
Oval

Sean.Barratt_39
Oval

Sean.Barratt_40
Oval

Sean.Barratt_41
Oval

Sean.Barratt_42
Rectangle

Sean.Barratt_43
Rectangle

Sean.Barratt_44
Rectangle


NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
gze and amount dependant on site location/orientation

Q
®
~
(00)

IIL\LII“ [1]
_|..

Front Elevation
1:100

Left Side Elevation

1:100

0 2000
3000

1000

] [T T
— =
[ IS

A / \E=

N\ /==

\ ==

T T T T T T TITTITTL

Rear Elevation
1:100

4000 6000 8000
5000 7000 900

10000
0

>

17/07/2023 | BLK] First Issue

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

AV

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: SCALE@A3: | DRAWNBY:
1:100

| 19/05/2023
DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations -

Standard

GROUP

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(mm)

HOUSE TYPE:

Ferndale - End

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No:

FER/END/0-002

REV:

A

18/07/2023 11:21:47




6/ obed

[| |
|_| Kitchen/Dining
|J OY)

Li o

Ground Floor
1:100

.

-Suite

Bedroom 1

thro
D /
Landing

N %

Bedroo+n 2 § Live/ Work

First Floor
1:100

0 2000 4000

1000 3000

5000

6000

7000

8000 10000

9000

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(mm)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

>

17/07/2023 | BLK] First Issue
REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

A

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING
DATE: SCALE@A3_ |DRAWNBY:
| 12/07/2023 1:100 _ GROUP
DWG TITLE:

Planning Layout - Floor Plans

HOUSE TYPE:
Ferndale - End

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

FER/END/0-001.5 A

18/07/2023 11:19:05




08 abed

Fo BRICK ARCH
T HEADER
N
N /
L
w . STONE CILL

—
[ 5
CLF

Front Elevation
1:100

|

I amiEs

[ ]

/
/ \ L

T O O O T

Rear Elevation
1:100

)

|
[T

N
Ve

| P—

©

i

HHHHHVHHHHWHHHHHHHH\fHH\HLHH\H\H\ I

[TTTTHTIITITIIT

BER=

Left Side Elevation

1:100
ff
TE— I
g = =+
Right Side Elevation

1:100
0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000
1000 3000 5000 7000 9000

This Housetype is compliant with |

NDSS

This Housetype is compliant with |
Part M4 Category 2. ]

>

17/07/2023 | BLK First Issue

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

A\ b Bkt Fatr\AVE) Pl o AV2D V1ot oo RSB BS75940

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: ‘SCALE @A3: ‘ DRAWN BY:

| 19/05/2023 1:100  GROUP

DWGTITLE:. .
Planning Sheet - Elevations -

Standard

HOUSE TYPE:

Horbury - Coventry plots 12, 47

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(mm)

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

18/07/2023 11:28:50

HOR/0-002 A




T8 abed

1
(OO i
Bta Kitchen
o | |

" Utility\

g
\ e L} store

Ground Floor.
1:100

Wardrobe

Bedroom 2

First Floor.
1:100

0 2 4
1 3

Fitted wardrobes required
for NDSS storage
compliance ONLY

5

6

7

8

10
9

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(m)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

This Housetype is compliant with
Part M4 Category 2. ]

®

10/09/2024 | BLK| Stair opening width amended. Lounge increased 34mm in
length. WWHR boxing relocated from utilty to kitchen

>

17/07/2023 | BLK] First Issue

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION
PLANNING
DATE: SCALE @ A3: |DRAWN BY:
| 19/05/2023 | 1:100 _GROUP
DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans -
Traditional Brick

HOUSE TYPE:

Horbury - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

HOR/0-001 B

11/09/2024 09:40:39




28 abed

Right Side Elevation

1:100

STONE CILL

— BRICK ARCH
HEADER

[
==
mm

NS

L~ H
—
==

Left Side Elevation

1:100

D)

— i mm AH l
L~ | L~ |
ax
N /

Front Elevation

1:100

»

Rear
1:100

Elevation

0 2000 4000
3000 5000

1000

6000
7

8000 10000
0 9000

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

sssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: 'SCALE@A3: | DRAWN BY:
1:100

\
DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations

HOUSE TYPE:

Leyburn - Coventry plots 13, 44,45 |

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(mm)

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

LEY/0-002




egq obed

Ground Floor.
1:100

Wardrobe

Wardrobe

Bedroom 1

First Floor.
1:100

0 2000
3000

1000

4000 6000
5000 7000

8000 10000
9000

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(mm)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

>

17/07/2023 | BLK] First Issue
REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

AVANT.

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING
DATE: SCALE@A3_ |DRAWNBY:
| 18/05/2023 1:100 _ GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans

HOUSE TYPE:
Leyburn - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

LEY/DET/0-001 A

18/07/2023 11:31:23




NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
@ze and amount dependant on site location/orientation

Q
D
00
N

T

Front Elevation
: 100

—_

/
/

\ /

\

/|

T O T T T

Rear Elevation
1:100

I ] §[
=
: e %
=
3= =
Left Elevation
1:100
X =
&
Right Elevation
1:100 0 2000 4000 6000
1000 3000 5000 7000

8000 10000
9000

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(mm)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

>

17/07/2023 | BLK] First Issue
REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: SCALE@A3:  |DRAWNBY:
| 18/05/2023 1:100 _ GROUP
DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations -
Standard

HOUSE TYPE:
Maltby - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

MAL/0-002 A

18/07/2023 11:40:25




Gg obed

Ground Floor.
1:100

|/

Bedroom 1

First Floor.

1:100

0
1000

2000 4000
3000 5000

6000
7000

8000 10000
9000

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(mm)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

>

17/07/2023 | BLK] First Issue
REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

AV23 SPECIFICATION
PLANNING
DATE: SCALE @ A3: |DRAWN BY:
| 18/05/2023 | 1:100 _GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans

HOUSE TYPE:
Maltby - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

18/07/2023 11:39:20

MAL/0-001 A




NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
@ze and amount dependant on site location/orientation

Q
D
o8]
(o))

i
=
e — e S
:
]

R RN AR RA

Front Elevation

1:100
i
- === 7
| |
| |
? —
]
[T [T %
v v g
AN AN %
i -
—_—— [T T H
i / \ B
/ \ g
/ g
N1 P2 E

Rear Elevation
1:100

E = G
Left Elevation
1:100
E
= = @
Right Elevation 0 2000 4000
1:100 1000 3000 5000

6000
700

8000 10000
0 9000

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

>

17/07/2023 | BLK] First Issue
REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: SCALE@A3:  |DRAWNBY:
| 15/06/2023 1:100 _ GROUP
DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations -
Standard

+{OUSE TYPE:

Netherton - Det

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(mm)

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

NET/DET/0-002 A

18/07/2023 11:45:17




Ground Floor.

1:100

Bedroom 4

First Floor.
1:100

Second Floor.

1:100

>

17/07/2023 | BLK] First Issue

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

REV

DATE

BY

AMENDMENTS

18/07/2023 11:44:17

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

/g abed

0 2000

1000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

DATE:
| 15/06/2023
DWG TITLE:

SCALE @ A3:

[oRAWN BY:

1:100 _ GROUP

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans

HOUSE TYPE:

Netherton - Det

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(mm)

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No:

NET/DET/0-001

REV:




88 abed

PATIO

=

e [
§ [0IC
CIC N

im K BATHROOM E]

D)

KITCHEN

=
o

I

PLOT 1

|

PATIO

) BEDROOM HALL
STORE tQLi ,_|

- j i
[ /_‘

o|w@ I

THROOM

BEDROOM

ALL

e

COMMUNAL STAIR

>

| <

FEEETT

=== &L

KITCHEN

ST TR T

|

N

p—

BEDROOM

Qo]
007

I | |

I

A

(o |

PLOT 2

Ground Floor Plan

S

|

-

Front Elevation

Rear Elevation

Om 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

METRES MESSSNNNNNN ——— NEESSS  ESSSS—
SCALE BAR - 1:100

e

KITCHEN

[

—

BIN STORE

= M Me Ma M Me M

alafulullululiddi

NN N N N N N N N

CYCLE STORE

ST HALDS, ST
| A
PLOT 3

EEEEEERE
o=

C 1]

d

BALCONY

= ) =
N

[]f
UD

EP
Zz
175

BALCONY

BALCONY

I

d

UD

PLOT 7

——

o
@ ? THROONE

< .
5 CIC LEiRshe
~ .
ﬂ \\BATHROOM [:ﬂ
BEDROOM HALL , lo
STORE
CIC L ] ] il g

—
=5

THROOM E

P

9%

BEDROOM

@
BEDROOM ;}
2
)
=
s
i 3
RN
(I
. 3 —
L
{ LIVING -
Q —1 KITCHEN F - j[l
AN — g D " P
[ b b —
PLOT 5

First Floor Plan

,l':- L

LT
|

LI

-

Left Side Elevation

Right Side

Elevation

L]

1 [

BEDROOM

BALCONY

~ = ~0

=0
KITCHEN gg
g

Hl

L]

] ﬁl

L

[T
LI

il

—_— [e) 1 z . ]
— e j | L @] @
[ Eily
ATHROOM
ATHROO ]
[ | .
= e
BEDROOM : < \ ALL
HALL ps L
2 & E
| o)
STORE A j
Ny ] S [ =0
89 (- i
_ BEDROOM ;00
s 2 I D KITCHEN  [fo0
LIVING -—-1
I . || [4
Q KITCHEN F= N
| I
— v ] — [ ]
PLOT 8 PLOT 9
]
Second Floor Plan f‘ iy
MATERIALS KEY - MATERIALS KEY -
Plots 1,2,4,5,7,8 and Communal Area Plots 3,6,9
Facing Brickwork - Colour Orange @ Facing Brickwork - Red Multi
Main Roof - Ibsock Gemini - Mixed Russett Main Roof - Ibsock Gemini - Mixed Russett
@ Windows - Georgian Style Sash windows painted white @ Vertical Tile Hanging - Concrete Plain tiles - Colour Farmhouse Red
Apartment Floor Area Schedule
(4)  Window Cills - Reconstituted Stone (D) Windows - Tudor Style windows painted White with leaded lights
Window Head - R tituted St K d O Brick V i
@ indow Fea econstiiliied Sfone Key and Lrange Brick Voussolrs @ Window Cill and Surrounds to Front and Right Side Elevations - Plot No. Area SC]ft
: Reconstituted Stone
@ Plot 2 Entrance Surround - Reconstituted Stone Plot 1’ 4 & 7 583
Window Heads to Rear Elevation - Red Brick Vi i
@ Fascia and soffit - Profiled and painted white ® indow reads fo Rear Elevation - Red Brick Voussolrs P'Ot 2 567
Plot 3 Ent S d-R tituted St
Gutters and Downpipes - Brett Martin Cast Iron effect - Classic Black @ © nirance surroun econsiitied stone Plot 3, 6&9 590
@ Chimney Pots - Forterra Roll Top Pot - Colour Buff @ Fascia and soffit - painted Brown P ot 5 & 8 545
Entrance Door to Communal Area - Colour White @ TudarBearding -Felnted Brown
@ Balgerfies -Sloneclad base with:decarative wilings ® Gutters and Downpipes - Brett Martin Cast Iron effect - Classic Black
@ Chimney Pots - Forterra Roll Top Pot - Colour Red
@ Entrance Door to Plot 3 - Colour Blue
@ Balconies - Stone clad base with decorative railings
Note. Samples of all materials to be presented to LA for approval prior to construction
Rev D |Amended to Heritage consultant comments 26.06.25|DW [Chk
Rev C |Amended to Heritage consultant comments 18.03.25 [DW | Chk
Rev B | Amended following Design Team review 17.03.25 [DW | Chk
Fl Rev A | Amended to client comments 25.02.25|DW [Chk
74 q Rev Amendment Date Drn|Chk
AN Revisions:
N
105.8m Client:
L8 AVANT HOMES
FMING
HAM
R
OA D Site:
T——_ + DEVELOPMENT AT BIRMINGHAM ROAD,
104.2m Shelter ALLESLEY, COVENTRY
g8
¢8 \\ %
. Title:
& Ly PLOTS 1-9
s FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS -
~ OPTION A
= Scale: Date:
o 1:100 @ A1 FEBRUARY 2025
7 Drg No.: Rev:
6 5 1694-33 D
7 4 DWG File Ref: K:\Avant Homes\1694\Planning\Current\1694—33.dwg
1 2 2 \?f DRAWN: DJW
@ Refained Row'f MINOR INACCURACIES MAY OCCUR DUE TO PRINTING PROCESSES,
9 2 No.79 SCALED DIMENSIONS SHOULD NOT BE TAKEN FROM THIS DRAWING
Vv 1 UNLESS FOR THE PURPOSES OF VERIFYING OR DETERMINING ANY
VIV IV PLANNING APPLICATION. ALL WRITTEN / SCALED DIMENSIONS &
o I = FLOOR AREAS ARE SUBJECT TO VERIFICATION BY CONTRACTOR(S) ON
SITE.
3

T \ AN\S
/ N

ds
diy

ds ds
die sEE]

&

7

—
| w
ds ds ds ds
diy di diy did

=TT | T T—

]

f‘J B 03

Site Plan - 1:500

THIS DRAWING, DESIGN & BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE ©
COPYRIGHT OF KEVIN R. TWIGGER ASSOCIATES LTD & MAY NOT BE
AMENDED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO
LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS OR ALTERATIONS
MADE BY OTHERS.

Kevin R.Twigger & Associates Ltd

Rushall House, School Road, Brewood, Staffs, ST19 9DS
t| 01902 851 641 e| admin@krtassociates.co.uk
w | www.krtassociates.co.uk

- _/

ARCHITECTURAL ¢ CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYORS ¢« LANDSCAPE DESIGN




NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
Size and amount dependant on site location/orientation

1
| !

- H
— |

[T]
R [
%;

SRl

1EI(AY

T T T T

(L

—fr

Ml

Front Elevation
1:100

68 abed

3]

(=)

==

N

e

L
l ALHJ 75

= =B g —

I [T
Hi—
HI
(| 92 I
HIL

[T I

Left Side Elevation

1:100

0

1

2

3

4

T [T

/
AN

TH

T

[ToTl

Rear Elevation
1:100

5

6

7

8

9

10

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(m)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

——
17/01/2025

ol
o)
X

Bedroom 1 and kitchen window on rear elevation relocated.
Brick band course now shown porch. HWB waste now
shown to left side elevation.

‘W05 (Bed 2) on front elevation and W08 (Bed 01) window
on rear elevation amended to floating mullion and fixed
dummy sash. Scale bar amended from millimeters to
meters. “Standard” elevation style renamed “Traditional
Brick”.

o

01/11/2024 | Gl

S

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

/\VANT

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: ‘SCALE @AS3: ‘DRAWN BY:

| 23/06/2023 1:100  GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations -
Traditional Brick

HOUSE TYPE:

Ripley - End

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

RIP/END/0-002.5 D

17/01/2025 10:51:17




06 abed

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2 Live/ Work

Fitted wardrobes required
for NDSS storage
compliance ONLY

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

D | 17/01/2025 | GK| Lobby now partitioned. Kitchen and bedroom 1 window
moved 113mm East. Ensuite WC and HWB position
relocated. Wardrobe updated to correctly show size.

Ground Floor First Floor

17/01/2025 10:51:04

c 01/11/2024 | GK| Scale bar amended from millimeters to meters.
B 22/09/2023 | BLK Ensuite SVP relocated to top right corner, Shower
increased from 800x800 to 800 x1000
1:100 1:100 A | 1700712023 | BLK First Issue
REV | DATE BY AMENDMENTS
AV23 SPECIFICATION
PLANNING

DATE: 'SCALE@A3: | DRAWN BY:
| 23/06/2023 1:100 7GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans

0 2 4 6 8 10
1 3 5 7 9 HOUSE TYPE:
T 1T ‘ T 1T T 1T ‘ T 1T T TT ‘ T TT T 1T ‘ T 1T T 1T ‘ T 1T Rlpley - End
COINS REFERENCE:
Scale Bar @ 1:100 DRWG No: REV:

(m) RIP/END/0-001.5 D




NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
Size and amount dependant on site location/orientation

T6 abed

— — — — —/ ™/

m | I
1
HH Hio—
AINE=NE=

- +Jl [ ;
HH B

== BN / =

R

Front Elevation
1:100

Rear Elevation
1:100

0 2000 4000
3000

1000

6000

8000 10000
9000

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(mm)

This Housetype is compliant with

NDSS

Bedroom 1 and kitchen window on rear elevation relocated.
Brick band course now shown porch. HWB waste now
shown to left side elevation.

Windows W05 (Bed 2) on front elevation and W06 (Bed 01
window on rear elevation amended to floating mullion and
fixed dummy sash. Scale bar amended from millimeters to
meters. “Standard” elevation style renamed “Traditional
Brick”

——
17/01/2025

o
o)
X

@
S

01/11/2024 | Gl

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

/\VANT

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: ‘SCALE @AS3: ‘DRAWN BY:

| 06/09/2023 1:100  GROUP

DWG TITLE:

NDSS Planning Sheet -
Elevations - Traditional Brick

HOUSE TYPE:

Ripley - Mid

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

RIP/MID/0-002.5 C

17/01/2025 10:31:54




26 abed

Ground Floor
1:100

First Floor
1:100

0 2000 4000

1000 3000

5000

6000

7000

8000 10000

9000

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(mm)

>

This Housetype is compliant with

06/09/2023 | BLK] First Issue

NDSS

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

/\VANT

AV23 SPECIFICATION
PLANNING

DATE: SCALE @ A3: |DRAWN BY:
| 06/09/2023 | 1:100 _GROUP
DWG TITLE: .
NDSS Planning Sheet - Floor
Plans
HO.USE TYPE: .
Ripley - Mid
COINS REFERENCE:
DRWG No: REV:

RIP/MID/0-001.5 A

08/09/2023 17:14:30




NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
Size and amount dependant on site location/orientation

o6 abed

7
. | |

| |

| |

[y - |

i i
e8| - EL
g [T HHH\HH}H:'
E=lan HH
8 N N
g—mmﬂﬂmmi i —
=
g \ /
= =

Front Elevation

£
[T

N

e

| P—

—

N
e

| P—

T RATATATATI]

1:100

Left Side Elevation

1:100

0
1

2

R —
e
11
| Il I
=
g ————
. ——
i IS5
[ T =
N 7 N g
L~ | N P %
L\HHHHHHH\HH7\\\\\\ H\\Hgf
1B
|
Rear Elevation
1:100
4 6 8 10
3 5 7 9

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(m)

This Housetype is compliant with |

NDSS

28/02/2025 | GK| WC mechanical extract added to left elevation
14/02/2025 | GK| “Standard"” elevation style renamed “Traditional Brick"
Scale bar amended to show meters.

First Issue

> wo

17/07/2023

BLI
BY

o
il
2

DATE AMENDMENTS

/\VANT

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

| 23/06/2023 1:100

DATE: 'SCALE @A3: | DRAWNBY:
: GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations -
Traditional Brick

HOUSE TYPE:

Salbury - End

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

SAL/END/0-002.5 C




76 obed

Ground Floor
1:100

Bedroom 2

First Floor
1:100

1.3m Head Height

Full Head Height

Full Head Height

1.3m Head Height

Second Floor

1:100

0 2
1

3

4

5

6

7

8

10
9

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(m)

This Housetype is compliant with |

NDSS !

14/02/2025 | GK| Scale bar amended to show meters. Head height added to ¢
second floor plan.
17/07/2023 | BLK First Issue

®

>

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

VANT

homes

AV23 SPECIFICATION
PLANNING
DATE: 'SCALE @ A |DRAWN BY:

| 23/06/2023 1:100  GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans

HOUSE TYPE:

Salbury - End

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

SAL/END/0-001.5 B




G6 obed

>

Front Elevation.
1:100

PN

M TG m

-
Left Elevation.
1:100
L 3088
to inside face of pier !
I
I
Floor Plan
1:100

Rear Elevation.
1:100

Right Elevation.

1:100

A| 29/06/2021 | EA | First Issue
BY

REV  DATE AMENDMENTS

AVANT-

homes

AV22 SPECIFICATION

Planning
Area: 0 m2 /0 sq.ft.
DATE: SCALE @ A3: |DRAWN BY:
| 10/10/22 1:100 TS

DWG TITLE:

Planning Drawings

HOUSE TYPE:

Garage - Single - Gable Front

COINS REFERENCE:

GgeSD

DRWG No: REV:

500/005 A

06/06/2023 15:26:55




rwp/wp/g

96 abed

NOTES:

1.

2.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

TREE CANOPIES HAVE BEEN MEASURED AND PLOTTED AT THEIR
CARDINAL POINTS FOR CLARITY AND PRESENTATION PURPOSES.
THE LOCATION AND ATTRIBUTES OF OFF-SITE TREES HAVE BEEN
APPROXIMATED UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

THE ROOT PROTECTION AREA (RPA) IS A LAYOUT DESIGN TOOL

INDICATING THE MINIMUM AREA AROUND A TREE DEEMED TO CONTAIN
SUFFICIENT ROOTS AND ROOTING VOLUME TO MAINTAIN THE TREE'S
VIABILITY AND WHERE PROTECTION OF THE ROOTS AND SOIL STRUCTURE

IS TO BE TREATED AS A PRIORITY. (REFER TO MAIN REPORT FOR

FURTHER DETAILS)

SITE TRAFFIC OR OBSTRUCTIONS ENCOUNTERED AT THE TIME OF THE
SURVEY MAY HAVE RESULTED IN ARBOREAL FEATURES BEING OMITTED

OR THEIR ATTRIBUTES BEING APPROXIMATED.

TREE WORKS ARE TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS TO

BS3998:2010.

TREES ARE TO BE RISK ASSESSED FOR NESTING BIRDS AND BATS.
THE ARBORICULTURAL SURVEY IS BASED ON THE SUPPLIED

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY. THE LOCATION OF FEATURES SHOWN HAS

NOT BEEN CHECKED.

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN COORDINATES UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE.

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE
ARBORICULTURAL METHOD STATEMENT BY ACS CONSULTING.
THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR PLANNING PURPOSES ONLY.

TREE PROTECTION FENCING TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
ARBORICULTURAL METHOD STATEMENT BY ACS CONSULTING.

TREE PROTECTION MEASURES TO BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO WORKS

COMMENCING.

WHERE THE POTENTIAL FOR ENCROACHMENT INTO A TREE'S ROOT
PROTECTION AREA (RPAS) EXISTS OR IS NECESSARY; WORKS WITHIN THE
RPA ARE TO BE UNDERTAKEN, MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

APPROVED METHOD STATEMENT BY ACS CONSULTING.
ALL SITE OPERATIVES SHOULD BE MADE AWARE, THROUGH A SITE

BRIEFING OR INDUCTION AS TO THE PURPOSE OF THE TREE PROTECTION
FENCING, AND OF THE FACT THAT IT IS NOT TO BE DISTURBED OR MOVED.

THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ACS CONSULTING

ARBORICULTURAL METHOD STATEMENT

Jad _\

5.48

ash
ht17.0

/?,04

280550N

'L?F’,q - gh grass/

0408" "i.9.5-1 1
[/

+ area of dense

S

brick
building

0.500

ht15.0 0.350

@ll@L

+ 95.00

T———— RrPAL

106.10

brick

building
+

103.85

closeboard fe
€ nce
approximate positions

area of trees
[ and bushes

L u
NENNEEENNEEENNEEREENREREEN puunst

T2 TPO HAW

+ 95.52

RPA RPA

———— RPA

dense

B
>
+95.36 /

%

94.70
area of dense
foliage

+ 96.79 rough grass/
brambles
+95.79 96.50
T ense —_— +
undergrowth ——— 95.76 96.87
+ +
; . B Al / ~
\ ) LT
A V. gut INNEEEy
attnu@tjlzon a‘SI T\ ENNNEnRy .......... \
¥ \ .ll....... 0.600
: l...= 0.600  poplar 0.35;@
1 I isi pop ht 25.0 as|
T94§2 -= erblines Surveyed nere isible - L LTTTTTT N
— 94.98 = & ®,
} =l 95 J- . - multi & ht 16.0
[ -.....--.....%,%M +% Eence adjusted and 3 ni e
5s 3 / rogl I ..... + . . Q GYB
e aag,,, no dig drive cons Heeay,, o
i ————TPF Ll Yeay, an
/ T Ny 96.93: 4598
/ R ~1 lsff.o“ m
{ / RPA \
fob
« RPA
// 94.72 4 T Rpg 9483
{ 9479 + . ' Py 0 —
/9473
! 0.350
L ht18.0
/l Any 95.62
/ "'l... 9476 0.450 *
S—" &y
. 0.500 Iy
]
2 * @h???{o ......’... rough grass/
% .... 0.52? RPA TPFbrambIes
v 9 450 (G2 . 0.500
94.34 acer
\ 55 *ay
Rpy tim

+109.09

brick
building

+109.08
105.40
o ___— RPA— RoA
— PA —
closeboard fence _—— RPA RPA —_
approximate positiong _ RPA RPA _
————"RPA RPA
RPA - RPA PA \
ft
wn — . 2nd bushos. N
RPA — gunntt® auLLTT T 4
|ll““ oLl T 0.200
panuss? oLLL T TT T ash
gupunngs - i 0.500
) 97.62 ash

n““n-“lllll“““-“é‘1 2' B 1

RPA 9688
" oe o ggzﬁ —___—— RPA
)5-94 - TPF —— T
T TPF —_—— RPA
—— HRA TPF

0.350
acer
ht 18.0

' h
4 oo TS
\ @096.15
Rry

approximate Ppositions

OOy VELTELES

sl

97.18
+

kerblines surveyed where visible
areas densely overgrown

96.60

+ “Wﬁllllllllllllllll...

e

Xy,
»,
ay ....
Xy,

©
©

o,

stone wa| remains

SERNEERN AR EEEEREAEENEEREENEY

gsa.os;-Wure,r,a,-nS

tree hedge ht 15.0
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII..

©
*®
S
=)

)
£/7
.77
L5
L/ '..'
077
L/TT 1

no dig drive

L/

-

-~
~——
-~
-~
-~
~

\

brick wall

area of trees
and bushes

oy
l.l......

102.82
+102.76 wp

elec
gas

UP\
+/103.39

tarmac

102.57 +7102.83

102,75 _
g
2
g
o
j
o
o
10mg7
102.517] 102.51
V102,22 ’
103.10f
103.24
y
¢ » cr.
102.09 57105
102.83

&
S

+ 102.68

closeboard
fence ht 1.60

RPA

o
N
©

+

Fence adjustgd and:: &
:éonfstr

99.84

100.52

——

96.53 A
2SS
grass =

96.44

london plane
ht 20.0

96.37 @

96.34

rough grass/
brambles

kerblines surveyed where visible
areas densely overgrown

~

7 |

l

h
¢l 96.02

4

"l.. 0350 =
T

- \gﬁl{{

~

o

e

-

Closeboarg
fence ht 1. 60

rough grass/
waste

100.43

99.84
steel

store
+ 99.82

98.99

paving

98.994

tarmac

96.03

RP4 —
RpPy
0.400
acer .\.\\ (19
ht14.0 0.350 B"ﬁ,
- acer
\\\\\\\\\\ ht 14.0
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 94.40
\\\\\\\\\\\ _;~i\\
TTT-..94.35
\ RPA ~.
'?,04

110.64

3x wp's

3x rwp/wp/g 3

3x wp/2x wplg +

+102.79+ 102.83

Fencetob
for highwe

102.35 410230

D 101.94

+ 101.36

+
100.97

99.89

101.12
+
101.08
101.01
mh
¢l 101.0.
+ 100.85
tarmac
+ 100.43
100.08
concretg
99.92
99.90

drainage cannel

e
YT [99.14

tarmac

~~_
-~

rwp/d

This survey has been produced at the survey scale detailed below with its accuracy commensurate with the indicated scale and should only be
used for its original intended purpose. Any scaling should only be undertaken using a stable media print produced using the original data The

© ACS Consulting

plotted scale may differ (for presentation purposes) from the survey scale.

It is for the use only of the party to whom it has been addressed and no responsibility is accepted to any third party for the whole or part of its
contents. This survey has been prepared on the basis that all information and facts, which may affect the survey, have been disclosed to ACS
Consulting by all parties concerned and no liability, nor responsibility can be accepted, unless full disclosure has been made.
Al tree features that were visible at the time of the survey have been located, however there may have been items obscured.

All data remains in the ownership of ACS Consulting and any discrepancies between this survey and any other information should be reported to

ACS Consulting.

a0

103.14

103,29
102.93

ST13
102.846

102.7

101.44 F

+ 94

kerblines surveyed wh
areas densely over|

-

Arboricultural Legend (where appicabie)

INDIVIDUAL TREE RETAINED

INDICATIVE EXTENT OF GROUPED FEATURE
RETAINED

TREES, GROUPS OR HEDGES TO BE REMOVED

CATEGORY GRADE A
Trees of high quality

CATEGORY GRADE B
Trees of moderate quality

CATEGORY GRADE C
Trees of low quality

CATEGORY GRADE U
Trees unsuitable for retention

CATEGORY GRADE A
Group/Hedge of high
quality

CATEGORY GRADE B
Group/Hedge of moderate
quality

CATEGORY GRADE C
Group/Hedge of low
quality

CATEGORY GRADE U
Group/Hegde unsuitable for
retention

ROOT PROTECTION AREAS (RPA)

TREE PROTECTION FENCING

Tree subject to TPO

Ancient Woodland

Shade arc (BS5837)

SITE BOUNDARY

OFF SITE TREES AS RECORDED ON

TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY.

TREE CANOPIES
Tree canopies have been measured and plotted at their cardinal
points for clarity and presentation purposes.

ROOT PROTECTION AREA (RPA)

Root Protection Areas are calculated in accordance with BS5837:
2012. The Root Protection Area (RPA) is a layout design tool
indicating the minimum area around a tree deemed to contain
sufficient roots and rooting volume to maintain the tree's viability
and where protection of the roots and soil structure is to be
treated as a priority. (Refer to main report for further details).

/j\\

requested.

General Notes

1. The arboricultural survey is based on the supplied OSMM/topographical survey.
This may contain inaccurate information.

2. The accuracy of the tree/feature location cannot be guaranteed.
All arrows on steps / ramps etc indicate an UP direction unless otherwise stated.

4. Contours are shown on soft detail areas only (where applicable) and annotated at
the interval identified above. Hard detail areas may be contoured if specifically

5. Site traffic or obstructions encountered at the time of the survey may have resulted
in tree/shrub features being omitted.

Rev Date

Description

CAD

ACS Consulting
Booths Park
Chelford Road
Knutsford
WA16 8GS

01565 755422

mail@acsconsulting.co.uk

acsconsulting.co.uk

ACS Consulting

272 Bath Street

Glasgow

G2 4JR

0141 354 1633
glasgow@acsconsulting.co.uk

Tree Protection Plan

Allesley Hotel
Allesley

NB: Survey Scale: 1:200

Plotted Scale: AO@1:200

Surveyor: IRM

CAD:SPT Checker: IRM Rev:

Date of Issue:

Oct 2024 ACS Ref No: TPP/5180/Y/300




10809 13. TREE PROTECTION MEASURES TO BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO WORKS
' COMMENCING.
14. WHERE THE POTENTIAL FOR ENCROACHMENT INTO A TREE'S ROOT
_ PROTECTION AREA (RPAS) EXISTS OR IS NECESSARY; WORKS WITHIN THE
e posi g ) 10417 RPA ARE TO BE UNDERTAKEN, MUST BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
0.95 10423 7 104.40 sv APPROVED METHOD STATEMENT BY ACS CONSULTING.
103,31 103.63 4 - 10433 Q 15. ALL SITE OPERATIVES SHOULD BE MADE AWARE, THROUGH A SITE
B S SSsmsodztssso_ 107.90 timber pog - X 104.54 BRIEFING OR INDUCTION AS TO THE PURPOSE OF THE TREE PROTECTION
e — it = 103'_3f§n<:s ht0.95 " 103.73 . Q ¥ FENCING, AND OF THE FACT THAT IT IS NOT TO BE DISTURBED OR MOVED.
103.46 g === ¢l 104.43
109.41 o4t I THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ACS CONSULTING
- RS 0390 ARBORICULTURAL METHOD STATEMENT
building brick b 10367 SSSsso g 10360 limbs; 103.98
building ’ ‘=g===§103476fen08p081& = ’ A STO1
Fon <1 ht 0_9561/10100 104,55 104.695
103.62 105.83
* mn 0202 | Ry o388 gas
cl103.56 r~ /0348 G 104.56
113.79 D €% Way .
: ) up_ /7#104.07 106.05
buiing I3 103.49 F47103.56 "
B 103.35
110.42 10343 109.54
102.8 103.51 )
7 STO4 A,
I 101.77 103.430 1159 a ool bt
01.77 tarmac catv Q
0168 101.90 10372 4o, es -
I : \
3 _ 103.36 + 104318& 11023
101.31 brick wayy T~ mh \
101.45 : e cl 103.27 rwp/wplg 106.89
ONC]| R B
103.20 101.28 | D 114.23 stone ggs
1001.65 | mh 112.93 + 1043 Rl @
¢l 103.09 112.95 ‘ &, bollard
+ “Wﬁllllllllllllllll... 40 £/103.75 10423 104.37
101, "l.... 0 +103.93 104.68
: .... 109.33 brick
N 9h103.03 building . boltard
: 103.29 / O ol 104.28 104.76
0117 || & rwp/g 104.53 . 4
I 10301 prig wall |7 { | 106.87 catv tarmac ;:/?5,008[
101.62 : r P bt Post © het g )~ 104.76
+100.38 rough up 101 2)3 area of trees +106.77 mh 104.49 -QS' % . 0'95*6//
grdss ST16 A +100.55 and bushes 0+104.16 o1 104.43 Q Q +113.66 mh +
stone walf 100.277 | 105.45 3x sv's 104.85 cl 104.88 ollarde 104.86
100.52 - 100.54 10309 water|f7 9
113.67 + tarmac y °
.\ ot 111.71
10048 ™ mh A °
/S A3 1102.79 102.846
101.24 H - &K ¢ 10281 102.84| 107.91 104.98
+Moo.10 3 uwp + 104.90
x ) 102.74 L[| || 10419 t roof | " + [104.55
10032 | ¥ 102.78 e JF+—LLLL ||| L 104.03 R
s | t roof | 114.92 ——up 10431 4.~/ 100 © ACS Consulting aO
= . 104.03
n B < +1p2.c8 114.94 114.92 104.20 mh 104.00 This survey has been produced at the survey scale detailed below with its accuracy commensurate with the indicated scale and should only be
.. o : cl 104.02 9 used for its original intended purpose. Any scaling should only be undertaken using a stable media print produced using the original data The
-y -8 104,06 104.03" 104.03 plotted scale may differ (for presentation purposes) from the survey scale.
o 2 ©
‘ M § = 104.23 - 10422 2 8 O 6 5 ON It is for the use only of the party to whom it has been addressed and no responsibility is accepted to any third party for the whole or part of its
@< < Fence to b : 104.03 contents. This survey has been prepared on the basis that all information and facts, which may affect the survey, have been disclosed to ACS
28a 110.84 rwp/g Consulting by all parties concerned and no liability, nor responsibility can be accepted, unless full disclosure has been made.
| S5 . speed
' - fo r h Ig hW C hump Al tree features that were visible at the time of the survey have been located, however there may have been items obscured.
J g 102,69 ﬂ All data remains in the ownership of ACS Consulting and any discrepancies between this survey and any other information should be reported to
: E: Y 104.07 ACS Consulting.
:. ;%\ { rwp/wp/g 109.98 '
102.41 i i
s 10019 & Arboricultural Legend (where appicaie)
J
+
§ Lot /& 530
ggf p9.37 10412
2 1 bollards 104.11 INDIVIDUAL TREE RETAINED
H 10249 , °2%5102.30 N\
+ = \\104.32
E ) 15 102.74 103.11 104.14
B § 3 ; conc | 104.39
— e M pon 0400 . wpp, ow INDICATIVE EXTENT OF GROUPED FEATURE
u 3 103-.28 h?ﬂy 96-5 g 101.72 : RETAINED
= o G g 10194
S - ough up
= 100.78 ‘ mh29 ’,’ 1"353 1oree [y 10416
H + i’ 1 briek , TREES, GROUPS OR HEDGES TO BE REMOVED
u n / 102.06, | wall o
- Q 103.15 l’ J
n A5 \
H [ 104.45 -
M —— 104.17
= 9990 101.59 o H rwpmpig Up\‘..:m . tarmac
- + W1 ﬁ1 Tk O D CATEGORY GRADE A
™ - - mh . R K
H tarmac conc c1103.93 Trees of high quality
99.59 + 443
) + 3 " 101.44 101.45 10805 ©
99.18 + +99-. 98.90 ; :
I~ gg_ogms 9086 101.36 conc
— 4w .
H + up ©8 or +104.12 S, CATEGORY GRADE B
I~ 98.90 99.45 T pipe . .
-1 ) S= 104.25 Trees of moderate quality
= 23 104.11 9104.03 oot
s = 8 10112 " fbii26 ‘ e Existing road to be retained
z L + ! . .
- 103.11 CATEGORY GRADE C
3 u area of trees 100.97 ]
- res o oo ol [ during construction phase @ | Trees of low qualty
108.31
2 a 101.01
n ST12
W 98.16 A T00.948 mh
H D cl101.02 mh ® CATEGORY GRADE U
= Ocl 100.83 Trees unsuitable for retention
= +100.85 O
n <D
= 100.80 00,85
= h grass/ 100,82 N
Cl R
H 1 0% [] e T se %\ CATEGORY GRADE A
9825 - /! A \‘ Group/Hedge of high
u [ 3 .
u w J stone f concrete LS quality
i /Q‘ § tarmac mh \‘
N 10035 g N CATEGORY GRADE B
5 i, 8_ U +100.43 tarmac ‘\ Group/Hedge of moderate
.: 10043 10050 102.94 v | quality
- 108.31 r . N
s L 10023 t roof | 5o Existing road to be retained Y CATEGORY GRADE C
& 3 98.56 32 : : Y Group/Hedge of low
s I ow =5 during construction phase | quality
and bushes 100.08 '0003
} 100.04 100.07 +100.19 . SRy G
; ATEGORY GRADE U
. ‘ K \ Group/Hegde unsuitable for
o, 3 retention
: M
A \ % 99.89 99.92 concrete
99.91 . y \s
'%04 + 97.54 & / .73 steel 9984 drai - ﬁtoqge(g Qg —\
Q . & 99.57 store rainage channel 10995 ' ROOT PROTECTION AREAS (RPA)
Fence adjustgd ghd-: + 0082 295 N 16920 \_ &
. . / g 101.04
no dig drive Lonstrygife #9989 1083 e
g S $ D v 3555 11163 10095 5 & TREE PROTECTION FENCING
> ! & ) Balcony level 4+ \
N ! 04504 97 87 oaor 100.80 100.82 K
§ 08 ~- S
|
& | mh
& + fibed 1100.
— > / 100.58 4 ° DI a0 280600N
........f ,’ [100.08 100.54
,, 100.08 * Tree subject to TPO
g
I F] 100.88 101.78
! 100.01 400'7 10093 101-977\9“
i brick 100.19 Ancient Woodland
I3 building 99.99 paving 100.95
| ® 100.17 up Ny
- | OB 100.29 10087 101.44
in : X 101.47
A 101.02 4 :
o
7.2 i il
= o inge b toges . 3
101.65 S Shade arc (BS5837)
I 2
loose 100.18 100.6 007s 100.96 Q
pain 7 s O conir
? iron railings /g 101.18 |} .
?: . 9970 ht1.10 +100.03 100.23 + ...l....... E SITE BOUNDARY
o H D mh + 99.79 + _ ’J’ o
c=m ¢l 99.61 8 Cehi i any
S B soo paving Bin 100.66 b _ 50 " Wanys
‘ Uf}@ yew 98.99 IR * \ V OFF SITE TREES AS RECORDED ON
b ht 1.0 | o6 10136 v TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY.
t 9914 ' 100.95 — o
fo,Chay, + 98.79 98.98 109.21 P \ AN
9696 e /','}’;h/r 98.46 + ; 99.03 . 99.48 F —~ ’
8 L m
0 670" / 99.32/474 9892 98.88 D ¢199.48 9 goa tarmac 0121
/ y Uga.se 9933 : + 0 TREE CANOPIES
2% | 030 /) 9932 109.14 t00sn o 10044 Tree canopies have been measured and plotted at their cardinal
. 7 oo [ polly A // e points for clarity and presentation purposes.
: / ST10 us
o667 s +9659 | &;\ // 98.115 +99'26
+ / 5220 (/ tarmac 100.20 ROOT PROTECTION AREA (RPA)
g 96.64 J : grass 9923 - . .
& s6.0 96.53 e LA Root Protection Areas are calculated in accordance with BS5837:
: grass 3Q / N 0842 L9958 h 2012. The Root Protection Area (RPA) is a layout design tool
96.48 grass Boplsg, © gas * 99.13 99.17 O citor2s indicating the minimum area around a tree deemed to contain
tarmac 96.44 1,500 97.70 /97 87724, ?Z'” sufficient roots and rooting volume to maintain the tree's viability
\ london plane {o7. o 9901 s , 990 and where protection of the roots and soil structure is to be
96.37 treated as a priority. (Refer to main report for further details).
@ 101.08
98.90
96.37 +
96.90
99.32
96.34 1
O U 06.10 — 98.78
T 109.14
/‘ ﬁ\Lr\\ 989
98.85 + 98 -
96.65 up f o paving 98.82
uwp 98.91 I e
rough grass/ 98.70
brambles
99.77 tarmac
+ +
82
96.32 tarmac 98.8
mh
¢ 100.38
96.48 / grass 98.35 @ \
: oa
\ 98.27
\ 96.22 + g
98.23
/ — 95.93 kerblines surveyed where visible 98.20
areas densel y overgrown 98.24
. .
armac 200 0634 .
s ‘afh + ¢l 99,61
%90 [ %
- 96.11 tarmac
96.17 _— ‘ 0.550 }
+ ash 98.60 .
\ *FFWI 9' U onbee : \ 0.20g 39" 98.08
brambles ¢ 96.02 a ye! +
Q 1)3359. ht 9} 97.71 9788 97.95
—~ oo 95.83 -Oless T1 < 1.11/:B1 e General Notes
98 %0
\95-8” grase 97_6 98.45 1. The arboricultural survey is based on the supplied OSMM/topographical survey.
RP4 95.98 95.83 - \ + This may contain inaccurate information.
95.84 96.73 0.400 97.5 0.500
96.09 4 X 25" ht4.0 9B 2. The accuracy of the tree/feature location cannot be guaranteed.
\ 97.96
multi h mh . . . . . . .
- o N e T 9- EOJ 7'C 1 e and no d|g drive cons 3. All arrows on steps / ramps etc indicate an UP direction unless otherwise stated.
oy 95.95 \ 96_98‘&\ / 9760 j 9 4. Contours are shown on soft detail areas only (where applicable) and annotated at
~Aay multi *Rpy + T1 st + (9828 the interval identified above. Hard detail areas may be contoured if specifically
%{gg 9008 - = - acen &1%6.20 requested.
a, 96.01 i
Ry h 0.400 ) ) ) )
: A 7 150 gfquscg. 96.96 Lo & C 1 97.86 99.01 5. Site traffic or obstructions encountered at the time of the survey may have resulted
- areacfdense 8 y ' T1 6 C 97.21 5 + + in tree/shrub features being omitted.
‘‘‘‘‘‘ foliage . Vagy Ry Q.88 96.50 *
~~~~~~~~~ ° ™ L ay O 96.41
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ ..... 95.86 \ 95.86 rs !
\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 95.30 e Nyy 95.80
\\\\\\\\\ - e tarmac 4 98.26 g
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ S \ 20350 A ST09 Dos.74
\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 25.82 kerblines surveyed where visible R, 25.92 96.202 ° )
~~~~~~~ )
R"P,q ~~~~~~~~~ e areas densely overgrown A 1 @97_15
~~~a 98.57
T~~< +
97.09
HRE * 97.19
L
+97.o4 \
——RPA
PA A —_ A 97.58
—— R RPA T X .
S X
] ud
kerblines surveyed where visible ° 97.11 &
areas densely overgrown 96.41 g 98.55
— 9676 97.05 S
St 9 .
anmnmnnn g 00 T Goros o
pEEEEENECEEEEER 10.0 2x 0.40
llllllllllllllllll ho‘_?g% 0,0' 0847
~— . 0
\\\\\\ 0.400 ’0.
\\\\\ ht 10.0 97 44
\\\\\\\ 3®5® o 0.400 +
-~ ) h
\\\\\\ ht 10.0 h%4.0 97 22TPF
\\\\\ o _
\\\\\\ \ 98.03
\\\\\\ TPF +
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ RPA RPA \\\\\\\\\ Rpy \
RP A\\ ’_)\\Rp\e\\ _ T~ \ TP ~
Req >
< e A
Tt TS ’o,q ~— kerblirm wheng visible
‘\\\\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ areas densely oyﬁrgro .
e \ \\\\\\\ s 63 Rev Date Description CAD
e N (/Y = -
e TSI NG S Re, T 2 97 95
e T Re A4 0.350 ..lq. 0.200
T~ T \ k?teif T) ..". ha?gro
Tl =D : t12. )
\\\\\ \\\\\\\\\ Re A limp, ...", o ° ;c%? 09 \\
e = ferarbost g, 3% 0.600 '%B@J 50
T = W’/ oak T~ NS
e S S ht 18.0 area of dense T~<_ o
T 94.21 \‘\\\ P4 foliage \\\\\D:
e 9 F~e
T . RPA @
e N ws
~— e .
T _ ditch e - Ry ng
\\\\\\\ " ‘\\\\\\\\
9432 \ RPA — /
\\\\\ + ACS Consulting )
Tl 9430 Booths Park ACS Consulting
~aae Chelford Road 272 Bath Street
Knutsford acsconsulting.co.uk Glasgow
WA16 8GS G24JR
01565 755422 0:41 354 1633 i ‘
mail@acsconsulting.co.uk glasgow@acsconsulting.co.u
Tree Protection Plan
3 " - 2805008 Allesley
N w w
O (@) (@]
O (@) (@]
o1 o
3 S 3 Plotted Scale: AO@1:200
= = = NB: Survey Scale: 1:200
Surveyor: IRM CAD:SPT Checker: IRM Rev:
Date of Issue: Oct 2024 ACS Ref No: TPP/5180/Y300

104.022

103.87

NOTES:

1.  TREE CANOPIES HAVE BEEN MEASURED AND PLOTTED AT THEIR
CARDINAL POINTS FOR CLARITY AND PRESENTATION PURPOSES.

2. THE LOCATION AND ATTRIBUTES OF OFF-SITE TREES HAVE BEEN
APPROXIMATED UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

3. THE ROOT PROTECTION AREA (RPA) IS A LAYOUT DESIGN TOOL
INDICATING THE MINIMUM AREA AROUND A TREE DEEMED TO CONTAIN
SUFFICIENT ROOTS AND ROOTING VOLUME TO MAINTAIN THE TREE'S
VIABILITY AND WHERE PROTECTION OF THE ROOTS AND SOIL STRUCTURE
IS TO BE TREATED AS A PRIORITY. (REFER TO MAIN REPORT FOR

FURTHER DETAILS)

4. SITE TRAFFIC OR OBSTRUCTIONS ENCOUNTERED AT THE TIME OF THE
SURVEY MAY HAVE RESULTED IN ARBOREAL FEATURES BEING OMITTED
OR THEIR ATTRIBUTES BEING APPROXIMATED.

5. TREE WORKS ARE TO BE UNDERTAKEN BY QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS TO

BS3998:2010.

6. TREES ARE TO BE RISK ASSESSED FOR NESTING BIRDS AND BATS.
7. THE ARBORICULTURAL SURVEY IS BASED ON THE SUPPLIED
TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY. THE LOCATION OF FEATURES SHOWN HAS

NOT BEEN CHECKED.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

0>

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN COORDINATES UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE.
0. THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE
ARBORICULTURAL METHOD STATEMENT BY ACS CONSULTING.

11. THESE DRAWINGS ARE FOR PLANNING PURPOSES ONLY.

12. TREE PROTECTION FENCING TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
ARBORICULTURAL METHOD STATEMENT BY ACS CONSULTING.

-

U
Q
(e
M
(0]



g6 abed

)

Front Elevation. Left Elevation. Rear Elevation. Right Elevation.
: 100 1:100 1:100 1:100

—_

A| 101022022 | TS| First Issue
i BY

REV  DATE AMENDMENTS

homes

i AV22 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING
Ground F|00r Plan Area: 0 m2 /0 sq.ft.

. DATE: SCALE @A3: | DRAWN BY:
1:100 | 10/10/2022 1:100 TS

DWG TITLE:

Planning Drawings

HOUSE TYPE:
Garage - Double - Gable Front

COINS REFERENCE:

GgeDD

DRWG No: REV:

501/006

06/06/2023 15:29:57



NOTE: Dashed lines on roof denote PV panel location.
Size and amount dependant on site location/orientation

-
I |
——
—— 2N
]
i ' I
[
u
/ AN /
ESMHIE il mhm I
= anm %
= \ /
= | |
Front Elevation
1:100
-_— .
| |
| |
I I
I I !
T W 0
/ _ =SHA=E
g N
T IS = mmm==,=
N == h E
// \\ [ gg; - g
Tl g
AN / =
N\ / =
Nil4 ;E

Rear Elevation
1:100

66 abed

= & —
© gt N
=
Left Side Elevation
1:100
iy Hm\ N
Right Side Elevation
1:100
0 2 4 6
1 3 5

7

8

10
9

Scale Bar @ 1:100
(m)

This Housetype is compliant with
NDSS

This Housetype is compliant with
Part M4 Category 2. ]

@

22/07/2024 | BLK Eaves and ridge height now shown correctly
17/07/2023 | BLK| First Issue

>

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

AV23 SPECIFICATION

PLANNING

DATE: 'SCALE @A3:  |DRAWNBY:
| 19/05/2023

1:100  GROUP
DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Elevations -
Traditional Brick

HOUSE TYPE:

Wentbridge - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

25/07/2024 10:24:23

WEN/0-002 B




00T abed

Garage / Store

Ground Floor.
1:100

First Floor.
1:100

0
1

2

3

4

Fitted wardrobes required
for NDSS storage
compliance ONLY

5

6

7

8

10
9

Scale Bar @ 1:100

(m)

This Housetype is compliant with
NDSS

This Housetype is compliant with
Part M4 Category 2. ]

@

22/07/2024 | BLK Stairwell offset 3900 from front elevation & width amended
to 1045mm. Lounge increased 34mm in length. Bedroom 2
increased 34mm in length. Bath SVP relocated to allow
improved connection to WC

17/07/2023 | BLK| First Issue

>

REV | DATE BY | AMENDMENTS

AV23 SPECIFICATION
PLANNING
DATE: 'SCALE@A3: | DRAWN BY:

| 19/05/2023 1:100  GROUP

DWG TITLE:

Planning Sheet - Floor Plans

HOUSE TYPE:

Wentbridge - Det

COINS REFERENCE:

DRWG No: REV:

WEN/0-001 B

25/07/2024 10:24:15




Agenda Item 7

Planning Committee Report
Planning Ref: PL/2025/0000037/FULM
Site: Land at Algate Close Coventry, CV6 4NB
Ward: Holbrooks
Proposal: Erection of 9no dwellings (Use Class C3) and associated
works
Case Officer: Emma Spandley
INTRODUCTION

An application was approved in 2008 by Planning Committee for 12 houses under Cov
Ref.53159, however, this application has expired and was not implemented and therefore
the current application is assessed against the policies that are relevant today contained
within the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan; the NPPF
and NPPG and adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents (SPG / SPD).

On submission the application proposed 12no houses, however, the subsequent layout
was not considered acceptable now due to the change in policies relating to off road
parking. The resultant residential environment was very vehicle orientated, and therefore
hard standing dominated. The application was subsequently amended which reduced the
number of houses to nine. This enabled the layout to provide more informal green space
alongside all other requirements.

RECOMMENDATION
Planning Committee are recommended to grant planning permission subject to
conditions.

REASON FOR DECISION

The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle and will not result
in any significant impact upon neighbour amenity, highway safety, ecology, flooding,
drainage or infrastructure and will provide a satisfactory residential environment, subject
to relevant conditions.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The site is a rectangular piece of land measuring 64m x 55m. It is located to the south
and rear of existing dwellings fronting Parkgate Road, east of more recent detached
dwellings forming Algate Close, west of a supermarket within the Holbrook Lane local
centre and north of a private sports ground.

The site until recently (mid 2023) was covered by overgrown vegetation, with mainly poor-
quality boundary trees and grass elsewhere. Palisade fencing separates the site from the
sports pitch and close boarded fencing is situated beyond the boundary vegetation to the
rear of the houses which front Parkgate Road.

The site is relatively flat although the ground does slope upwards towards Parkgate Road.
The is also a known culvert to the southern boundary of the site, which runs east to west.

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

The original application as submitted sought permission for the erection of 12no, 3no
bedroomed dwellings accessed via Algate Close.

Page 101



After negotiations, the proposal has been reduced to 9no dwellings. There will be 3 sets
of semi-detached dwellings all with 3 bedrooms and 3 detached dwellings with 4
bedrooms.

Six of the houses proposed will be three bedroomed semi-detached with three of the
houses being four bedroomed detached. All the properties will be in accordance with the
Nationally Described Space Standards (NDSS); have the required amount of outside
amenity space and two car parking spaces each. The overall site also provides two visitor
spaces.

The houses proposed all meet or exceed the required separation distances to the existing
houses, and the culvert to the south of the site is left within open space managed by a
management company.

Noise assessments have been submitted which illustrate how the properties meet the
required guidelines.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Number Description of Development Decision and Date
R/2005/7986 (Cov Ref. | Erection of 12 dwellings and | APPROVED 16th May
53159) landscaped area. 2008 — expired, not
implemented.
PL/2023/0001672/LDCE | Application for a Lawful | REFUSED 20th
Development Certificate for | November 2023.
existing building works
commenced on site in connection
with approval reference 53159 for
the erection of 12no. dwellings and
landscaped area

POLICY

National Policy Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2024.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) adds further context to the NPPF and
it is intended that the two documents are read together.

Local Policy Guidance

The current local policy is provided within the Coventry Local Plan 2017, which was
adopted by Coventry City Council on 6" December 2017. Relevant policy relating to this
application is:

Policy DS1: Overall Development Needs

Policy DS3: Sustainable Development Policy

Policy DS4: (Part A) — General Masterplan Principles
Policy H3: Provision of New Housing

Page 102



Policy H4: Securing a Mix of Housing
Policy H9: Residential Density
Policy GE1 Green Infrastructure

Policy GE2:
Policy GE3:
Policy GE4:

Green Space
Biodiversity, Geological, Landscape and Archaeological Conservation
Tree Protection

Policy DE1 Ensuring High Quality Design

Policy AC1:
Policy AC2:
Policy AC3:
Policy AC4:
Policy EM1:

Accessible Transport Network

Road Network

Demand Management

Walking and Cycling

Planning for Climate Change Adaptation

Policy EM2: Building Standards

Policy EM3 Renewable Energy Generation

Policy EM5 Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

Policy EM6: Redevelopment of Previously Developed Land

Emerging Local Policy Guidance — Local Plan Review submitted to Planning
Inspectorate for examination on 9" September 2025

Local Plan review is currently at Examination. Relevant emerging policy relating to this
application is:

Policy DS1:
Policy DS3:
Policy DS4:

Overall Development Needs
Sustainable Development Policy
(Part A) — General Masterplan Principles

Policy H3: Provision of New Housing
Policy H4: Securing a Mix of Housing
Policy H9: Residential Density

Policy GB3:
Policy GE3:
Policy GE4:
Policy DE1:
Policy DE2:
Policy AC1:
Policy AC2:
Policy AC3:
Policy AC4:
Policy EM1:
Policy EM2:
Policy EM4:
Policy EM5:
Policy EM6:

Local Green Space

Biodiversity, Geological, and Landscape Conservation
Tree Protection

Ensuring High Quality Design

Delivering High Quality Places

Accessible Transport Network

Road Network

Demand Management

Active Transport Provision including Walking, Cycling and Micro Mobility
Planning for Climate Change Adaptation

Building Standards

Flood Risk Management

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
Redevelopment of Previously Developed Land

Policy EM11: Energy Infrastructure
Policy EM13: Overheating in new buildings
Policy EM15: Noise

Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD):

SPD Design Guidelines for New Residential Development
SPD Delivering a More Sustainable City

Page 103



SPD Coventry Connected
SPD Energy
SPD Householder Design Guide

CONSULTATION
No objections subject to conditions/contributions have been received from:
e Ecology
e Environmental Protection
e Local Highway Authority
e Urban Design

Neighbour consultation
Immediate neighbours and local councillors have been notified; a site notice was posted
on 10" April 2025.

7no letters of objection have been received, raising the following material planning
considerations:

a) Impact on Highway Safety

b) Access for emergency services
c) Pollution from the building work
d) Overdevelopment

e) Impact on parking

f) Impact on local services

g) Loss of green space

h) Impact on ecology / wildlife

i) Flooding issues

j) Disruption during construction

After negotiations with the applicant, the proposals have been reduced to 9no houses,
instead of the original 12no houses. Further consultation was undertaken which attracted
3no objections raising the following additional material planning considerations:

k) Increased noise

[) Impact on air quality

m) Loss of privacy

Within the letters received the following non-material planning considerations were
raised, these cannot be given due consideration in the planning process:

n) Property values

o) Fly Tipping

p) Existing indiscriminate parking
q) Inaccurate application address.

With regards to these representations, 6no were received from addresses within Algate
Close, with the location of 1no unknown as it did not contain the objector’s address.

Any further comments received will be reported within late representations.

Page 104



APPRAISAL

The main issues in determining this application are the principle of development, highway
considerations, impact on the character and appearance of the area, impact on existing
residential amenity, impact on proposed residential amenity, noise, ecology/biodiversity,
flood risk & drainage, contaminated land and air quality.

The relevant policy text(s) for each issue are included in the Policy Appendix at the end
of the report.

Principle of development

Principle of the loss of the Green Space

A number of objections have been received which centre on the loss of this area for open
space. The site is private land which has no public access over it. Therefore, this area is
not included as a green space within the Green Space Standards (GSS). If members of
the public have been accessing the site, they have in effect been trespassing upon it.

Whilst the site may offer some visual amenity benefit to neighbouring residents, this
benefit is limited. The loss of this area is accepted and in accordance with Policy GE2 of
the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025, the NPPF
and NPPG.

Principle of Residential

An application was approved in 2008 by Planning Committee for 12 houses; however,
this application has expired and was not implemented. Therefore, the current application
is assessed against the Coventry Local Plan adopted in December 2017.

The proposal would be compatible with existing nearby uses and has reasonably
convenient access to local facilities. Furthermore, it is considered that the scheme would
create a high-quality residential environment for future occupiers and therefore the
proposed development would be in accordance with these aspects of Policy H3 of the
Coventry Local Plan thus far.

Creating sustainable communities and therefore sustainable developments requires the
proposals to also include safe and appropriate access have adequate amenity space and
parking provision and be safe from environmental pollutants such as land contamination,
excessive noise and air quality issues.

These issues are discussed in further below.

Highway Considerations

Access

As originally submitted the Local Highway Authority (LHA) objected to the proposal due
to the transition between the existing road and the development street being

unacceptable. Over the course of the application several amendments have been tabled
which has seen the scheme reduce from 12no dwellings to nine dwellings.

Page 105



The revised Site Layout - Drawing No.1611-PA 08 Rev D, shows a suitable transition with
a turning head into the site which will enable a refuse vehicle to enter the site, turn around
and be able to leave in a forward gear.

A Road Safety Audit has also been submitted which has been agreed upon; however,
the site is remaining private just the turning head constructed to an adoptable standard
to be able to take the weight of the refuse vehicle and fire tender.

The Local Highway Authority (LHA) raises no objection to the proposed access.

Layout
The road serving the dwellings will remain private. For a private road of this nature to be

acceptable to enable a refuse vehicle to serve the properties, it must be designed to
adoptable standards and be capable of supporting a 26T refuse freighter (and by
association a fire appliance in the range of 18-20T). This would allow the Council’'s Waste
Service vehicles to enter the site, by agreement with the developer.

The revised site layout drawing shows a suitable transition with a turning head into the
site which will enable a refuse vehicle to enter the site, turn around and be able to leave
in a forward gear.

The Local Highway Authority (LHA) raises no objection to the proposed layout, subject to
conditions securing the engineering and construction details of the proposed turning
head.

Parking
The application as amended proposes 9no, properties which all require two dedicated

parking spaces per plot and 2no visitor parking spaces.

The revised site layout drawing shows two car parking spaces per property, and as
amended now shows two visitor spaces.

The Local Highway Authority (LHA) raises no objection to the quantum and location of
the parking spaces.

It is considered that the proposal will provide safe and appropriate access, a suitable
layout and the quantum of parking in accordance with Policy H3, Policy AC2 and Policy
AC3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025.

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

As originally submitted, there were issues with the design of the site. The parking spaces
for Plot No.1 were considered to be too remote from the plot, and too many parking
spaces were proposed in a row without any breaks creating a visually jarring form of
development.

As shown on revised site layout drawing, the site has lost 3no properties which has
enabled the semi-detached properties to have tandem parking to the side (apart from Plot
No.1, which has the parking to the front), and the detached properties have their parking
to the front. This has enabled significantly more soft landscaping to be shown within the

Page 106



public area and together with tree planting it will help assimilate the estate within the area.
The details of which will be secured by condition.

The house types are modest, with a small double fronted apex with the brick work to be
red multi wirecut brick similar to the surrounding area with grey roof tiles. The house type
design is considered acceptable and will not cause harm to the character or appearance
of the locality in accordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the
emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025.

Bin storage
The maximum bin dragging distance is 25m to the Bin Collection Point. As originally

submitted the nearest Bin Collection Point will be the nearest adopted carriageway, which
is to the west of the red line site boundary, outside No.23 Algate Close.

After conversations with the Local Highway Authority, the proposal was amended which
showed a large enough turning head that could accommodate a Coventry City Council
refuse vehicle to enter the site, collect the bins, turn around and leave the site within a
forward gear.

As mentioned above for a private road to be acceptable to enable the bin truck to serve
the properties, it must be designed to adoptable standards and be capable of supporting
a 26T refuse freighter (and by association a fire appliance in the range of 18-20T).

This would allow the Council’s Waste Service vehicles to enter the site, by agreement
with the developer.

Cycle Storage

Cycle storage is not shown on the plans, but a suitably worded condition can be added
which requires the details of the cycle storage to be submitted and approved prior to
occupation of the dwellings, as there is sufficient space within the rear gardens to
accommodate this request.

Impact on existing residential amenity

Properties at No.65-83 (odds) Parkgate Road are to the north of the site. There is an
existing entryway to the rear of these properties that serves as a vehicular access. This
separates the site from the rear gardens of the aforementioned properties. The distance
from the rear of these properties is in excess of 20m.

The amended proposed site layout has Plots No.1 — 7, with their rear gardens backing
onto No.65 — No.83 (odd) Parkgate Road. Plot No.1 & No.2 have rear gardens of 12m;
Plots No.3 — No.7 (inclusive) have rear gardens of 11m, therefore the resulting back-to-
back separation distance from No.65 — N0.83 (odd) Parkgate Road to Plots No.1 — No.7
is in excess of 30m and therefore is greater than the minimum requirement of 20m.

The next nearest properties are to the west of the application site, No.17 & No.19 Algate
Close, have their gardens backing onto the site, with No.23 side onto the application site.
Plot No.1 is the nearest property to the existing houses located within Algate Close. No.17
Algate Close is backs onto the side fence of Plot No.1 towards the top of the garden,
therefore there are no building directly behind this house.

Page 107



No.19 Algate Close has a rear elevation which faces the side of Plot No.1. No.19 has an
existing 11m deep rear garden. Plot No.1 is set 3.6m off this shared boundary making
the rear to side separation distance 14.6m which is greater than the minimum 12m that
is required. It is also noted that Plot No.1 only has a small obscured glazed window
serving a bathroom within this side facing elevation.

No.23 Algate Close sits fronting onto the existing turning ahead which will be used to
connect to the proposed development. As amended the two car parking spaces for Plot
No.1 are set towards the rear of the house adjacent to the shared side boundary, with
Plot No.1 being set 7.4m off the shared boundary at a distance of 9.1m away. This
relationship is similar to the previous approval and is considered an acceptable
compromise in retaining privacy to each property.

Impact on proposed residential amenity
Private amenity space
As amended the site now provides the required gardens, as set out below.

Plot No of Garden Size Garden Size (sqm)
Bedrooms | required (sqm) (Min)

Plot No.1 | 3 65 143
Plot No.2 | 3 65 104
Plot No.3 | 3 65 100
Plot No.4 | 3 65 94
Plot No.5 | 3 65 96
Plot No.6 | 3 65 94
Plot No.7 | 4 85 179
Plot No.8 | 4 70 -85 112
Plot No.9 | 4 70 - 85 166

Space Standards

Plots No.1 — No.6 are to be three bedroomed. With two double bedrooms and one single
bedroom. Therefore, the property can accommodate five persons (3B5P). The property
is required to be 93sgm gross internal floor area with 2.5sqm of built in storage and are
proposed to be 93sgm with a utility area and airing cupboard as the 2.5sgm of built in
storage.

Plots No.7 — No.9 are to be four bedroomed. With four double bedrooms. Therefore, the
property can accommodate eight persons (4B8P). The property is required to be 124sqm
with a utility area and airing cupboard as the 2.5sgm of built in storage and are proposed
to be 124.74sgm with a utility area and airing cupboard as the 2.5sqm of built in storage.

The houses therefore in accordance with NDSS; Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan
and the emerging Local Plan and the Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)

Noise

On submission a noise report was submitted, however it had no specific assessment of
delivery noise and the impact this would have had on the proposed houses. A subsequent
noise report was submitted, however, the noise report still only addressed the noise

Page 108



impact using BS8233. This was incorrect. The noise report was required to use BS4142
'Method for Rating and Assessing Industrial and Commercial Sound'.

Subsequently further revisions to the noise report were submitted and also found to be
deficient. Further discussions and revised noise surveys were submitted which were still
inadequate, the request for survey to use BS4142 was therefore reiterated. The contents
of which is required to include a specific survey on the number and hours of deliveries to
the service yard; to help to determine the Lamax level.

An updated noise survey was submitted, Noise Assessment Update, dated 22nd
December 2025 - Report Ref.Rev3, on 5" January 2026. The adjacent service yard was
in full operation during the additional survey contained within the noise survey. This report
shows the main noise sources adjacent to the site are the activities taking place in the
Morrisons service yard such as deliveries, pallets handling with forklifts with the general
background noise being identified as road traffic from the surrounding roads as well as
noise from the nearby primary school.

The noise report shows that the internal noise criteria can be achieved with double glazing
and trickle vents. With regards to the garden area for Plot No.7 the noise report shows a
level of 50dB can be achieved which is fully compliant with guidance. Notwithstanding
the above, to minimise the noise levels from the Morrisons service yard further a 2.4m
high close board fence is proposed along the eastern boundary adjacent to Plot No.7.
This will offer a noise reduction of a 10dBA, which means the daytime noise levels in the
garden will be approximately 40-45dBA.

The findings of this report are accepted subject to a condition requiring the noise
mitigation measures stated in the report to be implemented prior to occupation. The
application is considered to be acceptable; will provide for a suitable standard of
accommodation and a satisfactory residential environment.

Ecology/Biodiversity

The application was supported by a Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Assessment, however
further information was required regarding the BNG metric and Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal (PEA), which were both missing. Subsequently a BNG metric and revised
Ecological Impact Assessment were submitted which included the required PEA.

Based on the submitted information, Ecology do not raise any objections to the
application, subject to the imposition of conditions which required bat and bird boxes;
hedgehog mitigation and a condition requiring the details of the street lighting to ensure
they are bat sensitive.

Flood Risk and Drainage

Due to the constraints of the site, the site will not include a SuDs feature within the site,
the site will be drained by underground storage which is located within the informal area
to the front of the site.

A culvert is located to the south of the site. This will require a separate agreement by the

applicant to be able to build over this culvert, this is controlled by other legislation outside
of the planning process.

Page 109



On submission Plot No.9 was shown as to have their garden area within the culvert area,
this was considered unacceptable from a liability and maintenance point of view. This
area was required to be located within the general area managed and maintained by a
management company and not conveyed to the plot. The amended layout shows this to
now be an acceptable arrangement.

Contaminated land

The application was supported by a Geo Technical and Geo Environmental Desk Study
Report, in which it is stated that ‘Given the past usage of the site, the potential type of
contamination includes heavy metals. It is therefore recommended that a Phase 2 site
investigation is undertaken prior to commencement on site’. This can be controlled by
suitable worded conditions.

On this basis, Environmental Protection raise no objections to the application.

Air quality
Environmental Health have raised no objections subject to a conditioning requiring the
following: -
e Any gas boilers installed must have a maximum dry NOx emissions rate of
40mg/kWh
e Provision of at least one electric vehicle recharging point per property.
¢ A method statement detailing the control of emissions to air during the construction
phase should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of works. Such a method statement should
be in-line with the Best Practice Guidance entitled ‘The control of dust and
emissions from construction and demolition’.

These can be ensured through suitably worded conditions.

Equality Implications
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. Section 149
states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into account and given due regard to this statutory duty, and the
matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the determination of this
application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development.

Page 110



Conclusion
The proposal seeks as amended to erect 9no houses.

The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle and will not result
in any significant impact upon neighbour amenity, highway safety, ecology, flooding,
drainage or infrastructure and will provides a satisfactory residential environment.,
subject to relevant conditions. The reason for Coventry City Council granting planning
permission is because the development is in accordance with: Policies: DS3, DS4 (Part
A), H3, H4, H9, GE1, GE2, GE3, DE1, AC1. AC2. AC3, AC4, EMS5 and EMG6 of the
Coventry Local Plan 2017 and Policies: DS3, DS4 (Part A), H3, H4, H9, GB3, GE1, GEZ2,
GE3, DE1, DE2, AC1, AC2, AC3, AC4, EM5, EM6 and EM15 of the emerging Local Plan,
together with the aims of the NPPF.

Page 111



POLICY APPENDIX

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2024.
Coventry Local Plan 2017 & Emerging Local Policy
Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD):

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s planning
policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It sets out the
Government’s requirements for the planning system only to the extent that is relevant,
proportionate and necessary to do so. The NPPF increases the focus on achieving high
quality design and states that it is “fundamental to what the planning and development
process should achieve”.

Policy Background

The Coventry Local Plan was adopted in December 2017 and, as such, is now more than
five years old. Consequently, until the Local Plan Review is complete and has been
approved by an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State, the housing requirement
established at the time of the Local Plan’s adoption in December 2017 is out of date.
Instead, Coventry’s minimum annual housing need must be calculated using the
Government’s standard method calculation.

The Council is able to demonstrate a 5.91- year housing land supply as published in the
Authority Monitoring Report 2024/25 published December 2025. Due to the council being
able to demonstrate a five-year Housing Land Supply (HLS) the tilted balance is not
engaged.

Principle of development
The NPPF 2024, paragraph 11, states that “Plans and decisions should apply a
presumption in favour of sustainable development. For Decision Making, this means:-

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date , granting permission unless: i.
the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a strong reason for refusing the development proposed; or ii. any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole, having particular
regard to key policies for directing development to sustainable locations, making effective
use of land, securing well-designed places and providing affordable homes, individually
or in combination.

Footnote 8 to paragraph 11 confirms that this includes situations where the local authority
cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate
buffer set out in paragraph 78).

Principle of the loss of the Green Space

Policy GE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025
states the council will protect green infrastructure based on an analysis of existing assets
and requires development to maintain the quantity, quality and functionality of existing
green infrastructure.

Page 112



Policy GE2 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025
states development involving the loss of green space that is of value for amenity,
recreation, outdoor sports and/or community use will not be permitted and then there is
a list of exceptions where it may be permitted.

Principle of Residential

Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025
states that new development must provide a high-quality residential environment which
assists in delivering urban regeneration or creating sustainable communities and which
overall enhances the built environment.

Highway Considerations

Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025,
as mentioned above, requires, amongst other items, to provide safe and appropriate
access.

Policy AC2 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025
states new development proposals which are predicted to have a negative impact on the
capacity and/or safety of the highway network should mitigate and manage the traffic
growth which they are predicted to generate to ensure that they do not cause
unacceptable levels of traffic congestion, highway safety problems and poor air quality.

Parking
Policy AC3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025

states proposals for the provision of car parking associated with new development will be
assessed on the basis of parking standards set out in Appendix 5 (Appendix 6).

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

Policy DE1 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure high quality design and development
proposals must respect and enhance their surroundings and positively contribute towards
the local identity and character of an area.

Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states the creation of high-quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities.

The National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 135 states that “Planning policies
and decisions should ensure that developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

Page 113



d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit.

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of
life or community cohesion and resilience.

The NPPF further states (at paragraph 139) “Development that is not well designed
should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and government
guidance on design, taking into account any local design guidance and supplementary
planning documents such as design guides and codes”.

Principle 8 of the Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD states that
“‘new residential development will be expected to respond to the size, shape and rhythm
of surrounding plot layouts”.

Paragraph 6.17 of the Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD states
that “space to park cars can place a significant burden on the design of residential layouts.
Balancing the expectations of residents and visitors for adequate parking spaces near to
properties with the need to ensure parking does not unduly impact on the street scene
and safety and amenity of people is a key consideration”.

Principle 9 of the Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD states that,
“Parking layouts should be high quality and designed to:

e Reflect the strong urban fabric and Ancient Arden identity of the city. All parking
arrangements should be softened with generous soft landscaping and no design
should group more than 3 linear parking spaces together, without intervening
landscaping.

e Ensure developments are not functionally and visually dominated by cars;

e Maintain activity in the street without adversely affecting the attractiveness of the
streetscene;

e Minimise impact on the amenity of residents;

e Unobstructed and inclusive access to front and rear of a property by 1.2m to
provide futureproofing for all users

e Be safe, overlooked and convenient for users; and

e Be spaces that are visually and functionally attractive in the street scene”.

Paragraph 6.26 of the ‘Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD’ sets out
that the Council’s preference is for parking to be to the side or rear where adverse impacts
on the street scene and amenities can be more effectively managed. Where parking has
to be provided to the front it is important that the visual impacts are mitigated as far as
possible. Potential solutions include landscaping, staggered buildings, separation and
use of boundary treatments. It is also important that buildings are set back far enough
from the road to enable cars to be comfortably parked in front. Enclosure of front on plot
parking areas with vegetation will be strongly encouraged.

Page 114



Principle 10 of the Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD states: “On-
plot parking should not be dominated by excessive frontage parking arrangements.
Where front of plot parking is proposed this should be enclosed with soft landscaping and
not dominate the appearance of the plot or the street scene with extensive hard surfacing
or multiple or over wide vehicle cross overs”.

Bin storage
Paragraph 9.11 of the Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD states “It

is important that the waste storage requirements are handled in purpose-built spaces that
are sufficient in size, easily accessible and which do not generate offensive smells or
negatively impact on a street scene’s character and quality”.

Paragraph 9.12 of the Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD states:
“the Council’s strong preference is for refuse storage areas to be located to the rear or
side of dwellings where they are invisible in the public realm”.

Cycle Storage

Paragraph 9.15 of the Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD states:
“Cycle storage facilities should be easily accessible to occupiers and wherever possible,
be integral to the design of the residential development. Where external cycle facilities
are provided, they should be constructed of durable materials, relate to the design of the
main residential building, be easily accessible and not have a detrimental impact on the
street scene”.

Impact on existing residential amenity

Policy DS3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025
is concerned with creating sustainable development, sustainable development is meeting
the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs, Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry
Local Plan 2025 states that new development must provide a high-quality residential
environment.

All built form is assessed against Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the
emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025 and the Design Guidance for New Residential
Development SPD and Householder Design Guide SPD.

Principle 1 of the Householder Design Guide SPD states “extensions should not result in
a material loss of amenity to neighbouring properties as a result of overshadowing, loss
of outlook, visual intrusion, eroding privacy or being overbearing”.

Principle 3 of the Householder Design Guide SPD states:

e “Where a neighbouring dwellinghouse has a side facing window which provides
the primary source of light and / or outlook to a habitable room (e.g. kitchen, living
room, bedroom), a side extension which adversely impacts on such a window
would not normally be acceptable. (Using the 25-degree rule below can help
assess acceptability)

e Where the side of a dwellinghouse is at a right-angle to the front or rear of an
adjoining dwellinghouse a minimum distance of 12m should be retained between
the side of your extension and the front or rear of the neighbouring dwellinghouse.

Page 115



This distance may need to be increased if the ground level of your property is
elevated in relation to your neighbours”.

Principle 5 of the Householder Design Guide SPD states: “For two storey rear extensions
the following principles should be followed:

e The depth of the extension should not exceed an imaginary 45-degree line taken
from the centre of the neighbour’s closest habitable rear facing window (ground or
first floor)

e A minimum rear to rear windows distance of at least 20m should be retained

¢ A minimum distance of at least 10m should usually be retained between first floor
windows and the rear site boundary

e Any side facing windows above ground level should be obscure glazed to prevent
overlooking”.

Impact on proposed residential amenity

Policy DS3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan2025
is concerned with creating sustainable development, sustainable development is meeting
the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs, Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry
Local Plan 2025 states that new development must provide a high-quality residential
environment. A suitable residential environment includes amongst other requirements,
adequate amenity space. Emerging Policy DE2 requires all new houses to be Nationally
Described Space Standards (NDSS).

The Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD sets out guidance and
principles on how development should come forward in accordance with.

Private Amenity Space

The Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD, at Section 8.20 states:
“The minimum amount may vary depending on the context of the house. Homes with
private amenity spaces facing predominantly north may need to provide larger private
gardens than those facing the sun with a predominantly southern orientation”.

House Size Minimum standard/unit for | Minimum standard/unit for
outdoor amenity spaces outdoor amenity spaces
facing facing
predominantly south (sqgm) | predominantly north (sqm)

1 bed 40 50

2/3 beds 55 65

4+ beds 70 85

Space Standards

The Design Guidance for New Residential Development SPD, at Principle 19 states
new dwellings must be of Nationally Described Space Standards (NDSS).

Page 116




Table 1 - Minimum gross internal floor areas and storage (m?)

Number of Number of | 1 storey 2 storey 3 storey Built-in
bedrooms(b) | bed spaces | dwellings dwellings dwellings storage
(persons)

1p 39(@37)* 1.0

1b 2p 50 58 1.5
3p 61 70

2b 4p 70 79 2.0
4p 74 84 90

3b 5p 86 93 99 2.5
6p 95 102 108
5p 90 97 103
6p 99 106 112

4b 7p 108 115 121 3.0
8p 117 124 130
6p 103 110 116

5b 7p 112 119 125 3.5
8p 121 128 134
7p 116 123 129

6b 8p 125 132 138 4.0

Noise

Policy DS3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025
is concerned with creating sustainable development, sustainable development is meeting
the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs, Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Coventry
Local Plan 2025 states that new development must provide a high-quality residential
environment. A suitable residential environment includes amongst other requirements
free from excessive noise.

Emerging Policy EM15 states Proposals for uses which are sensitive to noise will not be
permitted close to existing or proposed potentially noise polluting uses unless it can be
demonstrated that adequate mitigation measures can be provided to ensure adequate
levels of amenity can be provided for future occupiers and the existing potentially noise
polluting uses will not be prejudiced by the development proposed. Furthermore,
development will not be permitted if mitigation cannot be provided to an appropriate
standard with an acceptable design.

Ecology/Biodiversity

Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan and the emerging Coventry Local Plan states that
Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs), Local Nature Reserves (LNRs), Ancient
Woodlands, Local Wildlife and Geological Sites will be protected and enhanced. Policy
GE3 establishes that developments should provide a net gain and where this is not
possible provide some form of offsetting.

Flood Risk & drainage

Paragraph 162 of the NPPF states plans should take a proactive approach to mitigating
and adapting to climate change, taking into account the long-term implications for flood

Page 117



risk, coastal change, water supply, biodiversity and landscapes, and the risk of
overheating and drought from rising temperatures.

Paragraph 164 of the NPPF states new development should be planned for in ways that:
a) avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from climate change.
When new development is brought forward in areas which are vulnerable, care
should be taken to ensure that risks can be managed through suitable adaptation
measures, including through incorporating green infrastructure and sustainable
drainage systems.

Paragraph 170 of the NPPF states ‘Inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding
should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk (whether
existing or future). Where development is necessary in such areas, the development
should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere.

Paragraph 171 of the NPPF states “Strategic policies should be informed by a strategic
flood risk assessment and should manage flood risk from all sources. They should
consider cumulative impacts in, or affecting, local areas susceptible to flooding, and take
account of advice from the Environment Agency and other relevant flood risk
management authorities, such as lead local flood authorities and internal drainage boards

Policy EM5 of the Coventry Local Plan and the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025 states
all development must apply SuDS and should ensure that surface water runoff is
managed as close to its source as possible.

Contaminated land

Policy EM6 seeks to ensure that redevelopment of previously developed land does not
have a negative impact on water quality, either directly through pollution of surface or
ground water or indirectly through the treatment of waste water by whatever means.

Air quality

Policy EM7 states that major development schemes should promote a shift to the use of
sustainable low emission transport to minimise the impact of vehicle emissions on air
quality.

CONDITIONS / REASONS

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years from
the date of this decision.

To conform with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Reason: (as amended)

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

Page 118



« AMENDED DRAWING - Site Location Plan, as submitted 28th
March 2025

« AMENDED DRAWING - Site Layout - Drawing No.1611-PA 08 Rev
D

« DRAWING - Boundary Treatments - Drawing No.1611-PA 21

« AMENDED DRAWING - Floor Plans and Front Elevations - Plots 1-
9 - Drawing No.1611-PA 09 Rev A

« AMENDED REPORT - Noise Assessment Update, dated 22nd
December 2025 - Report Ref. Rev3

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

An investigation and risk assessment (in addition to any assessment
provided with the planning application), must be completed in accordance
with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the
site; whether or not it originates on the site; and any report of the findings
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
prior to the commencement of development (including any demolition). The
report of the findings, to be conducted in accordance with Environment
Agency Guidance Land Contamination: Risk Management (2021) and must
include (i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; (ii) an
assessment of the potential risk to; human health, property (existing or
proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service
lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological
systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments; (iii) an appraisal of
remedial options and proposal of the preferred option(s)

To safeguard health, safety and the environment in accordance with Policy
EMEG6 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the emerging Local Plan and the

Reason: ,ims and objectives of the NPPF

The development shall only be undertaken in accordance with a detailed
remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended
use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other
property and the natural and historical environment, which shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management
procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990
in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

To safeguard health, safety and the environment in accordance with Policy
EMEG6 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the emerging Local Plan and the

Reason: ims and objectives of the NPPF

Page 119



Reason:

Reason:

Reason:

Page 120

The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with
its terms prior to the commencement of development other than that
required to carry out the remediation. The Local Planning Authority must be
given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation
scheme works.

To safeguard health, safety and the environment in accordance with Policy
EMG6 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the emerging Local Plan and the
aims and objectives of the NPPF

Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted and following
completion of the measures identified within the remediation scheme
approved under condition No. 4 a verification report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing

To safeguard health, safety and the environment in accordance with Policy
EMEG6 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the emerging Local Plan and the
aims and objectives of the NPPF

In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be
reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with
the requirements of condition No.3, and where remediation is necessary a
remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the requirements
of condition No.4, which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the
approved remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which
is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in
accordance with condition No.6.

To safeguard health, safety and the environment in accordance with Policy
EMEG6 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the emerging Local Plan and the
aims and objectives of the NPPF

No development (including any demolition) shall take place unless and until
a Construction Management Plan (CMP) has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CMP shall include
details of: - hours of work; - hours of deliveries to the site; - the parking of
vehicles of site operatives and visitors during the demolition/construction
phase; - the delivery access point; - the loading and unloading of plant and
materials; - anticipated size and frequency of vehicles moving to/from the
site; - the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the
development; - the erection and maintenance of a security hoarding
including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing where
appropriate; - wheel washing facilities and other measures to ensure that
any vehicle, plant or equipment leaving the application site does not carry



mud or deposit other materials onto the public highway; - measures to
control the emission of dust and dirt during demolition and construction; -
measures to control the presence of asbestos; - measures to minimise noise
disturbance to neighbouring properties during demolition and construction; -
details of any piling together with details of how any associated vibration will
be monitored and controlled; and - a scheme for recycling / disposing of
waste resulting from demolition and construction works. Thereafter, the
approved details within the CMP shall be strictly adhered to throughout the
construction period and shall not be amended in any way.

The agreement of a Construction Management Plan prior to the
commencement of development is fundamental to ensure a satisfactory
level of environmental protection; to minimise disturbance to local residents

Reason: and in the interests of highway safety during the construction process in
accordance with Policies [EM7], AC1 and AC2 of the Coventry Local Plan
2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

Prior to their incorporation into the development hereby permitted, sample
details of all facing and roofing materials shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall be installed
only in full accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation
of the development and thereafter shall be retained and shall not be
removed or altered in any way.

To ensure that the proposed development has a satisfactory external
appearance in the interests of the visual amenities of the area in

Reason: accordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the
emerging Local Plan.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of
both hard and soft landscaping works shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details of hard landscaping works
shall include full details of the footpaths; and hard surfacing (which shall be
made of porous materials or provision shall be made to direct run-off water
from the hard surface to a permeable or porous area). The hard landscaping
works shall be completed in strict accordance with the approved details
within three months of the first occupation of the dwelling(s) hereby
permitted; and all planting shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details within the first planting and seeding seasons following the
first occupation. Any tree(s) or shrub(s) which within a period of five years
from the completion of the development dies, is removed or becomes; in the
opinion of the Local Planning Authority; seriously damaged, defective or
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with another of similar
size and species. All hedging, tree(s) and shrub(s) shall be planted in
accordance with British Standard BS 8545:2014 Trees: from nursery to
independence in the landscape - Recommendations and BS4428 - Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations.

10.

Page 121



Reason:

1.

Reason:

12.

Reason:

13.

Reason:

14.

Page 122

To ensure a satisfactory standard of appearance of the development in the
interests of the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policies
GE1 and DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Local
Plan.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of
bin storage areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The bin storage areas shall be provided in full
accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of the
development and thereafter they shall remain available for use at all times
and shall not be removed or altered in any way.

In the interests of the amenities of future occupants of the residential
accommodation and neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policy
DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

Prior to occupation of the dwelling(s) hereby permitted, details of cycle
parking facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The cycle parking facilities shall be provided in full
accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of the building
and thereafter those facilities shall remain available for use at all times and
shall not be removed or altered in any way.

In the interests of encouraging the use of alternative modes of transport
with the aim of creating a more sustainable city in accordance with Policies
DS3, AC3 and AC4 of the Coventry Local 2017 and the emerging Local
Plan.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, details of
general ecological habitat enhancement measures and hedgehog mitigation
measures shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such measures shall include; retention and
management of boundary vegetation, and hedgehog friendly boundary
fencing and gates. The habitat enhancement measures shall be undertaken
in strict accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of
the development and thereafter shall be retained and shall not be removed
or altered in any way.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the
emerging Local Plan and the advice contained within the NPPF.

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted details of
the location and type of bird and bat boxes shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall include a
minimum of 8 bird boxes and 4 bat boxes to be installed on mature trees
around the site boundaries or on the / incorporated into the fabric of the new



dwellings. Once installed they shall be retained and shall not be removed
or altered in any way.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the

Reason: emerging Local Plan and the advice contained within the NPPF.

Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted the mitigation
measures as set out within:
e Table 5.2 of AMENDED REPORT - Noise Assessment Update,
dated 22nd December 2025 - Report Ref.Rev3, namely:
o External Wall - Traditional masonry wall (e.g. 100mm
plastered brick;
Roof - Tiled/slate roof and plasterboard ceiling;
Glazing - Double glazing 6/12/4;
Trickle Ventilator - Basic trickle ventilator, and
15. e Section 5.3 of AMENDED REPORT - Noise Assessment Update,
dated 22nd December 2025 - Report Ref.Rev3, namely,
o a 2.4m high fully solid, fence with a surface mass of at least
8 kg/m2 along the eastern boundary of the site as shown
on DRAWING - Boundary Treatments - Drawing No.1611-
PA 21

shall have been implemented in full accordance with the recommendations
of the noise assessment and thereafter shall not be removed or altered in
any way.

To protect the amenities of future occupiers from road traffic noise, the
service delivery yard and general disturbance in accordance with Policy H3

Reason: of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

Prior to the installation of any street lighting or any external lighting to be
fixed to any building(s), an external lighting strategy (including a plan) shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
strategy shall demonstrate that lighting shall be kept to a minimum at night
in order to minimise impact on emerging and foraging bats, and to restrict
light spillage onto foraging corridors. The lighting shall be installed in full
accordance with the approved strategy and all lighting thereafter shall be
subsequently maintained in strict accordance with the approved details.

16.

To ensure that protected species are not harmed by the development in
accordance with Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, and the

Reason: emerging Local Plan and the advice contained within the NPPF.

No part of the residential accommodation hereby permitted shall be

17. occupied unless and until the external amenity space has been laid out and

Page 123



Reason:

18.

Reason:

19.

Reason:

20.

Reason:

Page 124

provided in full accordance with the details shown on the approved plans
and thereafter shall remain available for use at all times.

In the interests of the amenities of the future occupants of the residential
accommodation in accordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan
2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

None of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied unless and until
the car parking provision for that dwelling has been constructed or laid out
and made available for use by the occupants and / or visitors to the dwellings
and thereafter those spaces shall be retained for parking purposes at all time
and shall not be removed or altered in any way.

To ensure the satisfactory provision of off-street vehicle parking facilities in
accordance with the Council's standards and in the interests of highway
safety and the satisfactory development of the site in accordance with
Policies AC1,AC2 and AC3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the
emerging Local Plan.

Any gas boilers installed on site shall have a dry NOx emission rate of no
more than 40mg/kWh. One electric vehicle recharging point per dwelling
shall be provided prior to occupation and shall not be removed or altered in
any way and shall be kept available for such use by residents at all times.

To mitigate the impacts of development on air quality in accordance with
Policy DS3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the emerging Local Plan and
the aims and objectives of the NPPF.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), or any
statutory instrument amending, revoking and/or replacing that Order, no
gate, fence, wall or other means of enclosure shall be erected, constructed
or improved or altered such as to place the structure in front of the
forwardmost part of any dwellinghouses relating to Plots No.1 - No.7 and no
gate, fence, wall or other means of enclosure shall be erected, constructed
or improved or altered such as to place the structure to the front (north
elevation) and western side elevation of the Plot No.8 and no gate, fence,
wall or other means of enclosure shall be erected, constructed or improved
or altered such as to place the structure to the front (south elevation) and
western side elevation of Plot No.9 without the prior grant of planning
permission by the Local Planning Authority.

Having regard to the open plan layout and general nature of the proposed
development it is important to ensure that no development is carried out
except with the permission of the Local Planning Authority, which would
detract from the appearance of the area and affect the amenities of
adjacent properties in accordance with Policies H3 and DE1 of the



21.

Reason:

Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), or any
statutory instrument amending, revoking and/or replacing that Order, no
development to form hard surfaces shall be carried out within the curtilage
of any dwellinghouse[S] hereby permitted without the prior grant of planning
permission by the Local Planning Authority.

Having regard to the open plan layout and general nature of the proposed
development it is important to ensure that no development is carried out
except with the permission of the Local Planning Authority, which would
detract from the appearance of the area and affect the amenities of
adjacent properties in accordance with Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local
Plan 2017 and the emerging Local Plan.

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



© ©
@
2 2 3 8 8 ] &
@ 2 S o w
2 2 & 433276
433276 « o
! 2
1 H H 2
IR - m g
\ I S |1 | <
[ g % _ g
i 1 B ! 2
] H ] @
ﬂ : 3 ! :
_—— S i 5
__ ......... H S
i 8
J— S
3 __ = - 433250 £
433250 [ e = (&] )
! 8 "4 g
...... 4 H < H
|||||| 1 - H S
_ { : <C °
E i i
....... = H : +
oo S H—
7 £ e ; = @ ®
g + L Q
=) NS
z i (@)
g o ] = o)
L S &) N
i 4 _ - b
; w ' .
1 2 ! —
m g | o
— x| 2 | L] |
H— o
i i 433200
433200 |
|
H
. ZzZ<i—
o
S
L ]
; ]
4 j ]
i ]
— ! 1
i 1
- T ! 2
1 [} b
N i . 1
1] S 433150 1
433150 et T s ]
; ]
; ]
- J g
\ ]
— I g o
/SN 8+
I \ m ﬂ 5 i
i
; ]
it r 7 18
; =
;] T | - )b (0]
7 _|_ €
% L
(.
(O] i
?
(p) A 433100 1
o 433100 _._ o ]
9
N ]
T -
R
\
- 433069
433069 S 2 5]
S > o © )
2 g 8 & & s 3
[} N @ o
3 &
o Q o @
z &

Page 127


AutoCAD SHX Text_600
3000

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
1:1250 at A4

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
40M

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
20M

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
10M

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
0


| 9 10 11 12 13 1L | 15 | 16
| I i | CONSTRUCTION DESIGN MANAGEMENT

THIS PROJECT IS TO CONFORM TO C.D.M. REQUIREMENTS
SPECIFIC RISKS RELATING TO THIS DRAWING ARE:

Risk Description

Classification| Action

283150

W

H & S RISK
_ : ' WORKING AT HEIGHT, FALLS AND FALLING ITEMS
SCAFFOLD AND WORKING PLATFORMS
B A — — — ) CARRY OUT EXCAVATIONS, FALLS AND COLLAPSE B
— ®f I/ — , \ MATERIAL HANDLING, LIFTING
= = 7~ X _ — ! MACHINERY AND PLANT OPERATIONS
s ——— - CHEMICALS USED , COSHH
— - = WS == 7707 =e—+—— o — HHW —— =———— d SECURE SITE AND PROTECT WORK AREAS
—— — = = — REAR |FENCE TO GARDEN =i =e=—— =— = —
———— = == 2M HIGH CLOSE = = = _— = —
— \— = = mo>xcmo__.nmwom \_—— \— — = — FIRE RISKS ASSESSMENTS AND CONTROL
] <~ — |HIIIHH = MHWMHW = WW\HW‘W METHOD STATEMENTS AND RISK ASSESSMENTS T
= = = — = = = H‘WW AND C.0.S.H.H ASSESSMENTS TO BE PREPARED
: = =
T HIGH G oag SARDEN REAR GARDEN min 80m2 REAR GARDEN min 80m2 SIDE .FENCE TO GARDEN WW\M‘HMWH“ =
from back wall of house from back wall of house 2M HIGH CLOSE = ——
BOARDED FENCE TO FRONT OF 23 b B OARDED FonoE
9828
C T T b ,ﬂ AR [98.35 [98:89 7000 . C
, | 98.0 7 =1 7
i W@wwi W W 7 W W W W - - - - , - - - m_, T T T T T T T T 3500 APPROXIMENT \\\\s /...“ !
= L Al ] i ——— { —
== W 1 2 L L L L] — s N
= o eyl A | | ¥ A
(98150 EEEEEEEEREEEEEEN W 4 W O LT NI W o
= , — SET OUT OF HOUSES IS SUBJECT TO -
= 3800 (98150 | | [98]50 | [0 CHECKS ON SITE |AND DIMENSIONS MAY
—— == a) 9850 T I R - — 4 ] — VARY SLIGHTLY
—_— ] ———/ 7 mOTo 3500 %
—||_ i i m i - 97.5%
g 4 1 5 T |
50 5 _ _ | f [ —— [98.35
7 7 7 7
@828 | ﬁF __
98.2 FOUL DRAINS 98,35
U g O STORM DRAINS / /O D
8 € q O 772 LD
. T N
. f 7 O

_ ‘_ \

T - 97.56
98.00 f 7
. 8
,, PRIVATE SHARED DRIVE (98.25 g |
, spaces 2mFooT patH
|A&|

2m HIGH BRICKWALL| | e .Mm.

[ \_’ T L ” _m Lmﬂ 7 V . 10860. approximent .m“"
- I ! i

2m FOOT PATH m."

(oY)
~
oY)

_ I I I I I I I I /
< SPACES2.5 X 5M 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 \
-
_ \ REAR FENCE TO GARDEN
< . 8 Fr gy 2M HIGH CLOSE /
\ 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 BOARDED FENCE 97 54 \
8.7 m \ /
' \ \ \ m. \
Ligkting post 6m high 976 v 9768 o167 / m_“ m
Lighting post-6m high LED'STREET LIGHTING 98.50 \ i
| _ 1M HIGH FENCE LED STREET LIGHTING l—lo 40W light spread 15m radius ik
| FROM FRONT OF 23 40W light spread 1 oa FOUL DRAINS O 70600 | / i
| ARD [\ b STORMDRANS S, : / f
= g ~9 T T L 4 N m w \_ O O
STORM DRAINS Jg - EERER EREEER RN \
m FOOT PATH 97IN 9755 i
A A A R R R 227 7ree / i
- 972 RM TWO SMALL TREE PLANTIN \ : , _
| 57| BOXES ARKING L] TPl SPACE FOR SHED / COVER FOR CYCLE , " | Layout altered to suit Planing 8/ 09/ 2% -
...................... - STORAGE IN REAR GARDENS QT_Q QZ i ;
AINS ¥ = 2m FOQTP REFUSE BINS IN REAR GARDENS \ >> //imi m _WC:\\_\ C _\m_\_Q_\__o atered to suit T_m_\__\___\_& _M\ Q9729
Tt / i ) )
= AT 2 (o} %35 98.20 = (@ 9835 i D |Layow altered to sut Plaming 21/ 084 29
| | : NCIED o i\ —" Zm FROM CENTER
2 SPACES 2.5.X 6M 1M FGH MESR\FENCE : P < — — Vv _ _
85 FLOWER AR . sioe renceTocrroen /R = | & = A [Layout altered to suit Planning 20/ O7Y 29
984 % tor ter storage 1M HIGH CLOSE BOARDED House-3m{-From; Culveft - V-
TE CLOSE 9866 7 S ® TO FRONT GARDEN Plot 9 g - 2M HIGH CLOSE BOA| _ —
4 , 93 i T = =
% 2 2m FOOT PATH (98 W - S G =7 = R Descript Date
Yl SRE R R e e 3 — — — N ipti
, 2 . = e File Tnfo on Culvert shows 2m x 1.2m uive . E— d = F
9875 986 & _ 1 =
, — - - ‘ ontrolled Zijj4 ", Construction RC box approx.2.4m to roo o =— COPYRIGHT OF THIS DRAWING IS RESERVED BY DO NOT SCALE OR DIGITISE ANY INFORMATION
EXTEND FOOTPATH ARO AR FLOW OGIST TO A cStorm Out = L | - Gulvert i | A JOHN PRYCE ARCHITECTURAL. DO NOT COPY FROM THIS DRAWING. ONLY USE STATED
PLANTING S- . L io EBBAIL N T e b, = S : - WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. DIMENSIONS. CHECK DIMS PRIOR TO
. “ | exsTorence / IRAMMCEI SIS ImATAREROR | el commAC e s copcrgrs
e
1 STRUCTURAL ENGINEER TO CONFIRM LOADS PREJUDICE. DO NOT ISSUE TO THIRD PARTY CURRENT BUILDING REGULATIONS, CODES OF
ER CULVER & WATER CRATES SUITABLE FOR HIGHWAY FOOTPATH WMMMH-SU._.H_.WQM“N_‘QQ WITHOUT EXPRESSED WRITTEN PERMISSION PRACTICE AND HEALTH AND SAFETY LEGISLATION
FOUL DRAINS | Job Tile
98.5
(L9828 SPORTS FIELD

ALGATE CLOSE
HOLBROOK
COVENTRY
CV64NB

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

Drawing Title

SITE LAYOUT
REVISION TO 9 HOUSES

TURNING CIRCLE 20.3M RADIUS 10.15M
WALL TO WALL

- N Planning Drawing
i - AN
= ‘_ucm_u_.m LINES OUTWARDS
CAD
— John Pryce Architectural ||—
78 Lugtrout Lane
SOLIHULL
West Midlands
EXTEND FOOTPATH AROUND B91 2SN
PLANTING BOXES Tel: 0121 572 4078
T Email:john.pryce@uwclub.net Mob: 07973 382 084
b FORM TWO SMALL TREE PLANTING W::&:Q _umma_,_ & _u—.O.mmnn gm:m&mam:n _|_
: /Q.Q/. \)m\ﬁ. BOXES EACH END OF PARKING Drawn by Checked by |[ Scale Date
ip j 1/200A1 06-2025
Job Number Drawing Number Revision %
; —
| 1611 PA 08 D |5
(@)]
NIV ®©
1 2 3 | b | 5 | 6 | 7 T T Y [ T [T T ] 10 | 11 12 3 T4 | 15 | 16 o



10

11

12

13 14

15

16

6 no Solar Panels on each
Property generating 1.6 Kw/h
|

(LT \
/ N
/ N

Feature brick solider headers

- (LT g \
/ \
% \

(L
/

Il
7/

[

/
/
AN

N\

|

L

A
AN
7/

/

WALLS FAIR FACED BRICKWORK
CONCRETE ROOF TILES

ROOF GREY MODERN PLAI

CONSTRUCTION DESIGN MANAGEMENT

THIS PROJECT IS TO CONFORM TO C.D.M. REQUIREMENTS
SPECIFIC RISKS RELATING TO THIS DRAWING ARE:

Risk Description

Classification

Action

WINDOWS WHITE UPVC DOUBLE GLAZED
GUTTERS, RWP, SVP, FASCIAS BLACK UPVC

SOFFITS WHITE UPVC

FRONT DOORS COMPOSITE VARIOUS COLOURS

FRONT ELEVATION (South)

STREET SCENE

10978 10978
r 1 = | P i P 1
2747 " 2148 2148 2747
|: i BED 3 ! BED 3 o :|
JBED 2 . .

L e Mete

"GROUND / FIRST
FLOOR PLAN PLOTS 1to 6

10340

i E landing

landing

bath

3047 M AR
3 BED 1 en-suite
— A, A
b—i |
uﬁaaMcf/jr

AREA 93 M2 (1001 SQFT)

6 no Solar Panels on each
Property generating 1.6 Kw/h

Solar panels on South or West Face

Plot 7
(East 8 handed & 9 )

FAIR FACED BRICKWORK RED MULTI WIRECUT
BRICK SIMILAR TO SURROUNDING AREA

/
// Obscure and dlass in door
N\
\

(L]
/

|

LU0

/
7/
A

N\

1

|

L
A

ROOF TILES SMOOTH GREY (MARLEY MODERN

OR SIMILAR ) TO THE APPROVAL OF L.A.

LRI
N

/ \

/
/
/

CANOPY ENTRANCE
TREATED TIMBER
CONSTRUCTION

CANOPY ENTRANCE

TREATED TIMBER CONSTRUCTION

SIDE ELEVA
(East 7 North

TION
8 South 9)

SIDE ELEVATION

(West 7 South 8 North 9)

REAR ELEVATION

(North 7 East 8 handed & 9 )

E
10600 10600
—— T T
. ¥y SMQ WE | MN] i </> - Feature brick solider head - | \
— -« = - | alc J eature DricK solider nea ers__________; _________ ]
[ % |BED 2 B} & BE?; = [ +BED 3 ] \..I dou q :H) 4 & ﬁ (R T R TTTTTH T I i~ i T
Ul | anding Ei i/ N - N | W
\ﬂ “ - | | i W_ 7 / A | Notes added to drawing, 20/ O7/ 2%
[ _|= landing / ﬁm [ k 3108 T ~ | —— el R — Re Description Dat
F ~| | BED 3 Lf—F — = =
N BED 4 § *BED 2 r:| @ : BED 1 < _ coPYRIGH HIS DRAWIN DO NOT SCALE OR DIGITISE ANY INFORMATION
- é LOG ale, s | i Esqg 7 | REAR ELEVATION Plots 1to 6 SIDE ELEVATION (West) |weremassc™ ™ |asacsme
- RFOMATONONLY AVDSWPLEDWITROUT || T CoNPLY W ALLASPECTS OF TR
= —r Plots 1 to 6
ALGATE CLOSE
- (AX oL BRO0K
oo P“\q | — A \ CV6 4 NB
l;:ni]ity §08 570 \ S"@tﬂ o i § Drawing Title
G [ iCaniniivd 8 ﬂ N &S - B _ S ) . FLOOR PLANS Plots 1 -9
[ == o /K,TCSEN’ ] T, — h AND ELEVATIONS
== -Z 1 2 12 OUNGE TS A |
S @ @OUNGE { DT~ KITCHEN s 8 { == el A | Planning Drawings
< |
L. r& - | R CAD
] — toileX] oot utility feg- John Pryce Architectural
i) s SIDE ELEVATION (East) —
SO o5\
||/ Wes?(l:\)nli-clill-lawa:
CANOPY ENTRANE:E + GROUND /FIRST T Plots 110 6 CROSS SECTION Email:john.pryce@uwclub.net Mob: 84343"?5%12“257;;
mail:john.pryce@uwclub.ne ob:
: FLOOR PLAN PLOTS 7 to 9
AREA 124.74 M2 (1342 SQFT) ip i 1/100 A1 06-2025
-U Job Number Drawing Number Revision
& 1611 PA 09 | A
H
o 1 7 3 A 5 6 7 [ [ [ T Y [ T T T ] 10 T 17 13 1L | 15 | 16



AutoCAD SHX Text_606
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
10340

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
10978

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
10600

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
7000

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
6300

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
3870

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
3708

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
3708

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
3196

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
3308

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
3004

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
2884

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
4139

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
2870

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
3316

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
4988

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
3045

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
4122

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
10978

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
2148

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
2742

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
3810

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
3044

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
3130

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
1499

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
3045

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
4122

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
2148

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
2742

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
3810

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
3044

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
3130

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
1499

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
3708

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
3196

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
3308

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
3004

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
2884

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
4139

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
2870

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
3316

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
7000

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
6300

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
3870

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
3708

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
10600

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
Drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
Checked by

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
Job Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
Drawing Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
Job Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
Action

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
Classification

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
Risk Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
H


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Planning Committee Report

Planning Ref: PL/2025/0001987/0UT

Site: Land adjacent 260a Hawkes Mill Lane, Coventry, CV5 9FJ
Ward: Bablake

Parish: Allesley

Proposal: Outline planning application for the erection of two

dwellings (all matters to be reserved, except for access)
(Resubmission of OUT/2022/3157)
Case Officer: Ayesha Saleem

INTRODUCTION

This application is a resubmission of OUT/2022/3157, which was refused on 6th January
2023. The application was refused as it was considered to be inappropriate development
within the Green Belt contrary to both the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and National
Planning Policy Framework.

This application is in outline form with all matters reserved except for access. This
application has been referred to planning committee as 5 letters of support have been
received.

The adjacent site has had various consents to redevelop a former piggery site, with a
total of four detached dwellings. The background of the applications is outlined below.

The most recent outline approval, OUT/2020/2762, was initially recommended for refusal
and was refused by Planning Committee on 11" February 2021 but was granted on
appeal on 318t July 2021 (appeal reference number APP/U4610/W/21/3269710). The
proposal was an outline application to erect four dwellings with access, scale and layout
considered. Two houses would be located to the east of the access road and two to the
west. The two pairs of dwellings would be separated by around a 2m gap. The houses
would each have a footprint of approximately 9m x 7.5m, making a total floor area of 252
square metres and a height of 9.6 metres.

A further application was submitted under planning reference PL/2025/0000555/FUL, as
the outline application OUT/2020/2762 permission timing had lapsed. Therefore, the
applicant submitted a full application for two of the proposed dwellings, which was
granted.

RECOMMENDATION
Planning Committee are recommended to refuse planning permission for the reasons set
out within this report.

REASON FOR DECISION

The application site lies within the Green Belt where strict policies of restraint apply. The
development of the site for two houses will cause serious harm to the Green Belt and is
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. The very special circumstances that
have been put forward to justify the proposal do not outweigh the harm which would be
caused by the proposal.

Page 131



The application site is not considered to be in an accessible location, and inadequate
measures have been proposed to make the site sustainable. The existing walking and
cycling routes to nearby local facilities and amenities are not considered to be appropriate
to support walking and cycling.

The proposed development would be contrary to Policies GB1, H3, AC1, AC4 and AC5
of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the aims and objectives of the National Planning
Policy Framework and the principles of good design and well-designed places as set out
within the National Design Guide.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is located within the Green Belt, accessed via a private access which
is located between 244 and 248 Hawkes Mill Lane. 244 and 248 Hawkes Mill Lane are
single storey dwellings. The site is currently grass land between new built dwellings to
the west and Hogs End Farm to the east. The site is screened from the wider public to
the point that one is not aware of the site when traversing Hawkes Mill Lane.

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

The application has been submitted in outline form with only the means of access
provided. All other matters relating to layout, scale, appearance, and landscaping are
matters reserved for later consideration. An indicative plan has been submitted that
shows two detached, two storey dwellings with parking to the front and amenity space to
the rear. The existing garage for Hogs End Farm will be demolished to allow for the
access and will be replaced to the side of Hogs End Farm.

PLANNING HISTORY

The planning history for the application site is as follows:

Application Number | Description of Development Decision and
Date
OUT/2022/3157 Outline planning permission for the | Refused et

erection of two dwellings (all matters to | January 2023
be reserved, except for access)

The main historic planning applications on the adjacent site to the west are as follows:

Application Number | Description of Development Decision and
Date
OUT/2018/2653 Outline application for demolition of Approved 27
existing agricultural buildings and February 2019.

erection of two dwellings (Use Class C3)
(all matters except access, scale and
layout reserved)

OUT/2019/1375 Demolition of existing buildings and Refused 7th
erection of four dwellings August
2019

Appeal dismissed

Page 132



(Outline application with access, scale,
layout and appearance to be
considered)

OUT/2020/0577 Demolition of existing buildings and Approved 15th
erection of three dwellings (Outline July 2020
application with access, scale and
layout to be considered)

OUT/2020/2762 Demolition of existing buildings and Refused 11t
erection of four dwellings (Outline February 2021
application with access, scale and and allowed at
layout to be considered) appeal 318t July

2021

RM/2021/3791 Application for approval of reserved Approved 4" April
matters (appearance and landscaping) | 2022
pursuant to permission OUT/2020/2762
(APP/U4610/W/21/3269710), granted
on appeal, 31st July 2021 for the
'Demolition of existing buildings and
erection of four dwellings (Outline
application with access, scale and
layout to be considered)'

PL/2025/0000555/FUL | Erection of two dwellings with Approved 26
associated development June 2025

PL/2025/0001175/FUL | Erection of double garage to existing Refused 4
approved house site August 2025

(Current appeal
being considered)

PL/2025/0002380/FUL | Erection of outbuildings to the rear of Refused
the two dwellings approved under 21/01/2026
application ref: PL/2025/0001388/RVC

PL/2026/0000082/FUL | Erection of detached dwelling with Pending
associated development (Plot 2 Determination
previously approved under reference
OUT/2020/2762)

POLICY

National Policy Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2024.

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) adds further context to the NPPF and
it is intended that the two documents are read together.

Local Policy Guidance

The current local policy is provided within the Coventry Local Plan 2017, which was
adopted by Coventry City Council on 6" December 2017. Relevant policy relating to this
application is:

Policy DS1: Overall Development Needs

Page 133



Policy DS3: Sustainable Development Policy

Policy H3: Provision of New Housing

Policy H4: Securing a Mix of Housing

Policy H9: Residential Density

Policy GB1: Green Belt and Local Green Space
Policy GE3: Biodiversity, Geological, Landscape and Archaeological Conservation
Policy GE4: Tree Protection

Policy DE1 Ensuring High Quality Design

Policy AC1: Accessible Transport Network

Policy AC2: Road Network

Policy AC3: Demand Management

Policy AC4: Walking and Cycling

Policy EM1: Planning for Climate Change Adaptation
Policy EM2: Building Standards

Policy EM3 Renewable Energy Generation

Policy EM5 Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

Emerging Local Policy Guidance — Local Plan Review was submitted to the
Planning Inspectorate on 9t September 2025 for examination

The Local Plan review is currently at Examination. Relevant emerging policy relating to
this application is:

Policy DS1: Overall Development Needs

Policy DS3: Sustainable Development Policy

Policy H3: Provision of New Housing

Policy H4: Securing a Mix of Housing

Policy H9: Residential Density

Policy GB1: Green Belt and Local Green Space

Policy GE3: Biodiversity, Geological, and Landscape Conservation

Policy GE4: Tree Protection

Policy DE1: Ensuring High Quality Design

Policy DE2: Delivering High Quality Places

Policy AC1: Accessible Transport Network

Policy AC2: Road Network

Policy AC3: Demand Management

Policy AC4: Active Transport Provision including Walking, Cycling and Micro Mobility
Policy EM1: Planning for Climate Change Adaptation

Policy EM4: Flood Risk Management

Policy EM5: Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

Policy EM11: Energy Infrastructure

Policy EM13: Overheating in new buildings

Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD):
SPG Design Guidelines for Development in Coventry’s Ancient Arden
SPD Design Guidelines for New Residential Development

SPD Delivering a More Sustainable City

SPD Coventry Connected

SPD Air Quality

CONSULTATION
No objections have been received from:

Page 134



e Environmental Protection (CCC)- subject to conditions in relation to a CMP
(construction management plan) and Low Nox boilers and EV (electric vehicle)
charging points.

e Ecology (CCC)- subject to conditions in relation to lighting, biodiversity features, and
a LEMP (Landscape Ecological Management Plan)

Objections have been received from:
e Local Highway Authority (CCC)

Neighbour consultation
Immediate neighbours and local councillors have been notified, and a site notice was
displayed on the 20th of October 2025.

Six letters of objection have been received, raising the following material planning
considerations:

a) Increased traffic

b) Concerns regarding suitability of access

c) Parking provision concerns

d) Loss of wildlife

e) Loss of privacy to neighbours

f) Overdevelopment

g) Loss/ Impact upon Green Belt

h) Increased noise concerns

i) Lack of notification

Within the letters received the following non-material planning considerations were
raised, these cannot be given due consideration in the planning process:

j) Damage to existing property boundaries

k) Concerns regarding to structural damage/ subsidence

[) Loss of view

Five letters of support have been received, raising the following material planning
considerations:
m) The land is currently disused and vulnerable to people potentially using it for waste
and or living on it.
n) Improve and enhance the area

Any further comments received will be reported within late representations.

APPRAISAL

The main issues in determining this application are principle of development, the impact
upon the openness of the Green Belt and character, future residential environment,
impact upon residential amenity, access and highway considerations, air quality and
ecological impacts.

Principle of Development

The application site is located within Green Belt, which is, by definition, inappropriate
development. Inappropriate development will not be permitted in the Coventry Green Belt
unless very special circumstances exist.

Page 135



The Agent has submitted a planning statement with their suggested very special

circumstances summarised below:

e Infilling a small gap- The situation from the previously refused application has
changed in that the four houses permitted immediately to the west of the site are all
under construction, with Plot 1 being finished and construction of Plots 3 and 4 being
well advanced. A material start has also been made on Plot 2. The planning authority
must therefore take these new houses into account when assessing whether the
application site constitutes an acceptable infill plot.

e Built up frontage- The site adjoins built development on all sides, most particularly to
the west, east and south. Taking account of the recently consented four dwelling
schemes within the adjoining land to the west, the application proposal would result
in a continuous built-up frontage of seven properties within the physical confines of
Hawkes End. The indicative site plan shows that the two new houses would form part
of a continuous built-up.

e Within the physical confines of a village- Although Hawkes End, and the adjacent
larger village of Brownshill Green, do not have defined village or settlement
boundaries, case law has determined that this is not necessary in order to conclude
that a particular site lies within the physical confines of a village, and that a case-by-
case approach is required. This issue was clarified in the case of Julian Wood v
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government and Gravesham Borough
Council (2015). The Court of Appeal held that sites outside designated village
boundaries could still be considered as constituting ‘infill’ sites.

e Suitability of the location- The permitted Hogs End Court scheme, which was
endorsed by a Planning Inspector, the City Council has also previously accepted that
Hawkes End is a sustainable location for new housing through a number of planning
approvals.

e Grey Belt- Government policy confirms that new homes on Grey Belt land is
acceptable within the Green Belt where “there is a demonstrable need for the type of
development proposed”. On the basis of the last published figures (to a base date of
31st December 2024 ), we understand that Coventry City can demonstrate a housing
land supply of 5.6 years, only marginally above the required minimum of 5 years.
Therefore, given the on-going and increasing housing need for all authorities, we
suggest that there is a demonstrable housing need.

e Self-Build/ custom- build homes- There is a particular need for self-build and custom-
build housing, with planning authorities being required to grant sufficient planning
permissions to meet the identified demand for such housebuilding in their area. The
City Council’'s website advises that the authority is still assessing what the level of
need is. Therefore, in the absence of such an assessment, it is reasonable to assume
that there is a demonstrable need for self-build and custom build housing within the
authority’s area.

Limited infill within a Village:

This application seeks to gain permission for infill development in the Green Belt, given
the context of this site, notably the fact that the approved dwellings under planning
application (OUT/2020/2762) Appeal Reference (APP/U4610/W/21/3269710) have now
been substantially built. Officers accept the dwellings could be infill development in the
Green Belt given the commencement of the adjacent dwellings, albeit the site is not within
a village.

Page 136



With regards to Hawkes End being a village this does not a have a definitive definition or
boundary to state this is a village and is not identified as such in the Development Plan.
In our opinion the collection of buildings is more akin to a hamlet rather than a village.
Villages normally have community facilities and services, and Hawkes End consists of a
few houses and one or two farm buildings with no community facilities or services.

The first test concerns whether the settlement in which the application is sited is a “village”
or not. An appeal located in Staffordshire referenced APP/B3438/W/18/3211000 was
dismissed and the inspector upheld that the proposal was judged to be sited within a
hamlet rather than a village on the basis that it did not have church building. Within the
application area; Hawkes End there is no church building, so Hawkes End cannot be
classed as a village.

The application site is located within Hawkes End, a small settlement along Hawkes Mill
Lane. Hawkes End is located to the West of Brownhill Green, a larger residential
settlement along the outskirts of Coventry and North of Allesley Village. Historic post war
aerial photographs show a clearer separation between the Hawkes End, Brownshill
Green Settlement and Allesley Village. However, over time the settlements have largely
merged with one another and there is no defined administrative or map boundary defining
the village boundaries. Notwithstanding this there are considered to be three historically
distinct settlements present.

Brownshill Green formerly had a church building at the Brownshill Green United
Reformed Church however following the grant of permission FUL/2014/3615 this has
since been demolished and replaced with housing. There are no significant community
amenities, such as schools, doctors’ surgeries or shops etc. with the only and nearest
public facilty being the White Lion Pub. Having regard to appeal
APP/B3438/W/18/3211000, the inspectors reasoned that “while a church may have once
existed in Ridgeway, there is no church there now as it has been replaced by a dwelling
known as Chapel House. There are also no other associated buildings in Ridgeway that
would, in my judgement, mean that Ridgeway is anything more than a hamlet’. Therefore,
it is concluded that Brownshill Green, is considered to be a hamlet. There is currently no
church within Hawkes End or Brownshill Green with the nearest church now located at
Saint Thomas’ Church on Tamworth Road and All Saints Church, Allesley. There are no
local amenities along Hawkes Mill Lane or Ted Pitts Lane. Therefore, Hawkes End is not
classed as a village.

The development in our view is not classed as limited infill within an existing village, nor
does it comply with any of the other criteria within Paragraph 154 of the NPPF.

Limited infill within existing ribbon developments:
The development is not classed as limited infill within existing ribbon developments; the
proposed development is off an access track and not a main route/ road.

The proposal does not comply with the self-build element of Policy H3 as the development
is not considered to be limited infill within existing ribbon developments. Ribbon
development consists of single rows of buildings along roads generally leading away from
towns. In this situation, the development site is situated to the rear of what could
potentially be considered a ribbon, however it does not and could not form part of the

Page 137



ribbon itself. We do not accept that one ribbon could be positioned back-to-back with
another.

It is also noted that the Council is currently able to demonstrate a 5-year housing land
supply figure of 5.91 years, as such, and in accordance with the NPPF, we would not
consider there to be an unmet need of housing that would require residential development
to occur in the Green Belt.

Grey Belt:
Having reviewed paragraph 155 of the NPPF, it is arguable that the site does not strongly

contribute to purposes a) b) or d) in paragraph 143. However, we are at odds when it
comes to there being demonstrable need for the development. Whilst the agent makes
an interesting argument with regard to the specifics of self-build, there will be many
dwellings approved every year within the City of Coventry which would be suitable for
self-build, whether the applicant identifies themselves as a self-builder or not. A case in
point would be the four dwellings adjacent to this site.

Even if it could be argued that the site is Grey Belt Land, given that we can demonstrate
a 5-year housing land supply of 5.91 years, in NPPF terms there is no demonstrable
unmet need for housing in Coventry and as such the site is not considered to meet the
tests for Grey Belt.

With regard to the sustainability of the site, it would be a difficult place to live without
running a private car due to the distances to basic facilities such as shops, primary school
etc. Many other sites in the area which have been approved dwellings have been either
conversions or redevelopment of previously used sites for which weight is generally
afforded to the reuse of the site and the sustainability of the location has slightly less
prominence.

Therefore, the development is contrary to Paragraph 155 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and does not constitute Grey Belt land.

Notwithstanding the above, the proposal will result in the demolition of the existing garage
to clear the access to allow the plots to be accessed. The submitted site plan indicates
that the garage would be replaced utilising permitted development rights, however an
assessment of whether this would be lawful falls outside the scope of this application.

Therefore, in conclusion, the development is inappropriate development in the Green
Belt, and it is considered that the very special circumstances do not outweigh the harm.
The proposal is contrary to Policies H3 and GB1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the
emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025 and the aims of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Openness of the Green Belt and character of the area

The application site is located to the rear of the properties fronting onto Hawkes Mill Lane,
is accessed via a private single track and is heavily screened from any public vantage
points.

The application site is just grassland with no previous development of the land. The
provision of two dwellings and the associated domestic paraphernalia would result in a

Page 138



form of development that when viewed from the surrounding area would be visible. Whilst
some farmhouses are set back and sometimes behind existing linear development, the
new buildings in their form would be considered out of character with the rural setting of
the site and would result in harm to the openness of the green belt. In fact, even if the
two houses could not be seen from any public vantage points, the erection of buildings
on the land would reduce the openness of the Green Belt and is therefore harmful.

The provision of two houses will add a suburban character to the area by their siting.
Together with the associated domestic paraphernalia associated with residential uses,
will harm the character of the area and the openness of the Green Belt and is therefore
considered to be inappropriate development by definition and contrary to the
aforementioned paragraphs of the NPPF.

Whilst the provision of two market dwellings attracts some limited weight in favour of the
proposal, no very special circumstances have been demonstrated to outweigh the harm
identified above.

Future residential environment

An indicative site plan and street scene elevation has been submitted. Two dwellings can
sit comfortably within the plot. The garden depths are to be around 30 metres which
complies with the Residential Design Guidelines SPD. There is also sufficient space for
bin storage and parking. Therefore, the amenity for the future occupants would be
acceptable.

Impact upon residential amenity

The properties within Hawkes Mill Lane are set over 30m away from the boundary with
the edge of the site. Plot A is located 4.5 metres from the closest residential property (plot
4) on the approved PL/2025/0000555/FUL. Plot B is located 9.7 metres away from Hogs
End Farm. There is separation distance of 3.6 metres between Plots A and B.

Given the significant separation distances between the proposed houses and the existing
properties, the proposed dwellings are not considered to have a detrimental impact in
terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and loss of light in accordance with Policy DE1 of
the Coventry Local Plan 2017, the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025, and accords with
the general principles of the SPG Design Guidance for New Residential Development.

Access and highway considerations

Having undertaken a full assessment of the development proposals. The existing access
between Nos 244 and 248 Hawkes Mill Lane serves the dwellings within the grounds of
246 Hawkes Mill Lane. The access has suitable visibility and would be considered
acceptable to accommodate two further dwellings as proposed.

Notwithstanding the above, the Local Highway Authority (LHA) currently have the
following concerns:

The application site is not considered to be in an accessible location. According to the
CIHT’s ‘Planning for Walking’ (2015) publication, walking neighbourhoods are typically
characterised as having a range of facilities within 10 minutes’ walking distance (around
800m). This is also reflected in the National Design Guide (2019), which defines
“Walkable: Local facilities are within walking distance, generally considered to be no more

Page 139



than a 10 minute walk (800m radius)”, and also Active Travel England’s (ATE) ‘Standing
Advice Note: Active travel and sustainable development’ which indicates that a mix of
local amenities should be located within an 800m walking and wheeling distance (using
well-designed routes) of all residential properties.

The nearest bus stop to the site is located along Brown’s Lane, near to the junction with
Hawkes Mill Lane, approximately 965m walking distance from the centre of the
application site. The LHA requires bus stops to be located within 400m walking distance
of dwellings. The nearest school to the site is Allesley Primary School, approximately
2.6km walking distance from the site. The nearest medical services are Allesley Doctors
Surgery and Allesley Pharmacy, located approximately 2.6km and 2.9km respectively
from the site. The nearest retail store to the site is One Stop Coventry Park Hill,
approximately 3.4km walking distance from the site, but the nearest supermarket is
Morrisons / Aldi at Alvis Retail Park, approximately 5km walking distance from the site.
The distance of the site to the nearest local facilities and amenities exceeds the required
distances set out in Policy H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, in addition to the guidance
set out above.

The LHA also has concerns that access to some of the facilities listed above will require
future occupants of the development to travel to/from the west of the site. The existing
footway along Hawkes Mill Lane terminates approximately 145m to the west of the site
access, there is a lack of street lighting, and the speed limit increases to the National
Speed Limit (60mph). This is also the case along Washbrook Lane. It is therefore unlikely
that this route would be safe or suitable for use by pedestrians and cyclists, which
conflicts with the NPPF which requires developments to prioritise walking and cycling.

The agent has submitted a response to the highway objection dated 14" November 2025.
The following points have been raised:

- As there has been no change in circumstance since the 2022 application with the
same Local Plan policies being on place there is no justification for reaching a
different conclusion in relation to highways and accessibility matters.

- There have been several other application in the immediate vicinity and
sustainability and accessibility concerns have not been raised.

- Policy H3 distances should be achieved wherever possible.

- Hawkes End lies in a sustainable location on the outskirts of the City.

- Policy H3 supports new self-build housing within ribbons of development within
the Green Belt. It would be unacceptable for the council to apply the same
accessibility criteria to ‘self-build housing within ribbons of development’ as those
sites within the main built-up area of the City.

The Local Highway Authority have reviewed the response and their comments still stand.
The history of the site and nearby developments were taken into consideration when
assessing the current planning application. Officers still consider the application site to
be in an unsustainable and inaccessible location.

Again, officers appreciate that there was a previous application at the site and nearby
developments approved, however, the NPPF has been updated since then, which
requires developments to adopt a vision-led approach to deliver sustainable places,
which has not been achieved in this instance.

Page 140



In respect of this application the Highway Authority objects to the current proposals.

Air quality
Environmental Protection officers have no objections subject to conditions in relation to
a Construction Management Plan, Nox boilers and EV charging points.

Ecological assessment
Policy GE3 of the Local Plan states that Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs), Local
Nature Reserves (LNRs), Ancient Woodlands, Local Wildlife and Geological Sites will be
protected and enhanced.

Ecology officers’ states that the non-native and ornamental hedgerow be amended to be
a native hedgerow, non-native hedgerows are not as beneficial to UK wildlife. Ideally the
species chosen should be common beech, hawthorn, alder buckthorn, blackthorn, and
hazel. Ideally all of these species should be planted. The plans state that two ornamental
ponds will be created. It is vital that a management plan is created for this, ponds offer
great habitats for wildlife and is a habitat that is really needed in Coventry.

Ecology officers have no objections subject to conditions in relation to lighting,
biodiversity features, and a LEMP. No BNG is required given this development is classed
as self-build.

Equality Implications
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. Section 149
states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need
to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into account and given due regard to this statutory duty, and the
matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the determination of this
application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development.

Conclusion

The proposed development is considered to be unacceptable in principle and would
constitute inappropriate development within the Green Belt without demonstration that
very special circumstances apply, contrary to Policies GB1 and H3 of the Coventry Local
Plan, the emerging Coventry Local Plan 2025 and the aims of the National Planning
Policy Framework. The application site is not considered to be in an accessible location,
and inadequate measures have been proposed to make the site sustainable contrary to

Page 141



Policies H3, AC1, AC4 and AC5 of the Coventry Local Plan. It is therefore recommended
that planning permission is refused.

Page 142



POLICY APPENDIX

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) December 2024.
Coventry Local Plan 2017 & Emerging Local Policy
Supplementary Planning Guidance/ Documents (SPG/ SPD):

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s planning
policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It sets out the
Government’s requirements for the planning system only to the extent that is relevant,
proportionate and necessary to do so. The NPPF increases the focus on achieving high
quality design and states that it is “fundamental to what the planning and development
process should achieve”.

Principle of development

The National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 11, states that “Plans and decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. For Decision Making,
this means:-

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most
important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless: i.
the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a strong reason for refusing the development proposed; or ii. any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole, having particular
regard to key policies for directing development to sustainable locations, making effective
use of land, securing well-designed places and providing affordable homes, individually
or in combination.

Footnote 8 to paragraph 11 confirms that this includes situations where the local authority
cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate
buffer set out in paragraph 78).

Based on the provisions of the NPPF 2024 the Council can demonstrate a 5.91- year
housing land supply as of 31st March 2025.

Impact upon the openness of the Green Belt and character of the area
Policy GB1 within the Coventry Local Plan 2017 relevant points are as follows:

‘2A: Inappropriate development will not be permitted in the Coventry Green Belt unless
very special circumstances exist. Development proposals, including those involving
previously developed land and buildings, in the Green Belt will be assessed in relation to
the relevant national planning policy.

7. In addition to appropriate development in the Green Belt identified in the NPPF, limited
infill development would be considered appropriate. Any proposal in these locations will
be expected to be of an appropriate density to reflect surrounding properties should not
impact negatively on the openness and character of the wider Coventry Green Belt and
will also need to accord with Policy H3.’

Page 143



Policy H3 within the Coventry Local Plan 2017 is as follows:

1. New residential development, including opportunities for self-build homes and starter
homes, must provide a high-quality residential environment which assists in delivering
urban regeneration or contributes to creating sustainable communities and which overall
enhances the built environment.

2. In addition, opportunities to provide self-build homes and starter homes will be
considered acceptable as part of limited infill within existing ribbon developments within
the Green Belt where it is demonstrated that they do not have an adverse impact upon
the openness and integrity of the wider Green Belt.

3. A suitable residential environment will include safe and appropriate access, have
adequate amenity space and parking provision and be safe from environmental pollutants
such as land contamination, excessive noise and air quality issues.

4. Wherever possible new developments should also be:

a) within 2km radius of local medical services;

b) within 1.5km of a designated centre within the city hierarchy (policy R3);

c¢) within 1km radius of a primary school;

d) within 1km of indoor and outdoor sports facilities; and

e) within 400m of a bus stop

f) within 400m of publicly accessible green space.

5. Proposals should also be in conformity with all other relevant plan policies

6. Sustainable transport provision and the infrastructure required to support housing
development must be considered from the onset, to ensure all sites have easy access to
high quality public transport and walking and cycling routes

7. The delivery of self-build homes will be supported where they meet the criteria of this
policy.’

For information both of the above policy points Policy GB1 (point 7) and Policy H3 (point
2) have been removed from the emerging Local Plan and there is an ever increasing
amount of weight attached to the emerging Local Plan.

In terms of decision-taking in the context of NPPF para 143 (the five purposes of Green
Belt) National Policy (Paragraph 153) confirms that development that is harmful to the
Green Belt should not be approved except for situations of ‘very special circumstances.
This is clearly a pertinent consideration in relation to this application.

Paragraph 154 of the NPPF states Development in the Green Belt is inappropriate unless

one of the following exceptions applies:
a) buildings for agriculture and forestry;

Page 144



b) the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a
change of use), including buildings, for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and
burial grounds and allotments as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green
Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it;

c) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building.

d) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and

not materially larger than the one it replaces;

e) limited infilling in villages;

f) limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the
development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and

g) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land
(including a material change of use to residential or mixed use including residential),
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would not
cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt.

h) Other forms of development provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict
with the purposes of including land within it. These are:

i. mineral extraction;

ii. engineering operations;

iii. local transport infrastructure which can demonstrate a requirement for a Green Belt
location;

iv. the re-use of buildings provided that the buildings are of permanent and substantial
construction;

v. material changes in the use of land (such as changes of use for outdoor sport or
recreation, or for cemeteries and burial grounds); and

vi. development, including buildings, brought forward under a Community Right to Build

Order or Neighbourhood Development Order.

In terms of Grey Belt, the NPPF definition of Grey Belt is as follows ‘for the purposes of
plan-making and decision-making, ‘grey belt’ is defined as land in the Green Belt
comprising previously developed land and/or any other land that, in either case, does not
strongly contribute to any of purposes (a), (b), or (d) in paragraph 143. ‘Grey belt’
excludes land where the application of the policies relating to the areas or assets in
footnote 7 (other than Green Belt) would provide a strong reason for refusing or restricting
development.

Paragraph 143 of the NPPF states ‘Green Belt serves five purposes:

a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;

b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;

c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;

d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and

e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban
land.’

Page 145



Paragraph 155 of the NPPF states ‘The development of homes, commercial and other
development in the Green Belt should also not be regarded as inappropriate where:

a. The development would utilise grey belt land and would not fundamentally undermine
the purposes (taken together) of the remaining Green Belt across the area of the plan;
b. There is a demonstrable unmet need for the type of development proposed;

c. The development would be in a sustainable location, with particular reference to
paragraphs 110 and 115 of this Framework; and

d. Where applicable the development proposed meets the ‘Golden Rules’ requirements
set out in paragraphs 156-157 below.

Future residential environment

Chapter 12 of the NPPF requires that planning should always seek to secure high quality
design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and
buildings.

Policy DE1 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 seeks to ensure high quality design and
development proposals must respect and enhance their surroundings and positively
contribute towards the local identity and character of an area.

Impact upon residential amenity

Policies H3, H5 and DE1 of the adopted Local Plan seek to ensure that development
proposals provide a suitable living environment for future occupiers, whilst also not
resulting in a detrimental impact to existing/neighbouring residential occupiers, the NPPF
reaffirms the importance of quality design.

Access and highway considerations

Policy AC2 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 requires new developments to support and
accommodate, where appropriate, measures which facilitate enhancements to the wider
transport network.

Air Quality

Policy EM7 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 requires new developments to ensure that
there is not an increase in air quality issues, this is supported and consistent with
Paragraph 199 of the NPPF (2024) which states that planning decisions will have due
regard for Air Quality Management Areas, of which the site and the rest of the city lies
within.

Ecological assessment

Policy GE3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 states that Sites of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSls), Local Nature Reserves (LNRs), Ancient Woodlands, Local Wildlife and
Geological Sites will be protected and enhanced.

Page 146



REASON FOR REFUSAL

The application site lies within the Green Belt where strict policies of
restraint apply. The development of the site for two houses will cause
serious harm to the Green Belt because it: -
i) is inappropriate;
ii) diminishes openness;
iv) conflicts with the purpose of including land in the Green Belt by
encroaching upon the countryside, extending urban sprawl, and is harmful
1. to the maintenance of its character; whilst failing to contribute to the
achievement of any of the objectives for the use of land in the Green Belt.
No very special circumstances have been put forward to justify the
proposal in order to outweigh the harm which would be caused by the
proposal. In consequence the application is contrary to Policies GB1 and
H3 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017 and the aims and guidance contained
within the National Planning Policy Framework and is not justified by any
other material considerations.

The application site is not considered to be in an accessible location, and
inadequate measures have been proposed to make the site sustainable.
The existing walking and cycling routes to nearby local facilities and
2. amenities are not considered to be appropriate to support walking and
cycling. It is therefore considered that the proposals fail to comply with
Policies H3, AC1, AC4 and AC5 of the Coventry Local Plan 2017, and
Paragraphs 115 and 117 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2024.

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



61T obed

®

Hogs End Cowrt ~ undler
corstruetrion

Hogs End
Farm

# LANDMARK INFORMATION Plotted Scale - 1:1250. Paper Size — A4



abed

[ L =l L | é ‘ I
L] L] ™ [ HEEN == AN LT L] L] 2 —
L ] L | ] I - - ||| - ] ||| ] —
i 5 I [T %% 4 ‘A.\.HHHHHHHH — I ' '._.HHH\ — T 1 I T T
= |
. 1 : i _ == [T [—— — ‘ H\‘\H ‘ — \‘ H\‘\H I [T T [T
= ; M= 1= 4 RERRE= H . =l -
i [T \ﬁWHHH\HHH T i : | ‘ HmmmﬁWmmw IR H H
Plots as approved on separate application L Indicative infill Hogs End Farm
I‘
Indicative street scene 0 METRES 5
1:100 @ A1
SCALE // -
/ / Based on survey by others.

3
Gates for emergency ﬂ ‘

access only.

Indicative site plan
1:200 @ A1

)

METRES

0 5

o

SCALE

Garage relocation within
permitted development

rights to Hogs End\Farm.

Location plan
1:1250 @ A1

ewage Ppg Sta

10

Metres

Drawing for planning purposes only.
Drawings Copyright or Michael Ramus Architects and not to
be passed to any other party without written consent.

Michacecl Ramus
A nc h it e c t 4

76 Priory Road, Kenilworth,
Warwickshire, CV8 1LQ
01926 51 2 4 00

info@ramus-architects.co.uk

Job :

Land adjacent to 260A,
Hawkes Mill Lane,
CV5 9FJ.

Client :

Zurich Developments Ltd

Drawing title :

Indicative site plan

and street scene

Outline application, all matters reserved
except for access

Scale :
As noted @ A1

Date :
May 2022

Dwg No :
1653-SP-01_E



AutoCAD SHX Text_717
Hogs End

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
Sewage Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
110.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
272

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
Nodraf

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
Cobwebs

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
Melbray

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
246

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
HAWKES MILL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
256

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
Hawkes End

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
270

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
Sogen

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
Hogs End

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
TED PITTS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
117.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
Vista

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
244

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
121.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
236

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
Elms

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
248

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
Domus

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
Metres

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
N


HHH
jii

T

iy

TTH
____“______"
h

il

4
i
i

HE]
=M
ﬂl
=




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 December 2025
	6 Application PL/2024/0002270/FULM -  Allesley Hotel, Birmingham Road
	PL/2024/0002270/FULM - Allesley Hotel Birmingham Road - plans
	Sheets and Views
	A3

	85 Birmingham Road - Garage Rev A (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	1310-24-200rev.L - Planning Layout - B&W.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1


	1310-24-240rev_C-Sections.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1


	1310-24-250rev.D - Materials Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A2


	1310-24-260rev.D - Enclosures Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A2


	1310-24-270rev.D - Storey Heights Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A2


	1310-24-280rev.D - Refuse Strategy.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A2


	1310-24-290-Acoustic-Barrier (3).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A3


	1694-24revB-Proposed-Street-Scenes.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1694-24revB - Proposed Street Scenes


	1694-29 - Rev A - Plots 57-60 Floor Plans and Elevations (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A2


	07905-CI-A-0001-P02 Site Access General Arrangement (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	0001


	07905-CI-A-0002-P02 Site Access Geometry Layout.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	0002


	07905-CI-A-0003-P02 Site Access Vehicle Swept Paths (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1 L Des


	07905-CI-A-0004-P01 Internal Visibility Assessment.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1 - GA


	APPLETON-Elevations (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	APPLETON-elevs.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	APPLETON-Plans (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	APPLETON-plans (3).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	FERNDALE-elevs.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	FERNDALE-plans (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	HORBURY-Coventry-Elevs (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	HORBURY-plans (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LEYBURN-Coventry-elevs (3).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	LEYBURN-plans (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	MALTBY-elevs (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	MALTBY-plans (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	NETHERTON-elevs (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	NETHERTON-plans (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	RIPLEY-end-elevs (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	RIPLEY-end-plans (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	RIPLEY-mid-elevs (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	RIPLEY-mid-plans (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	SALBURY-end-elevs (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	SALBURY-end-plans (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	SINGLE garage.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Tree Protection Plan TPP5180Y300 (4).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	tree protection 1

	arb plan-tree protection 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	tree protection 2



	TWIN garage (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	WENTBRIDGE-elevs (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	WENTBRIDGE-plans (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1




	7 Application PL/2025/0000037/FULM - 46 Algate Close
	PL/2025/0000037/FULM - Land at Algate Close - plans
	Sheets and Views
	Work

	PL.2025.0000037.FULM - House Plans and Elevations 1611-09A.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Work




	8 Application PL/2025/0001987/OUT - 260a Hawkes Mill Lane
	PL/2025/0001987/OUT - Land adjacent 260a Hawkes Mill Lane - plans




